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At ICI Pakistan we believe that our values drive our behaviour.
They are not just a document to be read but form the core of
how we operate everyday. Across our offices you will see our 
values visible in words and in actions.

Our people proudly engage in the nurturing and development 
of these values and are slowly but surely embedding them
into our culture; building on them to form the DNA of ICI
Pakistan.

Our values are:

Customer Centricity
Integrity & Responsibility
Innovation
Passion for People
Delivering Enduring Value

How we build on our values is how we evaluate and recognise
success, on an individual and corporate level. Our values
inspire us in the way we approach business with each other
and the world at large because they lie at the heart of
everything we do.
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Chemicals

Polyester

Soda Ash

Life Sciences

ICI Pakistan
at a Glance
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4,542

9,789

3,624

11,237

9,025

2,622

1,987 3,094

2,226 3,5652013-14

2012-13

2012 1,625 2,703 14.3

14.7

14.5

Ratios
Equity
in�Rs Million
2012-13�
2013-14�

Price earning

2012-13�
2013-14�

Return�on�capital�employed
in�%�
2012-13�
2013-14�

Return�on�fixed�assets
%�of�revenue
2012-13�
2013-14�

Operating result per employee
in�Rs Million
2012-13�
2013-14�

Capital�expenditures
in�Rs Million
2012-13�
2013-14�

9,789
11,237

13.26
21.18

14.66
14.49

18.75
19.00

1.86
1.93

2,083
2,509

Statement�of�income
NSI
in�Rs Million
2012-13� 36,268
2013-14� 38,233

Operating�result
in�Rs Million
2012-13� 1,987
2013-14� 2,226

Profit�before�tax
in�Rs Million
2012-13� 1,749
2013-14� 1,981

Profit�after�tax
in�Rs Million
2012-13� 1,159
2013-14� 1,702

EBITDA
in�Rs Million
2012-13� 3,094
2013-14� 3,565

EBITDA�margin
%�of�NSI
2012-13� 8.53
2013-14� 9.32

Earnings�per�share
in�Rs�

Comparative analysis is based on twelve months performance of the current year versus same period last year (SPLY) for a meaningful comparison.

2012-13 numbers have been restated due to IAS-19 revision

2012-13� 12.55
2013-14� 18.43

5%

12%

13%

47%

15%

9%

47%

15%

60%

-1%

1%

4%

20%

in times

97.72

105.99

2013-14

2012-13

2012

38.6

33.5

29.3

121.67

2012
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Overview 
& Strategy
The Overview and Strategy section provides 
information on our strategic priorities and key 
performance areas.



BUILDING ON
CUSTOMER
CENTRICITY



MOU WITH
UNIBRANDS FOR
INVESTMENT IN
NUTRICO (PVT) LTD.
Our aspiration is to grow through diversification. 
This year, we signed a Memorandum of 
Understanding (MoU) on January 31, 2014 with 
Unibrands Pvt. Limited for participation in a newly 
formed company, NutriCo. Pvt. Limited which will 
primarily be responsible for the marketing and 
distribution of Morinaga Milk Industry Company 
Limited; Japan’s range of infant formula and 
nutrition products in Pakistan.

This partnership will position ICI Pakistan to reach 
out to new customers and leverage the 
opportunities presented by the high growth food 
and nutrition sector in Pakistan. 

ICI Pakistan will partner in the marketing of

MORINAGA
infant forumlae in Pakistan
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As the partner of choice, 
we aspire to build our local 
and international footprint 
through sustainable growth 
and by creating value for all 
our stakeholders.

Our Vision
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Code of Conduct
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CE
Statement
Dear Stakeholders,

The past year has been full of immense challenges for us at 

ICI Pakistan. It was our first full year post acquisition along 

with the change of our financial year from January/December 

to July/June. This year ICI Pakistan completes 70 years 

of serving its customers; a fact that bears testimony to our 

uncompromising commitment, resolute ideology and sound 

values. These principles have allowed us to endure despite 

multiple challenges since we broke ground in Khewra for the 

construction of the Soda Ash plant in 1939.  For decades our 

products have touched lives in different ways. From industrial 

raw materials to every day goods, ICI Pakistan has directly and 

indirectly been a part of the lives of 180 million consumers in 

Pakistan.

Post-acquisition, the Company chalked out a new vision to 

grow its local and international footprint by strengthening its 

existing businesses and exploring new avenues for growth 

and diversification. I am pleased to report that in line with our 

aspirations, we successfully concluded arrangements with 

Unibrands Pvt. Limited, to participate with an equity investment 

initially of 15% shareholding increasing to 40%, in a newly 

formed company, NutriCo Pvt. Limited, which will primarily 

manage the import, marketing and distribution of nutrition 

products of Morinaga Milk Industry Co. Limited in Pakistan.  

The launch of NutriCo is a milestone for the Company, as 

a first step into the nutrition and food business in Pakistan.  

This not only entails leveraging our core competencies, but 

also requires us to face increasing challenges to achieve 

the desired growth in a fast-growing segment through well-

defined strategic and commercial execution. The investment 

in NutriCo will, in due course, enable us to evaluate the setting 

up of a facility to locally manufacture Morinaga infant milk 

formulae and nutrition products in Pakistan,  further enhancing 

our ability to service our customers.

As a consequence of the change in the financial reporting year, 

we have presented comparative performance for 2013/2014 

with the same period last year. The Company posted net 

sales income of PKR 38.2 billion for the period, which is 5% 

higher than the same period last year. This is primarily due to 

higher revenues in the Soda Ash, Life Sciences & Chemicals 

Businesses. Profit after tax at PKR 1,835 million is 29% higher 

than the same period last year on account of efficient cost 

control, margin improvement and accelerated top line growth 

in all businesses except Polyester.  The Polyester Staple Fibre 

business, continues to suffer as a result of both regional and 

domestic oversupply, as well as energy shortages emanating 

from  a continuous curtailment of natural gas, which in turn

necessitated the use of high cost furnace oil for power and 

steam generation, greatly impacting the businesses financial 

performance.

For industry to operate and maintain competitiveness, 

developing a ‘sustainable state’ is now a crucial requirement.

To this end, our Coal Based Power and Steam Solution at 

the Polyester plant is progressing satisfactorily and we will 

be commencing a project for the installation of a  Coal Fired 

Power and  Steam Plant at the Soda Ash plant in Khewra. 

The investment will make the Khewra site independent of 

the national gas and power grids in periods of curtailment. 

This project is expected  to be completed by the third quarter 

of 2016. To further enhance our product offering under the 

Life Sciences portfolio, the Company is proceeding with an 

investment to set up a small Nutraceuticals manufacturing 

facility at West Wharf.

The year 2013 has in retrospect, been exceptionally important 

for us as a Company. We have witnessed numerous transitions 

and changes, which have allowed us to distinguish ourselves 

as an organisation that believes in continuous growth through 

smart and timely decisions built on the collective strengths of 

its people. We have made efforts to drive an entrepreneurial 

mind-set in our people and have ensured an unrelenting 

adherence to our values and core beliefs. Our aim is to evolve 

as an agile and responsible company.

The credit for our performance this year is attributable 

to none other than the entire team at ICI Pakistan and the 

confidence shown in us by our shareholders and multiple 

stakeholders. The ongoing turbulent political conditions and 

the continued energy shortages indicate a hard year ahead 

for us, nonetheless we are committed and driven to deliver 

on our commitment to emerge as one of the top performing 

organisations in Pakistan. We will live up to our promise of 

‘Cultivating Growth’ and continuously explore ways to drive 

our values into the way we do business.

I wish you all the very best.

Warm regards,

Asif Jooma
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1,403

1,518

2,360 1,389 1,347 1,080 510

1,442

1,340

1,370 982 478

1,393 663

449

303

1,352

1,601

1,515

1,523

677

648

2,367 1,812 697

13,242 6,572 6,226 3,741 2,895

21,038 8,628 5,253 3,737

18,354 9,219 6,251 4,026

19,758 9,499 6,502 3,915

19,667 10,933 7,505 4,599

18,034 8,069 6,622 4,115 3,110

2009

2010

2011

2012

2012-13*

2013-14 (224)

Life Sciences ChemicalsPolyester Soda Ash

2013-14 turnover up by 8 percent

2013-14 earnings per share: Rs 18.43 (2012-13: Rs 12.55) 

2011, 2012 and 2012-13 numbers have been restated due to IAS 19 revision
t of Paints business due to demerger

  *Comparative analysis is based on twelve months performance of current year versus same period last year (SPLY) for a meaningful comparison

Rs Million

Polyester Soda Ash Paints Life Sciences Chemicals

Polyester Soda Ash Paints Life Sciences Chemicals

Rs Million

2009

2010

2011

2012

2012-13*

2013-14

Financial
Highlights
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Rs Million
2009

2010

2011

2012

2012-13*

2013-14

3,899

4,656

2,703

3,094

3,565

3,311

2009

2010

2011

2012

2012-13*

2013-14

Rs Million

2,429

2,045

1,531

974

1,159

1,702

42,705

Rs Million
2012-13*

Polyester

Soda Ash

Life Sciences

Chemicals

2013-14

39,673

1,003

685

(91)

1,434

Rs Million

2012-13*

Polyester

Soda Ash

Life Sciences

Chemicals

2013-14

(648)

702

143

42

1,987

2,226

2011, 2012 and 2012-13 numbers have been restated due to IAS 19 revision

*Comparative analysis is based on twelve months performance of current year versus same period last year (SPLY) for a meaningful comparison

Rs

13.25

10.54

12.55

18.43

14.73

17.50

2009

2010

2011

2012

2012-13*

2013-14
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Gross margin
(%)

2009

2010

2011

2012

2012-13*

Operating result margin
(%)

2009

2010

2011

2012

2012-13*

10.65

10.57

6.70

4.68

5.48

19.96

19.03

12.97

11.51

11.23

12.172013-14

Profit after tax margin
(%)

2009

2010

2011

2012

2012-13*

7.19

6.91

4.31

2.81

3.19

4.452013-14

2013-14 5.82

Return on equity
(%)

Return on assets
(%)

14.332013-142013-14 7.42

9.54

11.02

7.47

4.70

Profit before tax margin
(%)

5.182013-14

2009

2010

2011

2012

10.81

10.62

6.46

4.31

4.822012-13*

11.05

2009

2010

2011

2012

2012-13*

2009

2010

2011

2012

2012-13* 5.53

14.19

15.72

15.48

9.97

Return on capital employed
(%)

Net income per employee
(Rs million)

Revenue per employee
(Rs million)

19.38

22.43

21.18

14.30

14.66

1.57

1.86

1.38

0.89

1.0934.02

32.03

31.64

21.85

26.88

2009

2010

2011

2012

2012-13*

14.49 1.4833.16

2009

2010

2011

2012

2012-13*

2013-14

2009

2010

2011

2012

2012-13*

2013-142013-14

2011, 2012 and 2012-13 numbers have been restated due to IAS 19 revision
t of Paints business due to demerger

  *Comparative analysis is based on twelve months performance of current year versus same period last year (SPLY) for a meaningful comparison
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Operating cost as a % of net sales**

95.32

94.52

94.18

93.30

89.35

89.43

Debtor days

Price earning ratio
(Rs)

2009

2010

2011

2012

11.44

16.49

8.24

9.08

13.262012-13*

21.182013-14

Current ratio

1.05

1.31

1.38

1.92

2.17

1.22

Inventory days

50.53

58.00

51.19

60.93

62.67

55.83

2009

2010

2011

2012

2012-13*

2009

2010

2011

2012

2012-13*

2013-14 2013-14

Administration cost as % of sales

3.75

2.86

4.14

3.70

3.42

2.34

Stockholders’ equity per common share
(Rs)

11.08

8.90

5.91

4.88

7.23

8.23

97.72

97.14

104.81

98.17

105.99

121.67

2009

2010

2011

2012

2012-13*

2009

2010

2011

2012

2012-13*

2009

2010

2011

2012

2012-13*

2013-142013-14 2013-14

Market value per share
(Rs)

166.40

168.49

144.24

120.27

173.89

390.34

Creditor days

41.00

40.06

37.17

46.87

2009

2010

2011

2012

2012-13*

2009

2010

2011

2012

2012-13

2009

2010

2011

2012

2012-13*

2013-14 2013-14 2013-14

42.23

37.55

2011, 2012 and 2012-13 numbers have been restated due to IAS 19 revision
t of Paints business due to demerger

   *Comparative analysis is based on twelve months performance of current year versus same period last year (SPLY) for a meaningful comparison
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DuoPont
Analysis

Net Sales
38,233m

Total Cost
36,530m

Interest
387m

Other Costs
12,998m

Current Assets
10,437m

Non-Current Assets
12,500m

Current Liabilities
7,574m

Non-Current Liabilities
3,486m

Raw Material
Consumption

20,952m

Salaries, Wages
& Benifits

576m

Taxes
278m

Depreciation &
Amortization

1,339m

Net Profit
1,703m

Net Sales
38,233m

Total Assets
22,937m

Total Liabilities
11,060m

Owners Equity
11,877m

Total Liabilities
11,060m

Net Profit Margin
4.45%

Assets Turnover
1.667 times

Owner’s Equity
11,877m

Total Assets
22,937m

Return on Assets
7.42%

Ownership Ratio
51.78%

Return on Equity
14.33%

DuoPont Analysis

Tax Burden

Interest Burden

Operating Result Margin

Asset Turnover

Gearing

Return on Equity

2013-14

14%

16%

5.82%

1.667 times

28%

14.33%

34%

15%

5.48%

1.732 times

19%

11.05%

2012-13*

2012-13 numbers have been restated due to IAS 19 revision
*Comparative analysis is based on twelve months performance of current year versus same period last year (SPLY) for a meaningful comparison
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Quarterly 
Analysis

100.00%

80.00%

60.00%

40.00%

20.00%

0.00%

Turnover Cost of goods sold Operating Profit Profit after tax Capital
Expenditure

26.09%

25.43%

24.90%

23.58%

25.02%

25.85%

25.11%

24.02%

30.67%

19.85%

26.45%

23.03%

31.94%

23.10%

26.94%

18.02%

20.98%

35.66%

19.90%

23.47%

Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4

Turnover
Cost of

goods sold
Operating Profit Profit after tax Capital Expenditures

Quarter 1 10,068,616 8,066,343 512,548 306,741 588,703

Quarter 2 10,632,985 8,431,573 588,762 458,640 499,226

Quarter 3 10,858,300 8,679,977 441,892 393,173 894,573

Quarter 4 11,138,758 8,403,743 682,732 543,662 526,307

42,698,659 33,581,636 2,225,934 1,702,216 2,508,808
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Operating and Financial Highlights



23ICI Pakistan Limited Annual Report 2013-14

Vertical and Horizontal Analysis

2011, 2012 and 2012-13 numbers have been restated due to IAS 19 revision
t of Paints business due to demerger

*Comparative analysis is based on twelve months performance of current year versus same period last year (SPLY) for a meaningful comparison
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Share Price 
Sensitivity Analysis
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We're committed to reducing our 
impact on the planet and delivering 
more sustainable products and 
solutions to our customers. And we 
can only do this if sustainability is at 
the heart of everything we do. That's 
why we aim to integrate sustainability 
into every area of our business - 
for the benefit of our customers, 
shareholders, employees and the 
world around us.

Sustainability 
Guiding Principle 
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Year in
Review

Q1 Q2
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Q3 Q4
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Success Through
Our People

Performance &
Development Discussion

LE
A

D
E
R

S
H

IP
TA

LE
N
T

RE
VI

EW

SUCCESSION PLANNING FORUM

CAPABILITY
G

R
O

U
P

S

Talent Management Framework

Held with
Businesses

and Functions

Annual Review
headed by CE

Commercial Capability Group
Technical Capability Group
Finance Capability Group
HR Capability Group

Focus on

Succession

&

Capability

Building

“We not only respond to
the challenges and 

opportunities posed by
the environment but also

consistently strive to
come up with better and 

smarter solutions”

“We operate on a 
zero tolerance policy
to any kind of 
violations of our 
code and beliefs”

EPI C
Enhance Customer

Value

SUCCESS FACTOR

VALUE

Passion For People

Put People First2

VALUE

Delivering
Enduring Value

SUCCESS FACTOR

Deliver Results

VALUE

SUCCESS FACTOR

Integrity and
Responsibility

Live Responsibly

VALUE

SUCCESS FACTOR

Customer centricity
VALUE

SUCCESS FACTOR

Customer Centricity

Enhance Customer
Value

“We promise to deliver sustained
growth and enduring value to all
our stakeholders”

Inspire
Innovation

VALUE

SUCCESS FACTOR

Innovation

“We pride ourselves 
in managing and 
nurturing talent in
order to create a
learning environment
conducive for growth
and development”

“We exist 
because

of our
customers”
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Corporate
Governance HSE

Supply
Chain

Management

Enhanced
Performance

Finance

Strategy

HRSales &
Marketing

Customer
ServicesIT

Project
ManagementEngineering

GR Drive 2014Aspiration Journey
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Technology
Developments

The all new OneWin Portal
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Health, Safety,
Environment and Security

Policy, Beliefs and Principles

Standards and Group
Objectives

Guidelines

Good
Practice

Guidance
Business

Interpretation

Local Management
Systems and Training

Policy Review

Performance
Reporting

Measure,
Self-Assess

& Audit

Leadership
&

Commitment
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HSE Week 2014 at PolyesterWorkshop on Accident Investigation
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Awards and
Achievements

HSE manager receiving the 2013 ACCA-WWF award



Community
Investment



Household Wiring Course at Polyester site
Our paint donation gives the OPD block at

Civil Hospital Karachi a new look
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Governance 
& Compliance
In this section, we introduce our Board of Directors 
and present their report for 2013-14 which 
constitutes a detailed overview of activities during 
the year. This section also describes our corporate 
governance, our compliance structure as well as 
our risk management framework.



BUILDING ON
PASSION
FOR PEOPLE



BASIC HOUSEHOLD 
ELECTRICAL WIRING 
COURSE
ICI Pakistan launched its 3rd six-month course on ‘Basic 
Household Electrical Wiring’ in December 2013, which 
was concluded in June 2014. Provided to members of 
local community, this 3 hour per day intensive course is 
managed at the Polyester site through a professional 
trainer from TEVTA and is supported by volunteer 
workers from the Polyester Business. 

The objective of the course is to equip young talented 
individuals with techniques and skills that may become 
their bread and butter in the future.

This certification is our way of showing our passion for 
people. We hope that after graduation, these students 
are able to quickly find jobs where their skills are 
indispensable.

3 BATCHES of

STUDENTS
 

40 in total have 

GRADUATED
from the Basic Household Electrical Wiring
Programme
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Corporate Governance 
and Compliance
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Risk
Management

Risk Identification

Risk
Assessm

ent

RiskProfilingActionPlan
s

R
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k
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Board and Management 
Committees



47ICI Pakistan Limited Annual Report 2013-14

Company
Information
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Our Board of 
Directors

Vice ChairmanChairman
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Non-Executive DirectorNon-Executive Director
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Executive Director & CFOChief Executive

Our Board of 
Directors
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Independent DirectorIndependent Director
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General Manager 
Human Resources

Vice President 
Life Sciences

General Manager
Chemicals & Strategy

Chief Financial Officer

Our Executive 
Management Team

ICI Pakistan Limited Annual Report 2013-1452
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Syed Iqbal Haider
General Manager 
Technical

Suhail Aslam Khan
Vice President 
Polyester & Soda Ash

Chief Executive General Counsel & 
Company Secretary

53ICI Pakistan Limited Annual Report 2013-14
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Organisational
Structure

Chief Financial

Officer

Corporate

Technical

Life Sciences

Business

Human

Resource

Soda Ash

Business

Chemicals

Business
Legal

Polyester

Business

Chief

Executive
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Report of the 
Directors
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in Rs. M

Rs. Rs. M

Operating result Rs. MRs. M

2014

5%

82%

5%
4%

3%

1%

^

Net Sales including sales tax

Other operating Income

Raw Material and Services

Government Exchequer and duties

Operating and Other expenses

Dividends

June 30, 2014 % June 30, 2013 %
40,658,350 99% 38,037,465 99%

323,130 1% 225,071 1%
40,981,480 100% 38,262,536 100%

33,433,159 82% 31,232,058 82%
1,970,866 5% 2,447,776 6%
2,052,855 5% 2,020,902 5%
1,822,384 4% 1,403,099 4%

369,436 1% 507,975 1%
1,332,780 3% 650,726 2%

40,981,480 100% 38,262,536 100%Raw material and services
Government Exchequer and duties

Operating and other expenses
Dividends

† June 13 Contains Results For The Six Months Period Due To Change In Fiscal Year
∞ 12 Months Period June 2013

18,316

36,268
38,233

^ June
2013+

June
2013

June
2014

1,625
1,173

1,987
2,226

^ June
2013+

June
2013

June
2014

1,496
1,026

1,749
1,981

^ June
2013+

June
2013

June
2014

* Includes AkzoNobel Pakistan (Formerly Paints Business)
 Restated

7.45

10.54
12.55

18.43

^ June
2013+

June
2013

June
2014

2,703

1,730

3,094
3,565

^ June
2013+

June
2013

June
2014

2.00

5.50
4.00

^ June
2013+

June
2013

June
2014

2013

6%

82%

5%
4% 1%

2%

Rs. per shareDividend paid
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Volunteers at the Old Age Persons homeChairman of Board of Directors, Sohail Tabba, at the 
MoU ceremony with UniBrands Pvt. Ltd.
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Our paint donation restores exterior of a water tank
at Civil Hospital Karachi

Coal Fired Boiler and Steam Turbine Project  Agreement 
with Sinoma at Polyester
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Finance Managers Conference in Sri LankaChemicals Annual Business Conference in Khanpur
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Life Sciences Annual Business Conference in Thailand Our EMT Outbreak session in Khanpur
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HTM Heater Project at 
Polyester site

Groundbreaking ceremony of pre-school 
block at Winnington School Khewra

Graduates of the Adult Literacy 
Programme at Kakapir



ICI Pakistan Limited Annual Report 2013-1462

Winners of the 11th CE Cricket Tournament in LahoreAerial view of Karachi Head Office
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Statement of 
Compliance
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Review
Report
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Business 
Performance
The Business Performance section contains 
information on how each of our Divisions have 
performed during 2013-14.



BUILDING ON
DELIVERING
ENDURING
VALUE



FROM 
DIVERSIFICATION
TO DISTINCTION
The Agri Division under our Life Sciences portfolio relaunched its 
Agrochemical Segment in December 2013. Eleven new products 
were also launched during this period and have received 
overwhelming market response.

Our Animal Health Division has achieved excellent results in their 
performance this year. The ‘Own Brands’ portfolio under the 
umbrella of ‘Farmer’s Choice’ registered PKR 729 million 
revenue. Farmers Choice targets both livestock and poultry 
segments with a broad range of products.

On the other hand, two brands from our Pharmaceuticals 
Division have also had outstanding results this year. Tenormin 
maintained its position as the No.1 Cardiovascular brand in 
Pakistan by crossing record sales of PKR 850 million. At the 
same time, Nolvadex has become the first Oncology brand in 
Pakistan to sell 100,000 packs in a year. 

The Farmers Choice portfolio crossed the PKR

500 MILLION
MARK  in November 2013

Tenormin of the Pharmaceuticals 
Division crossed the PKR

850 MILLION
mark and is the 

NO.1
CARDIOVASCULAR
BRAND
IN PAKISTAN
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Soda Ash

For over 67 years, we have been manufacturing 

and supplying Soda Ash to our valued suppliers 

and distributors who then deliver it to you.

We commenced operations in the 1940s with only 

18,000 tons capacity and today, we are the largest 

producers of Soda Ash in the country.
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Soda Ash Distributors Convention in DubaiFiring of kilns at Soda Ash site
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 Life
Sciences

From leading medicines to veterinary brands; 

our business is the science of life. We put our 

customers first and this helps us to empower 

communities to learn and adopt our best practices.

Improving the quality of your life is our aim and 

our business philosophy. We ensure that our 

customers’ trust in us remains intact and that 

our brands remain synonymous with quality and 

consumer confidence.
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Farmer Education Campaign 
Animal Health celebrates record sales

at Gala Night 2014
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Life Sciences Annual Business 
Conference in Thailand

Participation in 21st BIC
Conference, Islamabad

Participation in Annual
Symposium, Larkana
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Recently commissioned Seeds
Processing Plant

Research Farm of Agri Division
in Sahiwal

Okra seeds - Field Day
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Chemicals

We service almost every industry in Pakistan 

and touch lives in the smallest of ways. For 

decades we have partnered with trusted 

suppliers and brought our customers the best 

technology solutions. 

From buildings to automotive and appliances 

to food, ICI Pakistan chemicals are and have 

always been a part of your life. 
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ICI-Veolia training sessionsAnnual Business Conference in Khanpur



ICI Pakistan Limited Annual Report 2013-1478

Chemicals Team at the Fevicol Launch CeremonyMeeting with Diversey in Colombo
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Key Hazard Awareness Campaign at the Chemicals PlantSpeciality Chemicals team at the RISE Conference
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Polyester

Invented by British chemists, John Whinfield and James

Dickson, the first polyester fibre, Terylene, was introduced to the 

world by ICI in 1941. Today, the polyester fibre has a wide variety 

of uses and applications; from home furnishings to clothing and 

apparel to industrial fibres.

Seven decades since the invention, ICI Pakistan continues to grow 

from strength to strength, being recognised for its best practices in 

product innovation and customer centricity.
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Coal Fired Boiler Project at Polyester site HSE Week 2014 at Polyester site
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Sustainability 
Performance
The Sustainability Report covers our sustainability 
strategy, the formation of the Sustainability Council, 
Key Performance Indicators, our long term targets 
and where we stand today.

Operating responsibly is the key driver behind 
our business processes and we are committed to 
creating a better workplace, a cleaner environment 
and progressive communities.  



BUILDING ON
INNOVATION



LEADERS IN
SUSTAINABILITY

ICI Pakistan is engraving its footprints globally and 
has recently been nominated for the “Sustainability 
Innovation Award” by BSL (Business School 
Lausanne, Switzerland) for its sustainability 
practices and its significant engagement in 
addressing important economic, societal and 
environmental issues.

Our aim is to increase stakeholder value by 
delivering sustainable solutions to our customers 
and we consider that essential towards the success 
of our Company.

We have been leaders in sustainability and 
innovation and have plans in place to explore 
methods that not only meet our needs today but 
protect the planet’s resources.

WINNERS OF THE 2011 
AND 2012 
ACCA-WWF Best Sustainability Award 

 

RUNNER-UP IN 2013 
ACCA-WWF Best Sustainability Award 
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Leadership 
Statement



Highlights for
2013-14
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Sustainability 
Council



Economic
Performance

Integrity
Management

Sourcing

Social
Performance

Health, Safety
and Security
Employment

Practices
Community
Investment

Envirnomental

Performance

Emissions
Control

Water Usage
Waste

Management
Product

Stewarship
Energy Efficiencies

CEO

Sustainability Council

Human Resource
Committee

Audit
Committee

Executive
Management
Commitee

HSE&S
Management
Committe

Pe

Em

Sustainability
Council Structure



Sustainability 
Strategy

Foster a
Culture of
Excellence

Environmental
Stewardship

Build
Socioeconomic

Value

Operate with
Responsibility



Sustainability 
Framework
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About the Report 
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Stakeholder 
Engagement
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LIGHT IN
THE DARK

Two solar panels were installed at the Soda Ash Business storage facility which is situated in a remote 

location. Since the entire area is shrouded in darkness, these panels have helped in illuminating 

passage to the location with Light Emitting Diodes (LEDs). The LEDs are energy efficient as they 

automatically switch off during the day.  

This initiative has not only improved night-time access to the to the facility but has saved the cost of

laying down a 1.5 km power cable.
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Key Performance Indicators
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One of our core values is 'Integrity and Responsibility' and we apply this principle in our daily operations, in our projects and in 

the way we do business. We aim for the highest standards in all our dealings and aim to partner with suppliers who not only 

endorse our values but incorporate them in their businesses. 

It is our belief that a strict focus on ethics and responsibility will result in business value for all involved stakeholders. Thus, we 

make sure that our actions speak louder than words. 

Economic
Performance



Integrity
Management
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Sourcing
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A safe workplace is a healthy workplace.

For us, nothing means more than the safety of our 

people and the people we work with. Our aim is 

to empower employees and communities and find 

ways to enable them in a culture that is conducive 

to professional growth. We endorse and practise 

equal opportunities and are committed to impartial 

treatment of all employees, irrespective of origin, 

race or gender. 

We have a passion for people and this is a 

fundamental part of our DNA as a responsible 

Company.

Social
Performance
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Employment
Practices
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Community
Investment
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Health, Safety
& Security



We take a lot from our planet and consequently from our environment and  

as a responsible organisation, we believe in giving back as much as we 

take. Our core objectives include methods in which we can mitigate impact 

of our operations on the climate and the environment and our aim is to 

discover ideas to evolve sustainable business operations. 

Environmental objectives are comprehensively integrated into our corporate 

and business goals and we ensure that we fully comply with the National 

Environment Legislation. 

Environmental 
Performance
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NOTHING LIKE
SUNSHINE

Foreseeing

rising costs of fossil fuels and the

subsequent energy generated through them, solar power is all 

set to surpass and become the highest source of power generation. Further

augmenting the case for solar energy is its zero carbon footprint. 

Our team at Chemicals took an audacious initiative to fulfil the plants’ lighting needs by harnessing the omnipresent power of the Sun. The 

lighting sheds which are energy intensive machines were replaced with Solar LED’s. The 120 watt LED’s which now illuminate the walkways 

and corridors do so by capturing the Sun’s energy during the day through

photovoltaic solar panels. 

ICI Pakistan has a passion for innovation, and the same passion goes into how we think about environmental responsibility.

It is how we work tirelessly to reduce our impact on climate change, how we find ways to use greener materials,

and conserve the natural resources of our planet.      



Emissions 
Control
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Water Usage
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The 

water 

conservation 

team at Soda 

Ash started the year 

with a strong focus on 

increasing awareness to 

save natural resources. The 

team worked with a slogan 

“Every Drop Counts” 

and conveyed their message to every 

member of the Soda Ash team including 

employees’ children. The team embarked on 

an aggressive campaign which focused on water 

saving and effective water management in housing 

areas as well as plant premises. 

In our residential communities, it was identified that 

overhead tanks were not installed and direct water usage was 

contributing in water wastage. The team came up with an idea to 

install water storage tanks in every house. Subsequently, thirty water 

storage tanks have been installed to date and the

process is still continuing. 

Another water saving project included the collection & reuse of waste water 

for irrigation through design and implementation of a water recycling system.  

s as well as plant prem

r residential communities, it was identified

head tanks were not installed and direct water usage

ntributing in water wastage. The team came up with an idea

nstall water storage tanks in every house. Subsequently, thirty wate

storage tanks have been installed to date and the

process is still continuing.

Another water saving project included the collection & reuse of waste water 

for irrigation through design and implementation of a water recycling system.  

A LITTLE GOES
A LONG WAY!
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Waste
Management
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Product
Stewardship
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Energy
Efficiencies
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G3 Content 
Index
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United Registrar of Systems (URS) has been commissioned by the management 
of ICI Pakistan (ICI or “the Company”) to carry out a limited assurance 
engagement on the Company’s 2014 Sustainability Report (the Report”) against 
the Global Reporting Initiative 2011, Sustainability Reporting Guidelines Version 
3.1 (“GRI G3.1”)

The management of ICI is responsible for the collection, analysis, aggregation 
and presentation of information within the Report. Our responsibility in performing 
this work is to the management of ICI only and in accordance with terms of 
reference agreed with the Company. The assurance engagement is based on 
the assumption that the data and information provided to us is complete and 
true.

includes the following aspects:

Guidelines GRI G3.1.
The social, environmental and economic indicators presented in the Report,
for a period of 12 months from July 1, 2013 to June 30, 2014.
Adherence to the principles of inclusivity, materiality and responsiveness.
Adherence to ISAE 3000 (2003) to provide limited assurance on performance
data within the sustainability report.

The intended users of this statement are the management of ICI and the readers 
of the Report.

Our activities included a review of the report content against the principles of 
Materiality, Inclusiveness & Responsiveness. We communicated with ICI Pakistan 
to determine the accuracy and authenticity of report content, data points, 
methodologies and policies around the organization’s social, environmental & 
economic data and activities. Our procedures on this engagement included: 
- Gain an understanding of The Company’s targets for sustainability as part 
of the business strategy and operations; - Review of the company’s approach 
to stakeholder engagement and its materiality determination process; - 

and controls; We believe that the desk top review of the ICI’s Sustainability 
Report completed by URS provides an appropriate basis for our conclusions.

Assurance
Statement
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Report provides a comprehensive and balanced account of ICI’s environmental, 
social and economic performance for the period under review. The data 

reported performance data accurately represents ICI’s current ability to manage 
and/or report on its environmental, social and economic performance, while 
meeting the principles of Inclusivity, Materiality and Responsiveness.

independence to work on this engagement with ICI. The members of the 
review team have not provided consulting services and were not involved in 
the preparation of any part of the Report. The review team has the required 

Ali Khan  
 

United Registrar of Systems - Pakistan  
September 22, 2014 

Jackson Wilson
Jackson Wilson & Co.

Chartered Accountants
ICAP Membership # 6224
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Financial 
Performance
The Financial Performance section provides 
a comprehensive record of our financial 
activities in 2013-14.



BUILDING ON
INTEGRITY &
RESPONSIBILITY



REUSE, REDUCE
& RECYCLE

In an effort to help recycle and reuse paper, we 
developed a ‘Multiple Use’ envelope and introduced it 
for internal mail transactions. There are two sizes i.e. 
Medium size and A4 size. The medium sized envelope 
can be used up to 8 times while the A4 sized envelope 
can be reused up to 12 times.

Monetarily, we managed to save PKR 3.5 on medium 
size and PKR 5.28 on the A4 size envelopes.

The ‘Multiple Use’ envelope has not only significantly 
reduced wastage but has contributed considerably to 
recycling efforts. According to the environmental 
impact calculator, this envelope has helped us save 4 
tons of paper, which means that we saved: 68 trees, 12 
cubic yard of landfill space, 8 barrels of oil, 28,000 
gallons of water and 16,400 kilowatt hours of electricity.

We can help protect the environment by not wasting 
paper. This has to be part of our everyday life as a small 
contribution in saving the planet’s natural resources.

A total of 

11,800 &

11,600
medium and A4 envelopes
were produced 

resulted in a per usage cost of 

PKR 0.75 &

PKR 0.67 
respectively

This effort has not only significantlyreduced 
wastage but has contributed considerably 
to recycling efforts.

The total savings calculated is

PKR 1Million
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ICI Pakistan Limited 
Financial Statements
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Auditors’ Report to the Members
We have audited the annexed unconsolidated balance sheet of ICI Pakistan Limited (the Company) as at 30 June 2014 and the related 
unconsolidated profit and loss account, unconsolidated statement of comprehensive income, unconsolidated cash flow statement and 
unconsolidated statement of changes in equity together with the notes forming part thereof, for the year then ended and we state that we 
have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of our 
audit. 

It is the responsibility of the Company’s management to establish and maintain a system of internal control, and prepare and present 
the above said statements in conformity with the approved accounting standards and the requirements of the Companies Ordinance, 
1984. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards as applicable in Pakistan. These standards require that we plan 
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the above said statements are free of any material misstatement. 
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the above said statements. An audit 
also includes assessing the accounting policies and significant estimates made by management, as well as, evaluating the overall 
presentation of the above said statements. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion and, after due 
verification, we report that:

a) in our opinion, proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Ordinance, 1984;
 
b) in our opinion:

 i) the unconsolidated balance sheet and unconsolidated profit and loss account together with the notes thereon have 
been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Ordinance, 1984, and are in agreement with the books of account 
and are further in accordance with accounting policies consistently applied, except for changes as stated in note 44 to 
the accompanying unconsolidated financial statements with which we concur;

 
ii) the expenditure incurred during the year was for the purpose of the Company’s business; and

 iii) the business conducted, investments made and the expenditure incurred during the year were in accordance with the 
objects of the Company;

c) in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the unconsolidated balance 
sheet, unconsolidated profit and loss account, unconsolidated statement of comprehensive income, unconsolidated cash flow 
statement and unconsolidated statement of changes in equity together with the notes forming part thereof conform with approved 

 accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan, and, give the information required by the Companies Ordinance, 1984, in the 
manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company’s affairs as at 30 June 2014 and of 
the profit, its comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity for the year then ended; and

d) in our opinion, Zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980), was deducted by the 
Company and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under section 7 of that Ordinance.

Date: 29 August, 2014 Ernst & Young Ford Rhodes Sidat Hyder
 Chartered Accountants
Karachi Shariq Ali Zaidi

F 03ICI Pakistan Limited Annual Report 2013-14



Unconsolidated Balance Sheet
As at June 30, 2014

ASSETS 

 

Non-current assets   

Property, plant and equipment 3  11,652,057   10,550,038 

Intangible assets 4  64,261   45,123 

   11,716,318   10,595,161 

   

Long-term investments 5  502,976   502,976 

Long-term loans 6  253,477   199,063 

Long-term deposits and prepayments 7  27,843   33,338 

   784,296   735,377 

   12,500,614   11,330,538 

Current assets   

Stores, spares and consumables 8  559,256   558,736 

Stock-in-trade 9  4,582,632   4,573,275 

Trade debts 10  858,347   865,690 

Loans and advances 11  191,121   158,716 

Trade deposits and short-term prepayments 12  206,775   156,512 

Other receivables 13  1,420,794   1,096,823 

Taxation - net   1,765,784   1,474,066 

Cash and bank balances 14  852,095   730,349 

   10,436,804   9,614,167 

   

Total assets   22,937,418   20,944,705 

 Note June 30, June 30,
  2014  2013 

Amounts in Rs ’000
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EQUITY AND LIABILITIES   

   

Share capital and reserves   

Authorised capital   

1,500,000,000 (June 30, 2013: 1,500,000,000) ordinary shares of Rs 10 each   15,000,000   15,000,000 

   

Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital 15  923,591   923,591 

Capital reserves 16  309,643   309,643 

Unappropriated profit   10,004,193   8,555,755 

Total equity    11,237,427   9,788,989 

Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment  17  639,372   698,536 

   

Non-current liabilities   

Provisions for non-management staff gratuity 18  77,842   79,678 

Long-term loans 19  2,314,805   1,887,026 

Deferred tax liability - net 20  1,093,718   1,101,111 

   3,486,365   3,067,815 

   

Current liabilities   

Current portion of long-term loans 19  872,221   -   

Trade and other payables 21  6,264,665   4,734,816 

Short-term borrowings and running finance 22  437,368   2,654,549 

   7,574,254   7,389,365 

Contingencies and commitments 23  

   

Total equity and liabilities   22,937,418   20,944,705 

   

The annexed notes 1 to 47 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.   

 Note June 30, June 30,
  2014  2013 

Amounts in Rs ’000

Muhammad Sohail Tabba    Asif Jooma  Muhammad Abid Ganatra 
Chairman / Director      Chief Executive  Chief Financial Officer  
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Unconsolidated Profit and Loss Account
For the year ended June 30, 2014

Turnover 25  42,698,659   20,133,977 

Sales tax, commission and discounts 24  (4,465,182)  (1,818,299)

Net sales, commission and toll income   38,233,477   18,315,678 

Cost of sales 25  (33,581,636)  (16,258,497)

Gross profit   4,651,841   2,057,181 

Selling and distribution expenses 27  (1,530,254)  (523,391)

Administration and general expenses 28  (895,653)  (361,134)

Operating result   2,225,934   1,172,656 

Other charges 29  (181,058)  (85,124)

Finance costs 30  (387,042)  (187,062)

   (568,100)  (272,186)

Other income 31  323,130   125,618 

Profit before taxation   1,980,964   1,026,088 

Taxation 32  (278,748)  (338,321)

Profit after taxation    1,702,216   687,767 

   

Basic and diluted earnings per share (Rupees) 33 18.43 7.45

   

  
  For the year For the year
  ended ended
  June 30, 2014 June 30, 2013

   

Basic and diluted earnings per share (Rupees)  18.43 12.55

   

The annexed notes 1 to 47 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.   

Amounts in Rs ’000

  For the For the 
   year six months 
  ended period ended
 Note June 30, 2014 June 30, 2013

Muhammad Sohail Tabba    Asif Jooma  Muhammad Abid Ganatra 
Chairman / Director      Chief Executive  Chief Financial Officer  

F 06 ICI Pakistan Limited Annual Report 2013-14



Unconsolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended June 30, 2014

Profit after taxation   1,702,216   687,767 

Items not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods: 

Actuarial gains on defined benefit plans   52,914   336,815 

Tax effect  (17,462)  (117,885)

  35,452   218,930 

Total comprehensive income for the year / period  1,737,668   906,697 

 

The annexed notes 1 to 47 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements. 

  For the For the 
   year six months 
  ended period ended
  June 30, 2014 June 30, 2013

Amounts in Rs ’000

Muhammad Sohail Tabba    Asif Jooma  Muhammad Abid Ganatra 
Chairman / Director      Chief Executive  Chief Financial Officer  
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Unconsolidated Cash Flow Statement
For the year ended June 30, 2014

Cash flows from operating activities  

 
Profit before taxation   1,980,964   1,026,088 

Adjustments for: 

   Depreciation and amortisation - note 3.5 & 4.2  1,338,740   557,691 

   Loss / (gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment - note 29 & 31  14,084   (363)

   Write offs - note 3.2.2 and 4.1  27,322  -    

   Provision for staff retirement benefit plan - note 18.1.1  52,360   48,676 

   Provision / (reversal) for non-management staff gratuity 

     and eligible retired employees' medical scheme  4,801   (275,275)

   Interest on bank deposits and loan to the Subsidiary  (368)  (1,292)

   Interest expense  381,528   162,537 

  3,799,431   1,518,062 

Movement in: 

   Working capital   1,068,385   (1,682,332)

   Long-term loans   (54,414)  (7,555)

   Long-term deposits and prepayments  5,495   7,553 

Cash generated from / (used in) operations  4,818,897   (164,272)

 

Payments for : 

   Staff retirement benefit plan - note 18.1.2  (62,798)  (94,556)

   Non-management staff gratuity and eligible retired employees' medical scheme  (23,695)  (12,174)

   Taxation  (574,280)  (551,563)

   Interest  (351,539)  (148,799)

Net cash generated from / (used in) operating activities  3,806,585   (971,364)

 

Cash flows from investing activities 

 

Payments for capital expenditure   (2,408,806)  (958,617)

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment  7,506   5,358 

Interest received on bank deposits and loan to the Subsidiary  368   12,532 

Net cash used in investing activities  (2,400,932)  (940,727)

  For the For the 
   year six months 
  ended period ended
  June 30, 2014 June 30, 2013

Amounts in Rs ’000
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Cash flows from financing activities 

 

Long-term loans  1,300,000   1,596,756 

Dividends paid  (366,726)  (143,273)

Net cash generated from financing activities  933,274   1,453,483 

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  2,338,927   (458,608)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year / period  (1,924,200)  (1,465,592)

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year / period  414,727   (1,924,200)

 

Movement in working capital  

(Increase) / decrease in current assets 

Stores, spares and consumables  (520)  (16,619)

Stock-in-trade  (9,359)  808,065 

Trade debts  7,343   (295,439)

Loans and advances  (32,406)  29,766 

Trade deposits and short-term prepayments  18,691   (19,055)

Other receivables  (323,970)  (100,444)

  (340,221)  406,274 

Increase / (decrease) in current liabilities 

Trade and other payables  1,408,606   (2,088,606)

  1,068,385   (1,682,332)

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year / period comprise of: 

Cash and bank balances - note 14  852,095   730,349 

Short-term borrowings and running finance - note 22  (437,368)  (2,654,549)

  414,727   (1,924,200)

 

The annexed notes 1 to 47 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements. 

Amounts in Rs ’000

  For the For the 
   year six months 
  ended period ended
  June 30, 2014 June 30, 2013

Muhammad Sohail Tabba    Asif Jooma  Muhammad Abid Ganatra 
Chairman / Director      Chief Executive  Chief Financial Officer  
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As at January 01, 2013  923,591   309,643   7,791,656   9,024,890 

Final dividend for the year ended  

 December 31, 2012 @ Rs 2.00 per share  -     -     (184,718)  (184,718)

Transactions with owners, recorded directly in equity  -     -     (184,718)  (184,718)

Profit for the period   -     -     687,767   687,767 

Other comprehensive income for the period   -     -     218,930   218,930 

Total comprehensive income  -     -     906,697   906,697 

Transfer from surplus on revaluation of property, 

  plant and equipment - incremental depreciation 

  for the period - net of deferred tax - note 17  -     -     42,120   42,120 

  -     -     42,120   42,120 

As at June 30, 2013  923,591   309,643   8,555,755   9,788,989 

Interim dividend for the year ended  

 June 30, 2014 @ Rs 4.00 per share  -     -     (369,436)  (369,436)

Transactions with owners, recorded directly in equity  -     -     (369,436)  (369,436)

Profit for the year   -     -     1,702,216   1,702,216 

Other comprehensive income for the year   -     -     35,452   35,452 

Total comprehensive income  -     -     1,737,668   1,737,668 

Transfer from surplus on revaluation of property, 

  plant and equipment - incremental depreciation 

  for the year - net of deferred tax - note 17  -     -     80,206   80,206 

  -     -     80,206   80,206 

As at June 30, 2014  923,591   309,643   10,004,193   11,237,427 

 

The annexed notes 1 to 47 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements. 

 Issued, Capital Unappropriated Total
  subscribed  reserves profit
 and paid-up
  capital

Unconsolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended June 30, 2014

Amounts in Rs ’000

Muhammad Sohail Tabba    Asif Jooma  Muhammad Abid Ganatra 
Chairman / Director      Chief Executive  Chief Financial Officer  
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1. Status and Nature of Business

 ICI Pakistan Limited (“the Company”) is incorporated in Pakistan and is listed on the Karachi, Lahore and Islamabad Stock 
Exchanges. The Company is engaged in the manufacture of polyester staple fibre, POY chips, soda ash, specialty chemicals, 
sodium bicarbonate and polyurethanes; marketing of seeds, toll manufactured and imported pharmaceuticals and animal health 
products; and merchanting of general chemicals. It also acts as an indenting agent and toll manufacturer. The Company’s 
registered office is situated at 5 West Wharf, Karachi.

 These are the separate financial statements of the Company in which investment in subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment 
losses, if any.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

 Following are the details of significant accounting policies:

2.1 Statement of compliance

 These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with approved accounting standards as applicable 
in Pakistan. Approved accounting standards comprise of such International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the 
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) as are notified under the Companies Ordinance, 1984, provisions of and directives 
issued under the Companies Ordinance, 1984. In case requirements differ, the provisions or directives of the Companies Ordinance, 
1984 shall prevail.

2.2 Basis of preparation

 These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except: 
 
 a) Certain classes of property, plant and equipment (i.e. freehold land, buildings on freehold and leasehold land and plant and  

    machinery) have been measured at revalued amounts; and 

 b) Provision for management staff gratuity, non-management staff gratuity and eligible retired employees’ medical scheme is 
    stated at present value. 

 The preparation of unconsolidated financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires management 
to make estimates, assumptions and use judgments that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and 
liabilities and income and expenses. Estimates, assumptions and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historic 
experience and other factors, including reasonable expectations of future events. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised 
prospectively commencing from the period of revision.

 Judgments and estimates made by the management that may have a significant risk of material adjustments to the unconsolidated 
financial statements in subsequent years are discussed in note 43.

 
2.3 Property, plant and equipment and depreciation 

 Property, plant and equipment (except freehold land, buildings on freehold and leasehold land and plant and machinery) are 
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Freehold land, buildings on freehold and leasehold 
land and plant and machinery are stated at revalued amounts less subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent 
impairment losses, if any. Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less impairment, if any. Cost of certain property, plant and 
equipment comprises historical cost. Such cost includes the cost of replacing parts of the property, plant and equipment and 
the cost of borrowings for long-term construction projects, if the recognition criteria is met. 

 Depreciation charge is based on the straight-line method whereby the cost or revalued amount of an asset is written off to profit 
and loss account over its estimated useful life after taking into account residual value, if material. The cost of leasehold land is 
depreciated in equal installments over the lease period. Depreciation on additions is charged from the month in which the asset 
is available for use and on disposals up to the month of disposal.

 The residual value, depreciation method and the useful lives of each part of property, plant and equipment that is significant in 
relation to the total cost of the asset are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted, if appropriate. 

Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2014

 Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to profit and loss account as and when incurred. Improvements are capitalised 
when it is probable that respective future economic benefits will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured 
reliably. Assets replaced, if any, are derecognised.

 Gains and losses on disposal of assets are taken to the profit and loss account, and the related surplus / deficit on revaluation 
of property, plant and equipment is transferred directly to unappropriated profit.

2.4 Intangible assets and amortisation

 Intangible assets with a finite useful life, such as certain softwares, licenses (including extraction rights, software licenses, etc.) 
and property rights, are capitalised initially at cost and subsequently stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment 
losses, if any. 

 Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to 
which it relates. All other expenditures are recognised in profit and loss account as incurred.

 Amortisation is based on the cost of an asset less its residual value. Amortisation is recognised in profit and loss account on a 
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of intangible assets. Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values are 
reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted, if appropriate.

2.5 Investments

 Investments in subsidiaries and unquoted equity securities classified as available-for-sale are stated at cost less provision for 
impairment, if any.

2.6 Stores, spares and consumables 

 Stores, spares and consumables are stated at the lower of weighted average cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value 
is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less net estimated costs to sell, which is generally equivalent to 
replacement cost. Items in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges incurred thereon up to the 
balance sheet date.

 
2.7 Stock-in-trade
 
 Stock-in-trade is valued at the lower of weighted average cost and estimated net realisable value. 

 Cost comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present 
location and condition. Net realisable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less net estimated 
costs of completion and selling expenses.

 Items in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges incurred thereon up to the balance sheet date.

2.8 Trade debts and other receivables

 Trade debts and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value plus directly attributable cost, if any, and subsequently measured 
at amortised cost. A provision for impairment of trade and other receivables is established when there is objective evidence that the 
Company will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of receivables (Refer note 40.6.1).

2.9   Taxation 

 Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognised in the profit and loss account, except 
to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in other comprehensive income or below equity, in which case it is 
recognised in other comprehensive income or below equity, respectively.

 Current 

 Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income at the enacted or substantively enacted rates of taxation after taking into 
account available tax credits and rebates, if any. The charge for current tax includes adjustments to charge for prior years, if any.

 Deferred

 Deferred tax is recognised using balance sheet method, providing for temporary differences between the carrying amounts of 
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. The amount of deferred tax 
provided is based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using the 
enacted or substantively enacted rates of taxation. In this regard the effects on deferred taxation of the portion of income expected 
to be subject to final tax regime is adjusted in accordance with the requirements of Accounting Technical Release – 27 of the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan.

 The Company recognises a deferred tax asset to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits for the foreseeable future will 
be available against which the asset can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable 
that the related tax benefit will be realised.

 Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit and loss account is recognised outside profit and loss account. Deferred 
tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

 Further, the Company recognises deferred tax asset / liability on deficit / surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment 
which is adjusted against the related deficit / surplus.

 
2.10 Cash and cash equivalents

 Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash in hand and current and deposit accounts held with banks. Running finance facilities 
availed by the Company, which are payable on demand and form an integral part of the Company’s cash management are 
included as part of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of statement of cash flows.

2.11 Impairment 

 Financial assets 

 Financial assets are assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is objective evidence that they are impaired. A 
financial asset is impaired if objective evidence indicates that a loss event has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset, 
and that the loss event had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset that can be estimated reliably. 
Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired may include default or delinquency by a debtor, indications that a debtor 
or issuer will enter bankruptcy.

 All individually significant receivables are assessed for specific impairment. All individually significant receivables found not to be 
specifically impaired are then collectively assessed for any impairment that has been incurred but not yet identified. Receivables 
that are not individually significant are collectively assessed for impairment by grouping together receivables with similar risk 
characteristics.

 An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortised cost is calculated as the difference between its carrying 
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate. Losses 
are recognised in profit and loss account and reflected in an allowance account against receivables. Interest on the impaired 
asset continues to be recognised through the unwinding of the discount. When a subsequent event causes the amount of 
impairment loss to decrease, the decrease in impairment loss is reversed through profit and loss account.

 Non-financial assets

 The carrying amounts of non-financial assets other than inventories and deferred tax asset are reviewed at each reporting date 
to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is 
estimated. The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value-in-use and its fair value less 
costs to sell. In assessing value-in-use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax 
discount rate that reflects current market assessment of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For the 
purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the smallest group of assets 
that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of 
assets (“the cash-generating unit, or CGU”). 

 The Company’s corporate assets do not generate separate cash inflows. If there is an indication that a corporate asset may be 
impaired, then the recoverable amount is determined for the CGU to which the corporate asset belongs. An impairment loss is 

portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by lessor. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives 
received from the lessor) and Ijarah contracts are charged to the profit and loss account on a straight-line basis over the period 
of the lease.

2.15 Trade and other payables

 Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value net of directly attributable cost, if any

2.16 Borrowings and their cost

 Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense 
in the period in which these are incurred except to the extent of borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, 
construction or production of a qualifying asset. Such borrowing costs, if any, are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset.

2.17 Provisions 

 A provision is recognised in the balance sheet when the Company has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past 
event, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can 
be made of the amount of obligation. The amount recognised as a provision reflects the best estimate of the expenditure required 
to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period.

2.18  Financial liabilities

 All financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value plus directly attributable cost, if any, and subsequently measured at 
amortised cost.

2.19 Earnings per share

 The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing 
the profit after tax attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares 
outstanding during the year. 

2.20 Foreign currency translation

 Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are translated to Pak Rupees, at the foreign exchange rate prevailing at the date 
of transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are re-translated into Pak Rupees at the foreign exchange 
rates at the balance sheet date. Exchange differences are taken to the profit and loss account.

2.21 Functional and presentation currency 

 Items included in the unconsolidated financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment 
in which the Company operates. The unconsolidated financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees, which is the Company’s 
functional and presentation currency.

2.22 Revenue recognition

 Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can 
be measured reliably. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, excluding discounts, 
rebates and government levies.

 Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the 
customer. For those products which are often sold with a right of return, accumulated experience is used to estimate and provide 
for such returns at the time of sale.

 Commission income is recognised on the date of shipment from suppliers.

 Profit on short-term deposits and mark-up on loan to the Subsidiary is accounted for on a time-apportioned basis using the 
effective interest rate method. 
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1. Status and Nature of Business

 ICI Pakistan Limited (“the Company”) is incorporated in Pakistan and is listed on the Karachi, Lahore and Islamabad Stock 
Exchanges. The Company is engaged in the manufacture of polyester staple fibre, POY chips, soda ash, specialty chemicals, 
sodium bicarbonate and polyurethanes; marketing of seeds, toll manufactured and imported pharmaceuticals and animal health 
products; and merchanting of general chemicals. It also acts as an indenting agent and toll manufacturer. The Company’s 
registered office is situated at 5 West Wharf, Karachi.

 These are the separate financial statements of the Company in which investment in subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment 
losses, if any.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

 Following are the details of significant accounting policies:

2.1 Statement of compliance

 These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with approved accounting standards as applicable 
in Pakistan. Approved accounting standards comprise of such International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the 
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) as are notified under the Companies Ordinance, 1984, provisions of and directives 
issued under the Companies Ordinance, 1984. In case requirements differ, the provisions or directives of the Companies Ordinance, 
1984 shall prevail.

2.2 Basis of preparation

 These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except: 
 
 a) Certain classes of property, plant and equipment (i.e. freehold land, buildings on freehold and leasehold land and plant and  

    machinery) have been measured at revalued amounts; and 

 b) Provision for management staff gratuity, non-management staff gratuity and eligible retired employees’ medical scheme is 
    stated at present value. 

 The preparation of unconsolidated financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires management 
to make estimates, assumptions and use judgments that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and 
liabilities and income and expenses. Estimates, assumptions and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historic 
experience and other factors, including reasonable expectations of future events. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised 
prospectively commencing from the period of revision.

 Judgments and estimates made by the management that may have a significant risk of material adjustments to the unconsolidated 
financial statements in subsequent years are discussed in note 43.

 
2.3 Property, plant and equipment and depreciation 

 Property, plant and equipment (except freehold land, buildings on freehold and leasehold land and plant and machinery) are 
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Freehold land, buildings on freehold and leasehold 
land and plant and machinery are stated at revalued amounts less subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent 
impairment losses, if any. Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less impairment, if any. Cost of certain property, plant and 
equipment comprises historical cost. Such cost includes the cost of replacing parts of the property, plant and equipment and 
the cost of borrowings for long-term construction projects, if the recognition criteria is met. 

 Depreciation charge is based on the straight-line method whereby the cost or revalued amount of an asset is written off to profit 
and loss account over its estimated useful life after taking into account residual value, if material. The cost of leasehold land is 
depreciated in equal installments over the lease period. Depreciation on additions is charged from the month in which the asset 
is available for use and on disposals up to the month of disposal.

 The residual value, depreciation method and the useful lives of each part of property, plant and equipment that is significant in 
relation to the total cost of the asset are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted, if appropriate. 

Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2014

 Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to profit and loss account as and when incurred. Improvements are capitalised 
when it is probable that respective future economic benefits will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured 
reliably. Assets replaced, if any, are derecognised.

 Gains and losses on disposal of assets are taken to the profit and loss account, and the related surplus / deficit on revaluation 
of property, plant and equipment is transferred directly to unappropriated profit.

2.4 Intangible assets and amortisation

 Intangible assets with a finite useful life, such as certain softwares, licenses (including extraction rights, software licenses, etc.) 
and property rights, are capitalised initially at cost and subsequently stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment 
losses, if any. 

 Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to 
which it relates. All other expenditures are recognised in profit and loss account as incurred.

 Amortisation is based on the cost of an asset less its residual value. Amortisation is recognised in profit and loss account on a 
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of intangible assets. Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values are 
reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted, if appropriate.

2.5 Investments

 Investments in subsidiaries and unquoted equity securities classified as available-for-sale are stated at cost less provision for 
impairment, if any.

2.6 Stores, spares and consumables 

 Stores, spares and consumables are stated at the lower of weighted average cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value 
is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less net estimated costs to sell, which is generally equivalent to 
replacement cost. Items in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges incurred thereon up to the 
balance sheet date.

 
2.7 Stock-in-trade
 
 Stock-in-trade is valued at the lower of weighted average cost and estimated net realisable value. 

 Cost comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present 
location and condition. Net realisable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less net estimated 
costs of completion and selling expenses.

 Items in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges incurred thereon up to the balance sheet date.

2.8 Trade debts and other receivables

 Trade debts and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value plus directly attributable cost, if any, and subsequently measured 
at amortised cost. A provision for impairment of trade and other receivables is established when there is objective evidence that the 
Company will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of receivables (Refer note 40.6.1).

2.9   Taxation 

 Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognised in the profit and loss account, except 
to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in other comprehensive income or below equity, in which case it is 
recognised in other comprehensive income or below equity, respectively.

 Current 

 Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income at the enacted or substantively enacted rates of taxation after taking into 
account available tax credits and rebates, if any. The charge for current tax includes adjustments to charge for prior years, if any.

 Deferred

 Deferred tax is recognised using balance sheet method, providing for temporary differences between the carrying amounts of 
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. The amount of deferred tax 
provided is based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using the 
enacted or substantively enacted rates of taxation. In this regard the effects on deferred taxation of the portion of income expected 
to be subject to final tax regime is adjusted in accordance with the requirements of Accounting Technical Release – 27 of the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan.

 The Company recognises a deferred tax asset to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits for the foreseeable future will 
be available against which the asset can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable 
that the related tax benefit will be realised.

 Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit and loss account is recognised outside profit and loss account. Deferred 
tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

 Further, the Company recognises deferred tax asset / liability on deficit / surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment 
which is adjusted against the related deficit / surplus.

 
2.10 Cash and cash equivalents

 Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash in hand and current and deposit accounts held with banks. Running finance facilities 
availed by the Company, which are payable on demand and form an integral part of the Company’s cash management are 
included as part of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of statement of cash flows.

2.11 Impairment 

 Financial assets 

 Financial assets are assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is objective evidence that they are impaired. A 
financial asset is impaired if objective evidence indicates that a loss event has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset, 
and that the loss event had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset that can be estimated reliably. 
Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired may include default or delinquency by a debtor, indications that a debtor 
or issuer will enter bankruptcy.

 All individually significant receivables are assessed for specific impairment. All individually significant receivables found not to be 
specifically impaired are then collectively assessed for any impairment that has been incurred but not yet identified. Receivables 
that are not individually significant are collectively assessed for impairment by grouping together receivables with similar risk 
characteristics.

 An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortised cost is calculated as the difference between its carrying 
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate. Losses 
are recognised in profit and loss account and reflected in an allowance account against receivables. Interest on the impaired 
asset continues to be recognised through the unwinding of the discount. When a subsequent event causes the amount of 
impairment loss to decrease, the decrease in impairment loss is reversed through profit and loss account.

 Non-financial assets

 The carrying amounts of non-financial assets other than inventories and deferred tax asset are reviewed at each reporting date 
to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is 
estimated. The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value-in-use and its fair value less 
costs to sell. In assessing value-in-use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax 
discount rate that reflects current market assessment of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For the 
purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the smallest group of assets 
that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of 
assets (“the cash-generating unit, or CGU”). 

 The Company’s corporate assets do not generate separate cash inflows. If there is an indication that a corporate asset may be 
impaired, then the recoverable amount is determined for the CGU to which the corporate asset belongs. An impairment loss is 

portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by lessor. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives 
received from the lessor) and Ijarah contracts are charged to the profit and loss account on a straight-line basis over the period 
of the lease.

2.15 Trade and other payables

 Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value net of directly attributable cost, if any

2.16 Borrowings and their cost

 Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense 
in the period in which these are incurred except to the extent of borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, 
construction or production of a qualifying asset. Such borrowing costs, if any, are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset.

2.17 Provisions 

 A provision is recognised in the balance sheet when the Company has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past 
event, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can 
be made of the amount of obligation. The amount recognised as a provision reflects the best estimate of the expenditure required 
to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period.

2.18  Financial liabilities

 All financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value plus directly attributable cost, if any, and subsequently measured at 
amortised cost.

2.19 Earnings per share

 The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing 
the profit after tax attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares 
outstanding during the year. 

2.20 Foreign currency translation

 Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are translated to Pak Rupees, at the foreign exchange rate prevailing at the date 
of transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are re-translated into Pak Rupees at the foreign exchange 
rates at the balance sheet date. Exchange differences are taken to the profit and loss account.

2.21 Functional and presentation currency 

 Items included in the unconsolidated financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment 
in which the Company operates. The unconsolidated financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees, which is the Company’s 
functional and presentation currency.

2.22 Revenue recognition

 Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can 
be measured reliably. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, excluding discounts, 
rebates and government levies.

 Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the 
customer. For those products which are often sold with a right of return, accumulated experience is used to estimate and provide 
for such returns at the time of sale.

 Commission income is recognised on the date of shipment from suppliers.

 Profit on short-term deposits and mark-up on loan to the Subsidiary is accounted for on a time-apportioned basis using the 
effective interest rate method. 
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1. Status and Nature of Business

 ICI Pakistan Limited (“the Company”) is incorporated in Pakistan and is listed on the Karachi, Lahore and Islamabad Stock 
Exchanges. The Company is engaged in the manufacture of polyester staple fibre, POY chips, soda ash, specialty chemicals, 
sodium bicarbonate and polyurethanes; marketing of seeds, toll manufactured and imported pharmaceuticals and animal health 
products; and merchanting of general chemicals. It also acts as an indenting agent and toll manufacturer. The Company’s 
registered office is situated at 5 West Wharf, Karachi.

 These are the separate financial statements of the Company in which investment in subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment 
losses, if any.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

 Following are the details of significant accounting policies:

2.1 Statement of compliance

 These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with approved accounting standards as applicable 
in Pakistan. Approved accounting standards comprise of such International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the 
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) as are notified under the Companies Ordinance, 1984, provisions of and directives 
issued under the Companies Ordinance, 1984. In case requirements differ, the provisions or directives of the Companies Ordinance, 
1984 shall prevail.

2.2 Basis of preparation

 These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except: 
 
 a) Certain classes of property, plant and equipment (i.e. freehold land, buildings on freehold and leasehold land and plant and  

    machinery) have been measured at revalued amounts; and 

 b) Provision for management staff gratuity, non-management staff gratuity and eligible retired employees’ medical scheme is 
    stated at present value. 

 The preparation of unconsolidated financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires management 
to make estimates, assumptions and use judgments that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and 
liabilities and income and expenses. Estimates, assumptions and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historic 
experience and other factors, including reasonable expectations of future events. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised 
prospectively commencing from the period of revision.

 Judgments and estimates made by the management that may have a significant risk of material adjustments to the unconsolidated 
financial statements in subsequent years are discussed in note 43.

 
2.3 Property, plant and equipment and depreciation 

 Property, plant and equipment (except freehold land, buildings on freehold and leasehold land and plant and machinery) are 
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Freehold land, buildings on freehold and leasehold 
land and plant and machinery are stated at revalued amounts less subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent 
impairment losses, if any. Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less impairment, if any. Cost of certain property, plant and 
equipment comprises historical cost. Such cost includes the cost of replacing parts of the property, plant and equipment and 
the cost of borrowings for long-term construction projects, if the recognition criteria is met. 

 Depreciation charge is based on the straight-line method whereby the cost or revalued amount of an asset is written off to profit 
and loss account over its estimated useful life after taking into account residual value, if material. The cost of leasehold land is 
depreciated in equal installments over the lease period. Depreciation on additions is charged from the month in which the asset 
is available for use and on disposals up to the month of disposal.

 The residual value, depreciation method and the useful lives of each part of property, plant and equipment that is significant in 
relation to the total cost of the asset are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted, if appropriate. 

 Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to profit and loss account as and when incurred. Improvements are capitalised 
when it is probable that respective future economic benefits will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured 
reliably. Assets replaced, if any, are derecognised.

 Gains and losses on disposal of assets are taken to the profit and loss account, and the related surplus / deficit on revaluation 
of property, plant and equipment is transferred directly to unappropriated profit.

2.4 Intangible assets and amortisation

 Intangible assets with a finite useful life, such as certain softwares, licenses (including extraction rights, software licenses, etc.) 
and property rights, are capitalised initially at cost and subsequently stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment 
losses, if any. 

 Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to 
which it relates. All other expenditures are recognised in profit and loss account as incurred.

 Amortisation is based on the cost of an asset less its residual value. Amortisation is recognised in profit and loss account on a 
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of intangible assets. Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values are 
reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted, if appropriate.

2.5 Investments

 Investments in subsidiaries and unquoted equity securities classified as available-for-sale are stated at cost less provision for 
impairment, if any.

2.6 Stores, spares and consumables 

 Stores, spares and consumables are stated at the lower of weighted average cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value 
is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less net estimated costs to sell, which is generally equivalent to 
replacement cost. Items in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges incurred thereon up to the 
balance sheet date.

 
2.7 Stock-in-trade
 
 Stock-in-trade is valued at the lower of weighted average cost and estimated net realisable value. 

 Cost comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present 
location and condition. Net realisable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less net estimated 
costs of completion and selling expenses.

 Items in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges incurred thereon up to the balance sheet date.

2.8 Trade debts and other receivables

 Trade debts and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value plus directly attributable cost, if any, and subsequently measured 
at amortised cost. A provision for impairment of trade and other receivables is established when there is objective evidence that the 
Company will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of receivables (Refer note 40.6.1).

2.9   Taxation 

 Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognised in the profit and loss account, except 
to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in other comprehensive income or below equity, in which case it is 
recognised in other comprehensive income or below equity, respectively.

 Current 

 Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income at the enacted or substantively enacted rates of taxation after taking into 
account available tax credits and rebates, if any. The charge for current tax includes adjustments to charge for prior years, if any.

 Deferred

 Deferred tax is recognised using balance sheet method, providing for temporary differences between the carrying amounts of 
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. The amount of deferred tax 
provided is based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using the 
enacted or substantively enacted rates of taxation. In this regard the effects on deferred taxation of the portion of income expected 
to be subject to final tax regime is adjusted in accordance with the requirements of Accounting Technical Release – 27 of the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan.

 The Company recognises a deferred tax asset to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits for the foreseeable future will 
be available against which the asset can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable 
that the related tax benefit will be realised.

 Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit and loss account is recognised outside profit and loss account. Deferred 
tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

 Further, the Company recognises deferred tax asset / liability on deficit / surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment 
which is adjusted against the related deficit / surplus.

 
2.10 Cash and cash equivalents

 Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash in hand and current and deposit accounts held with banks. Running finance facilities 
availed by the Company, which are payable on demand and form an integral part of the Company’s cash management are 
included as part of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of statement of cash flows.

2.11 Impairment 

 Financial assets 

 Financial assets are assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is objective evidence that they are impaired. A 
financial asset is impaired if objective evidence indicates that a loss event has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset, 
and that the loss event had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset that can be estimated reliably. 
Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired may include default or delinquency by a debtor, indications that a debtor 
or issuer will enter bankruptcy.

 All individually significant receivables are assessed for specific impairment. All individually significant receivables found not to be 
specifically impaired are then collectively assessed for any impairment that has been incurred but not yet identified. Receivables 
that are not individually significant are collectively assessed for impairment by grouping together receivables with similar risk 
characteristics.

 An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortised cost is calculated as the difference between its carrying 
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate. Losses 
are recognised in profit and loss account and reflected in an allowance account against receivables. Interest on the impaired 
asset continues to be recognised through the unwinding of the discount. When a subsequent event causes the amount of 
impairment loss to decrease, the decrease in impairment loss is reversed through profit and loss account.

 Non-financial assets

 The carrying amounts of non-financial assets other than inventories and deferred tax asset are reviewed at each reporting date 
to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is 
estimated. The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value-in-use and its fair value less 
costs to sell. In assessing value-in-use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax 
discount rate that reflects current market assessment of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For the 
purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the smallest group of assets 
that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of 
assets (“the cash-generating unit, or CGU”). 

 The Company’s corporate assets do not generate separate cash inflows. If there is an indication that a corporate asset may be 
impaired, then the recoverable amount is determined for the CGU to which the corporate asset belongs. An impairment loss is 

portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by lessor. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives 
received from the lessor) and Ijarah contracts are charged to the profit and loss account on a straight-line basis over the period 
of the lease.

2.15 Trade and other payables

 Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value net of directly attributable cost, if any

2.16 Borrowings and their cost

 Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense 
in the period in which these are incurred except to the extent of borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, 
construction or production of a qualifying asset. Such borrowing costs, if any, are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset.

2.17 Provisions 

 A provision is recognised in the balance sheet when the Company has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past 
event, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can 
be made of the amount of obligation. The amount recognised as a provision reflects the best estimate of the expenditure required 
to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period.

2.18  Financial liabilities

 All financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value plus directly attributable cost, if any, and subsequently measured at 
amortised cost.

2.19 Earnings per share

 The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing 
the profit after tax attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares 
outstanding during the year. 

2.20 Foreign currency translation

 Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are translated to Pak Rupees, at the foreign exchange rate prevailing at the date 
of transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are re-translated into Pak Rupees at the foreign exchange 
rates at the balance sheet date. Exchange differences are taken to the profit and loss account.

2.21 Functional and presentation currency 

 Items included in the unconsolidated financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment 
in which the Company operates. The unconsolidated financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees, which is the Company’s 
functional and presentation currency.

2.22 Revenue recognition

 Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can 
be measured reliably. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, excluding discounts, 
rebates and government levies.

 Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the 
customer. For those products which are often sold with a right of return, accumulated experience is used to estimate and provide 
for such returns at the time of sale.

 Commission income is recognised on the date of shipment from suppliers.

 Profit on short-term deposits and mark-up on loan to the Subsidiary is accounted for on a time-apportioned basis using the 
effective interest rate method. 
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1. Status and Nature of Business

 ICI Pakistan Limited (“the Company”) is incorporated in Pakistan and is listed on the Karachi, Lahore and Islamabad Stock 
Exchanges. The Company is engaged in the manufacture of polyester staple fibre, POY chips, soda ash, specialty chemicals, 
sodium bicarbonate and polyurethanes; marketing of seeds, toll manufactured and imported pharmaceuticals and animal health 
products; and merchanting of general chemicals. It also acts as an indenting agent and toll manufacturer. The Company’s 
registered office is situated at 5 West Wharf, Karachi.

 These are the separate financial statements of the Company in which investment in subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment 
losses, if any.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

 Following are the details of significant accounting policies:

2.1 Statement of compliance

 These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with approved accounting standards as applicable 
in Pakistan. Approved accounting standards comprise of such International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the 
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) as are notified under the Companies Ordinance, 1984, provisions of and directives 
issued under the Companies Ordinance, 1984. In case requirements differ, the provisions or directives of the Companies Ordinance, 
1984 shall prevail.

2.2 Basis of preparation

 These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except: 
 
 a) Certain classes of property, plant and equipment (i.e. freehold land, buildings on freehold and leasehold land and plant and  

    machinery) have been measured at revalued amounts; and 

 b) Provision for management staff gratuity, non-management staff gratuity and eligible retired employees’ medical scheme is 
    stated at present value. 

 The preparation of unconsolidated financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires management 
to make estimates, assumptions and use judgments that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and 
liabilities and income and expenses. Estimates, assumptions and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historic 
experience and other factors, including reasonable expectations of future events. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised 
prospectively commencing from the period of revision.

 Judgments and estimates made by the management that may have a significant risk of material adjustments to the unconsolidated 
financial statements in subsequent years are discussed in note 43.

 
2.3 Property, plant and equipment and depreciation 

 Property, plant and equipment (except freehold land, buildings on freehold and leasehold land and plant and machinery) are 
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Freehold land, buildings on freehold and leasehold 
land and plant and machinery are stated at revalued amounts less subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent 
impairment losses, if any. Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less impairment, if any. Cost of certain property, plant and 
equipment comprises historical cost. Such cost includes the cost of replacing parts of the property, plant and equipment and 
the cost of borrowings for long-term construction projects, if the recognition criteria is met. 

 Depreciation charge is based on the straight-line method whereby the cost or revalued amount of an asset is written off to profit 
and loss account over its estimated useful life after taking into account residual value, if material. The cost of leasehold land is 
depreciated in equal installments over the lease period. Depreciation on additions is charged from the month in which the asset 
is available for use and on disposals up to the month of disposal.

 The residual value, depreciation method and the useful lives of each part of property, plant and equipment that is significant in 
relation to the total cost of the asset are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted, if appropriate. 

 Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to profit and loss account as and when incurred. Improvements are capitalised 
when it is probable that respective future economic benefits will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured 
reliably. Assets replaced, if any, are derecognised.

 Gains and losses on disposal of assets are taken to the profit and loss account, and the related surplus / deficit on revaluation 
of property, plant and equipment is transferred directly to unappropriated profit.

2.4 Intangible assets and amortisation

 Intangible assets with a finite useful life, such as certain softwares, licenses (including extraction rights, software licenses, etc.) 
and property rights, are capitalised initially at cost and subsequently stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment 
losses, if any. 

 Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to 
which it relates. All other expenditures are recognised in profit and loss account as incurred.

 Amortisation is based on the cost of an asset less its residual value. Amortisation is recognised in profit and loss account on a 
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of intangible assets. Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values are 
reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted, if appropriate.

2.5 Investments

 Investments in subsidiaries and unquoted equity securities classified as available-for-sale are stated at cost less provision for 
impairment, if any.

2.6 Stores, spares and consumables 

 Stores, spares and consumables are stated at the lower of weighted average cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value 
is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less net estimated costs to sell, which is generally equivalent to 
replacement cost. Items in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges incurred thereon up to the 
balance sheet date.

 
2.7 Stock-in-trade
 
 Stock-in-trade is valued at the lower of weighted average cost and estimated net realisable value. 

 Cost comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present 
location and condition. Net realisable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less net estimated 
costs of completion and selling expenses.

 Items in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges incurred thereon up to the balance sheet date.

2.8 Trade debts and other receivables

 Trade debts and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value plus directly attributable cost, if any, and subsequently measured 
at amortised cost. A provision for impairment of trade and other receivables is established when there is objective evidence that the 
Company will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of receivables (Refer note 40.6.1).

2.9   Taxation 

 Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognised in the profit and loss account, except 
to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in other comprehensive income or below equity, in which case it is 
recognised in other comprehensive income or below equity, respectively.

 Current 

 Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income at the enacted or substantively enacted rates of taxation after taking into 
account available tax credits and rebates, if any. The charge for current tax includes adjustments to charge for prior years, if any.

 Deferred

 Deferred tax is recognised using balance sheet method, providing for temporary differences between the carrying amounts of 
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. The amount of deferred tax 
provided is based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using the 
enacted or substantively enacted rates of taxation. In this regard the effects on deferred taxation of the portion of income expected 
to be subject to final tax regime is adjusted in accordance with the requirements of Accounting Technical Release – 27 of the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan.

 The Company recognises a deferred tax asset to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits for the foreseeable future will 
be available against which the asset can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable 
that the related tax benefit will be realised.

 Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit and loss account is recognised outside profit and loss account. Deferred 
tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

 Further, the Company recognises deferred tax asset / liability on deficit / surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment 
which is adjusted against the related deficit / surplus.

 
2.10 Cash and cash equivalents

 Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash in hand and current and deposit accounts held with banks. Running finance facilities 
availed by the Company, which are payable on demand and form an integral part of the Company’s cash management are 
included as part of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of statement of cash flows.

2.11 Impairment 

 Financial assets 

 Financial assets are assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is objective evidence that they are impaired. A 
financial asset is impaired if objective evidence indicates that a loss event has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset, 
and that the loss event had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset that can be estimated reliably. 
Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired may include default or delinquency by a debtor, indications that a debtor 
or issuer will enter bankruptcy.

 All individually significant receivables are assessed for specific impairment. All individually significant receivables found not to be 
specifically impaired are then collectively assessed for any impairment that has been incurred but not yet identified. Receivables 
that are not individually significant are collectively assessed for impairment by grouping together receivables with similar risk 
characteristics.

 An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortised cost is calculated as the difference between its carrying 
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate. Losses 
are recognised in profit and loss account and reflected in an allowance account against receivables. Interest on the impaired 
asset continues to be recognised through the unwinding of the discount. When a subsequent event causes the amount of 
impairment loss to decrease, the decrease in impairment loss is reversed through profit and loss account.

 Non-financial assets

 The carrying amounts of non-financial assets other than inventories and deferred tax asset are reviewed at each reporting date 
to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is 
estimated. The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value-in-use and its fair value less 
costs to sell. In assessing value-in-use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax 
discount rate that reflects current market assessment of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For the 
purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the smallest group of assets 
that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of 
assets (“the cash-generating unit, or CGU”). 

 The Company’s corporate assets do not generate separate cash inflows. If there is an indication that a corporate asset may be 
impaired, then the recoverable amount is determined for the CGU to which the corporate asset belongs. An impairment loss is 
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portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by lessor. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives 
received from the lessor) and Ijarah contracts are charged to the profit and loss account on a straight-line basis over the period 
of the lease.

2.15 Trade and other payables

 Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value net of directly attributable cost, if any

2.16 Borrowings and their cost

 Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense 
in the period in which these are incurred except to the extent of borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, 
construction or production of a qualifying asset. Such borrowing costs, if any, are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset.

2.17 Provisions 

 A provision is recognised in the balance sheet when the Company has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past 
event, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can 
be made of the amount of obligation. The amount recognised as a provision reflects the best estimate of the expenditure required 
to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period.

2.18  Financial liabilities

 All financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value plus directly attributable cost, if any, and subsequently measured at 
amortised cost.

2.19 Earnings per share

 The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing 
the profit after tax attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares 
outstanding during the year. 

2.20 Foreign currency translation

 Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are translated to Pak Rupees, at the foreign exchange rate prevailing at the date 
of transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are re-translated into Pak Rupees at the foreign exchange 
rates at the balance sheet date. Exchange differences are taken to the profit and loss account.

2.21 Functional and presentation currency 

 Items included in the unconsolidated financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment 
in which the Company operates. The unconsolidated financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees, which is the Company’s 
functional and presentation currency.

2.22 Revenue recognition

 Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can 
be measured reliably. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, excluding discounts, 
rebates and government levies.

 Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the 
customer. For those products which are often sold with a right of return, accumulated experience is used to estimate and provide 
for such returns at the time of sale.

 Commission income is recognised on the date of shipment from suppliers.

 Profit on short-term deposits and mark-up on loan to the Subsidiary is accounted for on a time-apportioned basis using the 
effective interest rate method. 

 recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are 
recognised in profit and loss account. 

 Impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss has decreased 
or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable 
amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount 
that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

2.12 Surplus on revaluation of fixed assets

 The surplus arising on revaluation of fixed assets is credited to the “Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment” 
account shown below equity in the balance sheet in accordance with the requirements of section 235 of the Companies Ordinance, 
1984. The said section was amended through the Companies (Amendment) Ordinance, 2002 and accordingly the Company 
has adopted the following accounting treatment of depreciation on revalued assets, keeping in view the Securities and Exchange 
Commission of Pakistan’s (SECP) SRO 45(1)/2003 dated January 13, 2003:

 a) depreciation on assets which are revalued is determined with reference to the value assigned to such assets on revaluation 
    and depreciation charge for the year is taken to the profit and loss account; and

 b) an amount equal to incremental depreciation for the year net of deferred taxation is transferred from “Surplus on revaluation 
    of property, plant and equipment” account to accumulated profit / loss through Statement of Changes in Equity to record 
    realization of surplus to the extent of the incremental depreciation charge for the year.

2.13 Staff retirement benefits

 The Company’s retirement benefit plans comprise of provident funds, pensions, gratuity schemes and a medical scheme for 
eligible retired employees. 

 Defined benefit plans

 The Company operates a funded pension scheme and a funded gratuity scheme for management staff. The pension and gratuity 
schemes are salary schemes providing pension and lump sums, respectively. Pension and gratuity schemes for management 
staff are invested through two approved trust funds. The Company also operates gratuity scheme for non-management staff 
and the pensioners’ medical scheme which are unfunded. The pension and gratuity plans are final salary plans. The pensioner’s 
medical plan reimburses actual medical expenses to pensioners as per entitlement. The Company recognises expense in 
accordance with IAS 19 “Employee Benefits”.

 An actuarial valuation of all defined benefit schemes except eligible retired employees’ medical scheme is conducted every year. 
The valuation uses the Projected Unit Credit method. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in full in the period in which they 
occur in other comprehensive income.

 All past service costs are recognised at the earlier of when the amendment or curtailment occurs and when the Company has 
recognised related restructuring or termination benefits. 

 Defined contribution plans

 The Company operates two registered contributory provident funds for its entire staff and a registered defined contribution 
superannuation fund for its management staff, who has either opted for this fund by July 31, 2004 or have joined the Company 
after April 30, 2004. In addition to this the Company also provides group insurance to all its employees.

 Compensated absences

 The Company recognises the accrual for compensated absences in respect of employees in which these are earned up to the 
balance sheet date. The accrual has been recognised on the basis of actuarial valuation.

2.14 Operating leases / Ijarah contracts

 Leases, other than those under Ijarah contracts, in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained 
by the lessor, are classified as operating leases. Ijarah contracts are classified as operating leases irrespective of whether significant 

 Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive dividend is established.

 Toll manufacturing income is recognised when services are rendered.

2.23  Financial expense and financial income

 Financial expenses are recognised using the effective interest rate method and comprise foreign currency losses and markup / 
interest expense on borrowings.

 Financial income comprises interest income on funds invested. Markup / interest income is recognised as it accrues in profit 
and loss account, using the effective interest rate method. 

 
2.24 Dividend 

 Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised as a liability in the period in which the dividends are approved.

2.25 Segment reporting
 
 Segment reporting is based on the operating (business) segments of the Company. An operating segment is a component of 

the Company that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and 
expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Company’s other components. An operating segment’s operating results 
are reviewed regularly by the Chief Executive Officer (the CEO) to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment 
and assess its performance, and for which discrete financial information is available.  

 Segment results that are reported to the CEO include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be 
allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated items comprise mainly corporate assets, income tax assets, liabilities and related 
income and expenditures. Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the year to acquire property, plant and 
equipment.

 The business segments are engaged in providing products or services which are subject to risks and rewards which differ from 
the risk and rewards of other segments. Segments reported are Polyester, Soda Ash, Life Sciences and Chemicals, which also 
reflects the management structure of the Company.  

2.26 Derivative financial instruments

 The Company uses derivative financial instruments to hedge its exposure to foreign exchange and interest rate risks arising from 
operational, financing and investment activities. In accordance with its treasury policy, the Company does not hold or issue 
derivative financial instruments for trading purposes. Derivatives qualifying for hedge accounting are accounted for accordingly 
whereas, derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are accounted for as held for trading instruments. All changes in 
the fair value are recognised in the profit and loss account.

 
2.27 Off-setting

 Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the unconsolidated financial statements only when 
there is, legally enforceable right to set-off the recognised amount and the Company intends either to settle on a net basis, or 
to realise the assets and to settle the liabilities simultaneously.
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1. Status and Nature of Business

 ICI Pakistan Limited (“the Company”) is incorporated in Pakistan and is listed on the Karachi, Lahore and Islamabad Stock 
Exchanges. The Company is engaged in the manufacture of polyester staple fibre, POY chips, soda ash, specialty chemicals, 
sodium bicarbonate and polyurethanes; marketing of seeds, toll manufactured and imported pharmaceuticals and animal health 
products; and merchanting of general chemicals. It also acts as an indenting agent and toll manufacturer. The Company’s 
registered office is situated at 5 West Wharf, Karachi.

 These are the separate financial statements of the Company in which investment in subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment 
losses, if any.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

 Following are the details of significant accounting policies:

2.1 Statement of compliance

 These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with approved accounting standards as applicable 
in Pakistan. Approved accounting standards comprise of such International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the 
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) as are notified under the Companies Ordinance, 1984, provisions of and directives 
issued under the Companies Ordinance, 1984. In case requirements differ, the provisions or directives of the Companies Ordinance, 
1984 shall prevail.

2.2 Basis of preparation

 These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except: 
 
 a) Certain classes of property, plant and equipment (i.e. freehold land, buildings on freehold and leasehold land and plant and  

    machinery) have been measured at revalued amounts; and 

 b) Provision for management staff gratuity, non-management staff gratuity and eligible retired employees’ medical scheme is 
    stated at present value. 

 The preparation of unconsolidated financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires management 
to make estimates, assumptions and use judgments that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and 
liabilities and income and expenses. Estimates, assumptions and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historic 
experience and other factors, including reasonable expectations of future events. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised 
prospectively commencing from the period of revision.

 Judgments and estimates made by the management that may have a significant risk of material adjustments to the unconsolidated 
financial statements in subsequent years are discussed in note 43.

 
2.3 Property, plant and equipment and depreciation 

 Property, plant and equipment (except freehold land, buildings on freehold and leasehold land and plant and machinery) are 
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Freehold land, buildings on freehold and leasehold 
land and plant and machinery are stated at revalued amounts less subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent 
impairment losses, if any. Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less impairment, if any. Cost of certain property, plant and 
equipment comprises historical cost. Such cost includes the cost of replacing parts of the property, plant and equipment and 
the cost of borrowings for long-term construction projects, if the recognition criteria is met. 

 Depreciation charge is based on the straight-line method whereby the cost or revalued amount of an asset is written off to profit 
and loss account over its estimated useful life after taking into account residual value, if material. The cost of leasehold land is 
depreciated in equal installments over the lease period. Depreciation on additions is charged from the month in which the asset 
is available for use and on disposals up to the month of disposal.

 The residual value, depreciation method and the useful lives of each part of property, plant and equipment that is significant in 
relation to the total cost of the asset are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted, if appropriate. 

 Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to profit and loss account as and when incurred. Improvements are capitalised 
when it is probable that respective future economic benefits will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured 
reliably. Assets replaced, if any, are derecognised.

 Gains and losses on disposal of assets are taken to the profit and loss account, and the related surplus / deficit on revaluation 
of property, plant and equipment is transferred directly to unappropriated profit.

2.4 Intangible assets and amortisation

 Intangible assets with a finite useful life, such as certain softwares, licenses (including extraction rights, software licenses, etc.) 
and property rights, are capitalised initially at cost and subsequently stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment 
losses, if any. 

 Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to 
which it relates. All other expenditures are recognised in profit and loss account as incurred.

 Amortisation is based on the cost of an asset less its residual value. Amortisation is recognised in profit and loss account on a 
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of intangible assets. Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values are 
reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted, if appropriate.

2.5 Investments

 Investments in subsidiaries and unquoted equity securities classified as available-for-sale are stated at cost less provision for 
impairment, if any.

2.6 Stores, spares and consumables 

 Stores, spares and consumables are stated at the lower of weighted average cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value 
is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less net estimated costs to sell, which is generally equivalent to 
replacement cost. Items in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges incurred thereon up to the 
balance sheet date.

 
2.7 Stock-in-trade
 
 Stock-in-trade is valued at the lower of weighted average cost and estimated net realisable value. 

 Cost comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present 
location and condition. Net realisable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less net estimated 
costs of completion and selling expenses.

 Items in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges incurred thereon up to the balance sheet date.

2.8 Trade debts and other receivables

 Trade debts and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value plus directly attributable cost, if any, and subsequently measured 
at amortised cost. A provision for impairment of trade and other receivables is established when there is objective evidence that the 
Company will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of receivables (Refer note 40.6.1).

2.9   Taxation 

 Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognised in the profit and loss account, except 
to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in other comprehensive income or below equity, in which case it is 
recognised in other comprehensive income or below equity, respectively.

 Current 

 Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income at the enacted or substantively enacted rates of taxation after taking into 
account available tax credits and rebates, if any. The charge for current tax includes adjustments to charge for prior years, if any.

 Deferred

 Deferred tax is recognised using balance sheet method, providing for temporary differences between the carrying amounts of 
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. The amount of deferred tax 
provided is based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using the 
enacted or substantively enacted rates of taxation. In this regard the effects on deferred taxation of the portion of income expected 
to be subject to final tax regime is adjusted in accordance with the requirements of Accounting Technical Release – 27 of the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan.

 The Company recognises a deferred tax asset to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits for the foreseeable future will 
be available against which the asset can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable 
that the related tax benefit will be realised.

 Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit and loss account is recognised outside profit and loss account. Deferred 
tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

 Further, the Company recognises deferred tax asset / liability on deficit / surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment 
which is adjusted against the related deficit / surplus.

 
2.10 Cash and cash equivalents

 Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash in hand and current and deposit accounts held with banks. Running finance facilities 
availed by the Company, which are payable on demand and form an integral part of the Company’s cash management are 
included as part of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of statement of cash flows.

2.11 Impairment 

 Financial assets 

 Financial assets are assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is objective evidence that they are impaired. A 
financial asset is impaired if objective evidence indicates that a loss event has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset, 
and that the loss event had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset that can be estimated reliably. 
Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired may include default or delinquency by a debtor, indications that a debtor 
or issuer will enter bankruptcy.

 All individually significant receivables are assessed for specific impairment. All individually significant receivables found not to be 
specifically impaired are then collectively assessed for any impairment that has been incurred but not yet identified. Receivables 
that are not individually significant are collectively assessed for impairment by grouping together receivables with similar risk 
characteristics.

 An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortised cost is calculated as the difference between its carrying 
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate. Losses 
are recognised in profit and loss account and reflected in an allowance account against receivables. Interest on the impaired 
asset continues to be recognised through the unwinding of the discount. When a subsequent event causes the amount of 
impairment loss to decrease, the decrease in impairment loss is reversed through profit and loss account.

 Non-financial assets

 The carrying amounts of non-financial assets other than inventories and deferred tax asset are reviewed at each reporting date 
to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is 
estimated. The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value-in-use and its fair value less 
costs to sell. In assessing value-in-use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax 
discount rate that reflects current market assessment of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For the 
purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the smallest group of assets 
that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of 
assets (“the cash-generating unit, or CGU”). 

 The Company’s corporate assets do not generate separate cash inflows. If there is an indication that a corporate asset may be 
impaired, then the recoverable amount is determined for the CGU to which the corporate asset belongs. An impairment loss is 

portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by lessor. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives 
received from the lessor) and Ijarah contracts are charged to the profit and loss account on a straight-line basis over the period 
of the lease.

2.15 Trade and other payables

 Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value net of directly attributable cost, if any

2.16 Borrowings and their cost

 Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense 
in the period in which these are incurred except to the extent of borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, 
construction or production of a qualifying asset. Such borrowing costs, if any, are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset.

2.17 Provisions 

 A provision is recognised in the balance sheet when the Company has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past 
event, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can 
be made of the amount of obligation. The amount recognised as a provision reflects the best estimate of the expenditure required 
to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period.

2.18  Financial liabilities

 All financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value plus directly attributable cost, if any, and subsequently measured at 
amortised cost.

2.19 Earnings per share

 The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing 
the profit after tax attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares 
outstanding during the year. 

2.20 Foreign currency translation

 Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are translated to Pak Rupees, at the foreign exchange rate prevailing at the date 
of transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are re-translated into Pak Rupees at the foreign exchange 
rates at the balance sheet date. Exchange differences are taken to the profit and loss account.

2.21 Functional and presentation currency 

 Items included in the unconsolidated financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment 
in which the Company operates. The unconsolidated financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees, which is the Company’s 
functional and presentation currency.

2.22 Revenue recognition

 Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can 
be measured reliably. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, excluding discounts, 
rebates and government levies.

 Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the 
customer. For those products which are often sold with a right of return, accumulated experience is used to estimate and provide 
for such returns at the time of sale.

 Commission income is recognised on the date of shipment from suppliers.

 Profit on short-term deposits and mark-up on loan to the Subsidiary is accounted for on a time-apportioned basis using the 
effective interest rate method. 

 recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are 
recognised in profit and loss account. 

 Impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss has decreased 
or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable 
amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount 
that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

2.12 Surplus on revaluation of fixed assets

 The surplus arising on revaluation of fixed assets is credited to the “Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment” 
account shown below equity in the balance sheet in accordance with the requirements of section 235 of the Companies Ordinance, 
1984. The said section was amended through the Companies (Amendment) Ordinance, 2002 and accordingly the Company 
has adopted the following accounting treatment of depreciation on revalued assets, keeping in view the Securities and Exchange 
Commission of Pakistan’s (SECP) SRO 45(1)/2003 dated January 13, 2003:

 a) depreciation on assets which are revalued is determined with reference to the value assigned to such assets on revaluation 
    and depreciation charge for the year is taken to the profit and loss account; and

 b) an amount equal to incremental depreciation for the year net of deferred taxation is transferred from “Surplus on revaluation 
    of property, plant and equipment” account to accumulated profit / loss through Statement of Changes in Equity to record 
    realization of surplus to the extent of the incremental depreciation charge for the year.

2.13 Staff retirement benefits

 The Company’s retirement benefit plans comprise of provident funds, pensions, gratuity schemes and a medical scheme for 
eligible retired employees. 

 Defined benefit plans

 The Company operates a funded pension scheme and a funded gratuity scheme for management staff. The pension and gratuity 
schemes are salary schemes providing pension and lump sums, respectively. Pension and gratuity schemes for management 
staff are invested through two approved trust funds. The Company also operates gratuity scheme for non-management staff 
and the pensioners’ medical scheme which are unfunded. The pension and gratuity plans are final salary plans. The pensioner’s 
medical plan reimburses actual medical expenses to pensioners as per entitlement. The Company recognises expense in 
accordance with IAS 19 “Employee Benefits”.

 An actuarial valuation of all defined benefit schemes except eligible retired employees’ medical scheme is conducted every year. 
The valuation uses the Projected Unit Credit method. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in full in the period in which they 
occur in other comprehensive income.

 All past service costs are recognised at the earlier of when the amendment or curtailment occurs and when the Company has 
recognised related restructuring or termination benefits. 

 Defined contribution plans

 The Company operates two registered contributory provident funds for its entire staff and a registered defined contribution 
superannuation fund for its management staff, who has either opted for this fund by July 31, 2004 or have joined the Company 
after April 30, 2004. In addition to this the Company also provides group insurance to all its employees.

 Compensated absences

 The Company recognises the accrual for compensated absences in respect of employees in which these are earned up to the 
balance sheet date. The accrual has been recognised on the basis of actuarial valuation.

2.14 Operating leases / Ijarah contracts

 Leases, other than those under Ijarah contracts, in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained 
by the lessor, are classified as operating leases. Ijarah contracts are classified as operating leases irrespective of whether significant 

 Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive dividend is established.

 Toll manufacturing income is recognised when services are rendered.

2.23  Financial expense and financial income

 Financial expenses are recognised using the effective interest rate method and comprise foreign currency losses and markup / 
interest expense on borrowings.

 Financial income comprises interest income on funds invested. Markup / interest income is recognised as it accrues in profit 
and loss account, using the effective interest rate method. 

 
2.24 Dividend 

 Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised as a liability in the period in which the dividends are approved.

2.25 Segment reporting
 
 Segment reporting is based on the operating (business) segments of the Company. An operating segment is a component of 

the Company that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and 
expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Company’s other components. An operating segment’s operating results 
are reviewed regularly by the Chief Executive Officer (the CEO) to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment 
and assess its performance, and for which discrete financial information is available.  

 Segment results that are reported to the CEO include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be 
allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated items comprise mainly corporate assets, income tax assets, liabilities and related 
income and expenditures. Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the year to acquire property, plant and 
equipment.

 The business segments are engaged in providing products or services which are subject to risks and rewards which differ from 
the risk and rewards of other segments. Segments reported are Polyester, Soda Ash, Life Sciences and Chemicals, which also 
reflects the management structure of the Company.  

2.26 Derivative financial instruments

 The Company uses derivative financial instruments to hedge its exposure to foreign exchange and interest rate risks arising from 
operational, financing and investment activities. In accordance with its treasury policy, the Company does not hold or issue 
derivative financial instruments for trading purposes. Derivatives qualifying for hedge accounting are accounted for accordingly 
whereas, derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are accounted for as held for trading instruments. All changes in 
the fair value are recognised in the profit and loss account.

 
2.27 Off-setting

 Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the unconsolidated financial statements only when 
there is, legally enforceable right to set-off the recognised amount and the Company intends either to settle on a net basis, or 
to realise the assets and to settle the liabilities simultaneously.
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 recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are 
recognised in profit and loss account. 

 Impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss has decreased 
or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable 
amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount 
that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

2.12 Surplus on revaluation of fixed assets

 The surplus arising on revaluation of fixed assets is credited to the “Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment” 
account shown below equity in the balance sheet in accordance with the requirements of section 235 of the Companies Ordinance, 
1984. The said section was amended through the Companies (Amendment) Ordinance, 2002 and accordingly the Company 
has adopted the following accounting treatment of depreciation on revalued assets, keeping in view the Securities and Exchange 
Commission of Pakistan’s (SECP) SRO 45(1)/2003 dated January 13, 2003:

 a) depreciation on assets which are revalued is determined with reference to the value assigned to such assets on revaluation 
    and depreciation charge for the year is taken to the profit and loss account; and

 b) an amount equal to incremental depreciation for the year net of deferred taxation is transferred from “Surplus on revaluation 
    of property, plant and equipment” account to accumulated profit / loss through Statement of Changes in Equity to record 
    realization of surplus to the extent of the incremental depreciation charge for the year.

2.13 Staff retirement benefits

 The Company’s retirement benefit plans comprise of provident funds, pensions, gratuity schemes and a medical scheme for 
eligible retired employees. 

 Defined benefit plans

 The Company operates a funded pension scheme and a funded gratuity scheme for management staff. The pension and gratuity 
schemes are salary schemes providing pension and lump sums, respectively. Pension and gratuity schemes for management 
staff are invested through two approved trust funds. The Company also operates gratuity scheme for non-management staff 
and the pensioners’ medical scheme which are unfunded. The pension and gratuity plans are final salary plans. The pensioner’s 
medical plan reimburses actual medical expenses to pensioners as per entitlement. The Company recognises expense in 
accordance with IAS 19 “Employee Benefits”.

 An actuarial valuation of all defined benefit schemes except eligible retired employees’ medical scheme is conducted every year. 
The valuation uses the Projected Unit Credit method. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in full in the period in which they 
occur in other comprehensive income.

 All past service costs are recognised at the earlier of when the amendment or curtailment occurs and when the Company has 
recognised related restructuring or termination benefits. 

 Defined contribution plans

 The Company operates two registered contributory provident funds for its entire staff and a registered defined contribution 
superannuation fund for its management staff, who has either opted for this fund by July 31, 2004 or have joined the Company 
after April 30, 2004. In addition to this the Company also provides group insurance to all its employees.

 Compensated absences

 The Company recognises the accrual for compensated absences in respect of employees in which these are earned up to the 
balance sheet date. The accrual has been recognised on the basis of actuarial valuation.

2.14 Operating leases / Ijarah contracts

 Leases, other than those under Ijarah contracts, in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained 
by the lessor, are classified as operating leases. Ijarah contracts are classified as operating leases irrespective of whether significant 

 Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive dividend is established.

 Toll manufacturing income is recognised when services are rendered.

2.23  Financial expense and financial income

 Financial expenses are recognised using the effective interest rate method and comprise foreign currency losses and markup / 
interest expense on borrowings.

 Financial income comprises interest income on funds invested. Markup / interest income is recognised as it accrues in profit 
and loss account, using the effective interest rate method. 

 
2.24 Dividend 

 Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised as a liability in the period in which the dividends are approved.

2.25 Segment reporting
 
 Segment reporting is based on the operating (business) segments of the Company. An operating segment is a component of 

the Company that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and 
expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Company’s other components. An operating segment’s operating results 
are reviewed regularly by the Chief Executive Officer (the CEO) to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment 
and assess its performance, and for which discrete financial information is available.  

 Segment results that are reported to the CEO include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be 
allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated items comprise mainly corporate assets, income tax assets, liabilities and related 
income and expenditures. Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the year to acquire property, plant and 
equipment.

 The business segments are engaged in providing products or services which are subject to risks and rewards which differ from 
the risk and rewards of other segments. Segments reported are Polyester, Soda Ash, Life Sciences and Chemicals, which also 
reflects the management structure of the Company.  

2.26 Derivative financial instruments

 The Company uses derivative financial instruments to hedge its exposure to foreign exchange and interest rate risks arising from 
operational, financing and investment activities. In accordance with its treasury policy, the Company does not hold or issue 
derivative financial instruments for trading purposes. Derivatives qualifying for hedge accounting are accounted for accordingly 
whereas, derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are accounted for as held for trading instruments. All changes in 
the fair value are recognised in the profit and loss account.

 
2.27 Off-setting

 Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the unconsolidated financial statements only when 
there is, legally enforceable right to set-off the recognised amount and the Company intends either to settle on a net basis, or 
to realise the assets and to settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2014
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   Land  Lime beds               Buildings   Plant and  Railway  Rolling  Furniture  Total
  Freehold  Leasehold on freehold  On On  machinery sidings stock and and
       land  freehold  leasehold     vehicles equipment
       land land
   Note 3.3                 Note 3.3   Note 3.3 & 3.4  

  As at June 30, 2014

Net carrying value basis 

Opening net book value (NBV)  341,885   -    134,525  310,465   655,011  6,361,578   -    12,964  184,256   8,000,684 
Addition / transfer (at cost) - note 3.2.1  96,137   -    10,899   92,172   443,596  3,398,311   -    6,090  63,604   4,110,809 
Disposal / transfer (at NBV)  -     -     -     (30)  (260)  (16,045)  -    (4,700)  (555)  (21,590)
Adjustments (at NBV) - note 3.2.2  (1) (29) (15) (88,751)  86,752  (23,557)  -     26,778  (43,091)  (41,914)
Depreciation charge / reversal- note 3.5  -     29   (11,549)  (48,472) (105,012) (1,055,050)  -    (14,730) (57,199)  (1,291,983)

Closing net book value  438,021   -     133,860   265,384   1,080,087   8,665,237   -     26,402   147,015   10,756,006 
 
Gross carrying value basis 

Cost / revaluation  438,021  562,166  250,556   2,398,205  1,968,029  22,461,480   297  118,610  491,709  28,689,073 
Accumulated depreciation  -    (562,166)  (116,696)  (2,132,821)  (887,942) (13,796,243)  (297) (92,208)  (344,694) (17,933,067)

Closing net book value  438,021   -    133,860   265,384  1,080,087  8,665,237   -    26,402  147,015  10,756,006 
 
Depreciation rate % per annum  -     2 to 4   5 to 25   5 to 25   3 to 33.33   3.33 to 50   3.33    10 to 33.33   10 to 50 
 
  As at June 30, 2013

Net carrying value basis 

Opening net book value  341,885   -     127,434   325,586   683,958   6,438,018   -     21,010   199,598   8,137,489 
Addition / transfer (at cost)  -     -     12,534   8,993   14,383   354,349   -     400   14,311   404,970 
Disposal / transfer (at NBV)  -     -     -     -     (804)  (3,654)  -     (508)  (29)  (4,995)
Depreciation charge - note 3.5  -     -     (5,443)  (24,114)  (42,527)  (427,135)  -     (7,938)  (29,623)  (536,780)

Closing net book value  341,885   -    134,525  310,465  655,010  6,361,578   -     12,964  184,257  8,000,684 
 
Gross carrying value basis 

Cost / revaluation  341,885   567,799   239,657   2,429,974   1,470,646   19,238,452   297   90,333   591,211   24,970,254 
Accumulated depreciation  -     (567,799)  (105,132)  (2,119,509)  (815,636)  (12,876,874)  (297)  (77,369)  (406,954)  (16,969,570)

Closing net book value  341,885   -     134,525   310,465  655,010  6,361,578   -    12,964  184,257   8,000,684 

Depreciation rate % per annum  -     2 to 4      3.33 to 7.5   5 to 10    2.5 to 10   3.33 to 50   3.33   10 to 25     10 to 33.33  

 As at  As at
 June 30, June 30,
  2014 2013

Amounts in Rs ’000

3. Property, plant and equipment 

3.1 The following is a statement of property, plant and equipment: 

 Operating property, plant and equipment - note 3.2  10,756,006   8,000,684 

 Capital work-in-progress - note 3.7  896,051   2,549,354 

   11,652,057   10,550,038

 

3.2 The following is a statement of operating property, plant and equipment:

3.2.1 Additions to plant and machinery include interest charge on long-term loan obtained for coal fired boiler project amounting to 
Rs 231.406 million out of which an amount of Rs 95.406 million was incurred during the year ended June 30, 2014. 

 
3.2.2 During the year, the Company appointed a professional firm to conduct a physical verification exercise for reconciling physical 

fixed assets with the books of account. As per their recommendation, fixed assets having net book value of Rs. 27.213 million 
and Rs. 14.701 million have been written off and reclassified to intangible assets, respectively. 
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Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2014

Amounts in Rs ’000

 As at  As at
 June 30, June 30,
  2014 2013

 As at  As at
 June 30, June 30,
  2014 2013

3.2.3 Property, plant and equipment includes the following major spare parts and stand by equipment: 

 Cost  362,904   345,981 

 Net book value  194,844   205,170 

 
3.3 Subsequent to revaluations on October 1, 1959, September 30, 2000 and December 15, 2006 which had resulted in a surplus 

of Rs 14.207 million, Rs 1,569.869 million and Rs 667.967 million respectively, the land, buildings on freehold and leasehold 
land and plant and machinery were revalued again on December 31, 2011 resulting in a net surplus of  Rs 712.431 million, 
respectively. The valuation was conducted by an independent valuer. Valuations for plant and machinery and building were 
based on the estimated gross replacement cost, depreciated to reflect the residual service potential of the assets taking account 
of the age, condition and obsolescence. Land was valued on the basis of fair market value.

3.4 Plant and machinery including equipment held with Searle Pakistan Limited, Breeze Pharmaceutical Limited and Maple 
Pharmaceutical (Private) Limited (toll manufacturers), are as follows: 

 Cost  8,369   2,272 

 Net book value 5,638  1,099 

3.5 The depreciation charge for the year / period has been allocated as follows:  
 

 Cost of sales - note 26  1,229,818   507,147 

 Selling and distribution expenses - note 27  13,821   2,837 

 Administration and general expenses - note 28  48,344   26,796 

   1,291,983   536,780 

3.5.1 Depreciation charge is inclusive of the incremental depreciation due to revaluation.
 
3.6 Had there been no revaluation, the net book value of specific classes of operating property, plant and equipment would have 

amounted to: 

 Net book value 

 Freehold land  138,741   42,604 

 Buildings  1,218,076   806,312 

 Plant and machinery  8,246,802   5,868,447 

   9,603,619   6,717,363 

  For the For the 
   year six months 
  ended period ended
  June 30, 2014 June 30, 2013
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  As at June 30, 2014

   Mode of sale Cost Accumulated   Net book    Sale Particulars of buyers 
     depreciation value proceeds 

 Plant and machinery 

 Refractory, Panelmate and   Scrap 30,470 14,125 16,345 1,301 Shahbaz and Company,
 various other assets      Malakwal District Mandi 
       Bahauddin 

 Rolling stock and vehicles 

 Audi and Fork lift trucks Auction  6,440   1,739   4,701   5,343  Mr. Azfar Abbas Ashary, 
       Karachi 

 Building 

 Civil Work Lime Stone Storage  Scrap  2,877   2,648   229   20  Shahbaz and Company,
       Malakwal District Mandi 
       Bahauddin 

                        As at June 30, 2013

 Plant and machinery 

 Diesel Generator Set and  Scrap  16,594   13,333   3,261   1,037  Shahbaz and Company, 
 various other items      Malakwal district Mandi
        Bahauddin 

 Rolling stock and vehicles 

 Toyota Corolla, Toyota Altis  Auction  2,600   2,092   508   2,470  S Muhammad Shakeel, 
 and Fork lift trucks      Mr. Zahid Qadri and 
       Mr. Asif Mahmood, Karachi

 Building 
 Scrap items Scrap  2,930   2,274   656   10  Anjum Wood Craft,  
       Khewra District Jhelum 

Amounts in Rs ’000

 As at  As at
 June 30, June 30,
  2014 2013

3.7 Capital work-in-progress comprises of: 

   Civil works and buildings  270,916   290,318 

   Plant and machinery  549,576   1,940,263 

   Miscellaneous equipment  44,606   235,219 

   Advances to suppliers / contractors  19,013   14,189 

   Designing, consultancy and engineering fee  11,940   69,365 

   896,051   2,549,354 

 This includes interest charged during the  period ended June 30, 2013 in respect of long-term loan obtained for coal fired boiler 
project amounting to Rs 136 million which has been transferred to operating property, plant and equipment during the year. 

3.7.1 The following is the movement in capital work-in-progress during the year / period 
 

 Balance at the beginning of the year / period  2,549,354   1,984,221 

 Addition during the year / period  2,409,836   970,103 

   4,959,190   2,954,324 

 

 Transferred to property plant and equipment during the year / period  (4,063,139)  (404,970)

 Balance at the end of the year / period  896,051   2,549,354 
 
3.8 Details of operating property, plant and equipment disposals having net book value in excess of Rs 50,000 are as follows: 
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4 Intangible assets 

   As at June 30, 2014 

  Software Licenses  Total 

 

 Net carrying value basis

 Opening net book value (NBV)  11,754  33,369   45,123 

 Addition / transfer (at cost)   -    51,303   51,303 

 Adjustments (at NBV) - note  4.1  10,900  3,692   14,592 

 Amortisation charge - note 4.2  (12,286)  (34,471)  (46,757)

 Closing net book value  10,368   53,893   64,261 

 

 Gross carrying amount 

 Cost  172,187  188,546   360,733 

 Accumulated amortisation  (161,819) (134,653)  (296,472)

 Net book value  10,368   53,893   64,261 

 Rate of amortisation % per annum 20  20 to 50  

 

   As at June 30, 2013 

 Net carrying value basis 

 Opening net book value  19,115   21,877   40,992 

 Additions (at cost)  -     25,042   25,042 

 Amortisation charge - note 4.2  (7,361)  (13,550)  (20,911)

 Closing net book value  11,754  33,369   45,123 

 

 Gross carrying amount 

 Cost  230,213   128,459   358,672 

 Accumulated amortisation  (218,459)  (95,090)  (313,549)

 Net book value  11,754   33,369   45,123 

 Rate of amortisation % per annum 20 20 to 50 

 

4.1 As explained in note 3.2.2, assets having net book value of Rs. 14.701 million and Rs. 0.109 million have been reclassified 

from tangible assets and written off, respectively. 

 

4.2 The amortisation charge for the year / period has been allocated as follows: 
 

 Cost of sales - note 26  13,614   4,460 

 Selling and distribution expenses - note 27  1,948   4,485 

 Administration and general expenses - note 28  31,195   11,966 

   46,757  20,911 

 

Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2014

Amounts in Rs ’000

  For the For the 
   year six months 
  ended period ended
  June 30, 2014 June 30, 2013
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5. Long-term investments 
 
 Unquoted - at cost 
 Subsidiary 
   – ICI Pakistan PowerGen Limited (wholly owned)  
      7,100,000 ordinary shares (June 30, 2013: 7,100,000) of Rs 100 each - note 5.1  710,000   710,000 
 Less: Provision for impairment loss - note 5.2  209,524   209,524 
   500,476   500,476 
 Others 
 Equity security available-for-sale 
   – Arabian Sea Country Club Limited  
       250,000 ordinary shares (June 30, 2013: 250,000) of Rs 10 each  2,500   2,500
   502,976   502,976 

5.1 As of the balance sheet date, the value of the Company's investment on the basis of net assets of ICI Pakistan PowerGen 
Limited (the Subsidiary) as disclosed in its audited financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2014 amounted to 
Rs. 773.149 million (June 30, 2013: Rs 640.265 million). 

 
5.2 In 2011, the Company reviewed the future economic benefits of the Subsidiary based on its estimated future cash flows. The 

recoverable amount of investment was estimated based on its discounted value-in-use. Based on the assessment, the carrying 
amount of investment was determined to be Rs 209.524 million higher than the recoverable amount. However, based on current 
assessment no provision or reversal is required in the current year. 

6. Long-term loans 

 Considered good 

 Due from directors, executives and employees - note 6.1  253,477   199,063 
 
6.1 Due from directors, executives and employees 
  Motor car House Total  Total 
   building 

 Due from directors and executives - note 6.2, 6.3 & 6.4  144,973   57,761   202,734   184,494 
 Less: Receivable within one year - note 11  27,266   25,745   53,011   46,329 
   117,707   32,016   149,723  138,165 

 Due from employees - note 6.3  126,390   84,410 
 Less: Receivable within one year - note 11  22,636   23,512 
   103,754  60,898 
   253,477  199,063 

 Outstanding for period: 
   - less than three years but over one year  161,338   111,691 
   - more than three years  92,139   87,372 
   253,477  199,063 

6.2 Reconciliation of the carrying amount of loans to directors and executives: 
 Balance at the beginning of the year / period  184,494   179,498 
 Disbursements during the year / period  123,414   46,528 
 Repayments during the year / period  (105,174)  (41,532)
 Balance at the end of the year / period  202,734   184,494 
 
6.3 Loans for purchase of motor cars and house building are repayable between two to ten years. These loans are interest free 

and granted to the employees including executives of the Company in accordance with their terms of employment.  
6.4 The maximum aggregate amount of loans due from the directors and executives at the end of any month during the year was 

Rs 202.734 million (June 30, 2013: Rs 184.494 million).

Amounts in Rs ’000

 As at  As at
 June 30, June 30,
  2014 2013
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7. Long-term deposits and prepayments 

 Deposits  25,679   24,632 
 Prepayments  2,164   8,706 
   27,843   33,338 

8. Stores, spares and consumables 

 Stores - note 8.1  34,912   47,826 
 Spares  608,509   594,216 
 Consumables  100,570   101,377 
   743,991   743,419 
 Less: Provision for slow moving and obsolete spares - note 8.2  184,735   184,683 
   559,256   558,736 
 
8.1 The above amounts include stores and spares in transit of Rs. 15.625 million (June 30, 2013: Rs. 19.355 million) 
 
8.2 Movement of Provision for slow moving and obsolete spares is as follows: 

 Balance at the beginning of the year / period  184,683   184,683 
 Charge for the year / period - note 28  154   -   
 Write-off during the year / period  (102)  -   
 Balance at the end of the year / period  184,735  184,683 

9. Stock-in-trade 
 
 Raw and packing material (include in-transit Rs 791.619 million;  2,348,115   2,084,788 
   2013: Rs 740.76 million) - note 9.3 
 Work-in-process  165,341   232,841 
 Finished goods (include in-transit Rs 137.44 million,  
   2013: Rs. 343.754 million)  2,166,884   2,348,788 
   4,680,340  4,666,417 
 Less: Provision for slow moving and obsolete stock-in-trade - note 9.1 
   - Raw material   8,771   15,461 
   - Finished goods  88,937   77,681 
   97,708  93,142 
   4,582,632  4,573,275 

9.1 Movement of Provision for slow moving and obsolete stock-in-trade is as follows: 

 Balance at the beginning of the year / period  93,142   88,428 
 Charge for the year / period - note 28  12,389   8,231 
 Reversal during the year / period  (6,890)  -   
 Write-off during the year / period  (933)  (3,517)
 Balance at the end of the year / period  97,708  93,142 
 
9.2 Stock amounting to Rs 28.801 million (June 30, 2013: Rs 364.413 million) is measured at net realisable value and impairment 

has been reversed by Rs 20.529 million (June 30, 2013: impairment charge of Rs 17.354 million) to arrive at its net realisable 
value.  

 As at  As at
 June 30, June 30,
  2014 2013

Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2014

Amounts in Rs ’000
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9.3 Raw and packing materials held with the toll manufacturers are as follows: 

 Searle Pakistan Limited  349,019   305,766 
 Maple Pharmaceutical (Private) Limited  2,064   1,934 
 EPLA Laboratories (Private) Limited  10,031   46,258 
 Breeze Pharma (Private) Limited  20,811   33,831 
 NovaMed Pharmaceuticals (Private) Ltd   18,002   25,308 
 BioGenics Pakistan (Private) Limited  1,551   -   
 Seeds Sahiwal warehouses  21,777   1,597 
   423,255   414,694 

10. Trade debts 

 Considered good   
    - Secured  135,393   262,319 
    - Unsecured   892,385   744,260 
   1,027,778  1,006,579 
 Considered doubtful  93,664   94,802 
   1,121,442  1,101,381 
 Less: Provision for: 
    - Doubtful debts - note 40.4  93,664   94,802 
    - Discounts payable on sales  169,431   140,889 
   263,095   235,691 
  note 10.1  858,347   865,690 
 
10.1 The above balances include amounts due from the following associated undertakings which are neither past due nor impaired:  

 
    Yunus Textile Mills Limited  26,397   17,496 
    Lucky Textile Mills Limited  1,162   10,657 
    Lucky Knits (Private) Limited  3,340   730 
    ICI Pakistan PowerGen Limited  371   627 
   31,270   29,510 

11. Loans and advances 

 Considered good 
 Loans due from: 
    Directors and executives - note 6.1  53,011   46,329 
    Employees - note 6.1  22,636   23,512 
   75,647  69,841 
 Advances to: 
    Directors and executives - note 11.1  14,241   7,270 
    Employees  276   263 
    Contractors and suppliers  95,368   75,815 
    Others  5,589   5,527 
   115,474  88,875 
   191,121  158,716 
 Considered doubtful  7,292   7,292 
   198,413  166,008 
 Less: Provision for doubtful loans and advances - note 40.4  7,292   7,292 
   191,121  158,716 
 
11.1 The maximum aggregate amount of advances due from the directors and executives at the end of any month during the year 

was Rs 3.221 million and  Rs 14.037 million (Six months period ended June 30, 2013: Rs 2.585 million and Rs 10.619 million) 
respectively.

Amounts in Rs ’000

 As at  As at
 June 30, June 30,
  2014 2013
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12. Trade deposits and short-term prepayments 

 Trade deposits  25,803   16,960 
 Short-term prepayments   180,972   139,552 
   206,775   156,512 

13. Other receivables 
 
 Considered good 
 Duties, sales tax and octroi refunds due  243,107   351,163 
 Commission and discounts receivable  22,612   21,784 
 Interest income receivable  8,214   10,231 
 Receivable from principal - note 13.2  1,068,427   710,600 
 Others  78,434   3,045 
   1,420,794  1,096,823 
 
 Considered doubtful  20,237   57,312 
   1,441,031  1,154,135 
 
 Less: Provision for doubtful receivables - note 13.3  20,237   57,312 
  note - 13.1  1,420,794   1,096,823 
 
13.1 This amount includes Rs Nil (June 30, 2013: Rs 23.36 million) on account of exchange gain / loss on forward exchange contracts. 
 
13.2 This includes receivable amounting to Rs. 1,019.8 million (June 30, 2013: Rs. 710.6 million) from a foreign vendor in relation 

to margin support guarantee. 

13.3 Movement of provision for doubtful receivables 
 
 Balance at the beginning of the year / period  57,312   57,312 
 Reversal during the year / period  (37,075)  -   
 Balance at the end of the year / period  20,237   57,312 

 
14. Cash and bank balances 
 
 Cash at banks : 
    - Short-term deposits - note 14.1  103,000   102,000 
    - Current accounts  741,738   360,120 
 In hand: 
    - Cheques  -     261,159 
    - Cash  7,357   7,070 
   852,095  730,349 
 
14.1 Represent security deposits from customer that are placed with various banks with terms ranging from one week to one year. 

The mark-up on these deposits ranges between 8.00% to 9.00% (June 30, 2013: 9.50% to 11.50%) and these term deposits 
are readily encashable without any penalty. 

 As at  As at
 June 30, June 30,
  2014 2013

Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2014

Amounts in Rs ’000
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  83,734,062   83,734,062  Ordinary shares of Rs 10 each fully paid in cash     837,341   837,341 

   Ordinary shares of Rs 10 each issued as  
      fully paid for consideration other than cash under 
  211,925   211,925    scheme of arrangement for amalgamation (note 15.1)  2,119   2,119 

   Ordinary shares of Rs 10 each issued as 
  16,786   16,786    fully paid bonus shares  168   168 

   Ordinary shares issued pursuant to the  
     previous scheme as fully paid for consideration of 
  8,396,277   8,396,277    investment in associate (note 15.2)  83,963   83,963 

  92,359,050   92,359,050    923,591   923,591 
 
15.1 The process for amalgamation of three companies namely Paintex Limited, ICI Pakistan Manufacturers Limited and Imperial 

Chemical Industries Limited resulted in a new company as ICI Pakistan Limited on April 1, 1987. 
 
15.2 With effect from October 1, 2000 the Pure Terephthalic Acid (PTA) Business of the Company was demerged under a scheme 

of arrangement dated December 12, 2000 approved by the shareholders and sanctioned by the High Court of Sindh. 
 
15.3 On December 28, 2012, Lucky Holdings Limited acquired from ICI Omicron B.V. its entire shareholding of 70,019,459 shares 

in ICI Pakistan Limited, besides acquiring 111,698 additional shares by way of public offer made by it to all the shareholders 
of the Company in pursuance of the provisions of the Listed Companies (Substantial Acquisition of Voting Shares & Take-overs), 
Ordinance, 2002 and the Listed Companies (Substantial Acquisition of Voting Shares & Take-overs) Regulations, 2008. Thus, 
Lucky Holdings Limited became the holding company, and Lucky Cement Limited became the ultimate holding company of 
ICI Pakistan Limited with effect from December 28, 2012. Along with Lucky Holdings Limited, two other companies of the 
Yunus Brothers Group namely, Gadoon Textile Mills Limited and  Lucky Textile Mills Limited also participated in the public offer 
thereby acquiring 5,980,917 shares and 5,077,180 shares respectively. As at the balance sheet date, Lucky Cement Limited 
together with the group companies held 87.33% (June 30, 2013: 87.79%) shareholding.  

 
 
16. Capital reserves 
 
 Share premium - note 16.1  309,057   309,057 
 Capital receipts - note 16.2  586   586 
   309,643   309,643 
 
16.1 Share premium includes the premium amounting to Rs 0.902 million received on shares issued for the Company's Polyester 

Plant installation in 1980 and share premium of Rs 464.357 million representing the difference between nominal value of Rs 
10 per share of 12,618,391 ordinary shares issued by the Company and the market value of Rs 590.541 million of these shares 
corresponding to 25% holding acquired in Lotte Pakistan PTA Limited, an ex-associate, at the date of acquisition i.e. November 
2, 2001 and the number of shares that have been issued were determined in accordance with the previous scheme in the ratio 
between market value of the shares of two companies based on the mean of the middle market quotation of the Karachi Stock 
Exchange over the ten trading days between October 22, 2001 to November 2, 2001.

 With effect from July 1, 2011, the capital reserves were split between the Company and Akzo Nobel Pakistan Limited based 
on 66.54:33.46 ratio which was disclosed in the audited special purpose financial statements for the six months period ended 
June 30, 2011. 

 
16.2  Capital receipts represent the amount received from various ICI plc group companies overseas for the purchase of property, 

plant and equipment. The remitting companies have no claim to their repayments. 

Amounts in Rs ’000

15. Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital

 As at  As at As at  As at
 June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30,
  2014 2013 2014 2013
 (Numbers)
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    2014    2013 
   Funded  Unfunded  Funded   Unfunded 
  Pension Gratuity Total  Pension Gratuity Total  Restated 

18.1.1 The amounts recognised in the profit and loss account against defined benefit schemes are as follows: 
 
 Current service cost  17,153   32,322   49,475   3,291   11,998   20,760   32,758   1,368 
 Interest cost  102,896   54,286   157,182   8,118   63,871   34,764   98,635   3,904 
 Expected return on plan assets  (127,167)  (37,245)  (164,412)  -     (64,311)  (18,406)  (82,717)  -   
 Past service cost  -     10,115   10,115   (10,115)  -     -     -     -   
 Net (reversal) / charge for the year / period  (7,118)  59,478   52,360   1,294  11,558  37,118  48,676   5,272 

 Other comprehensive income: 
 (Gain) / loss on obligation  7,112   21,574   28,686   5,677   (95,577) (98,995)  (194,572)  7,517 
 (Gain) on plan assets  (75,645)  (11,632)  (87,277)  -     (95,884) (30,553) (126,437)  -   
 Net (gain) / loss  (68,533)  9,942   (58,591)  5,677  (191,461) (129,548) (321,009)  7,517 
 
18.1.2 Movement in the net assets / (liability) recognised in the balance sheet are as follows: 
 
 Opening balance  225,777   (190,112)  35,665   (79,678)  (29,126)  (302,098)  (331,224)  (72,147)
 Net reversal / (charge) - note 18.1.1  7,118   (59,478)  (52,360)  (1,294)  (11,558)  (37,118)  (48,676)  (5,272)
 Other comprehensive income  68,533   (9,942)  58,591   (5,677)  191,461   129,548   321,009   (7,517)
 Contributions / payments during the year / period  -     62,798   62,798   8,807   75,000   19,556   94,556   5,258 
 Closing balance  301,428   (196,734)  104,694   (77,842)  225,777   (190,112)  35,665   (79,678)
 
18.1.3 The amounts recognised in the balance sheet are as follows: 
 
 Fair value of plan assets - note 18.1.5  1,274,962   379,191   1,654,153   -    1,293,746  362,228  1,655,974   -   
 Present value of defined benefit obligation - note 18.1.4  (973,534)  (575,925)  (1,549,459) (77,842)  (1,067,969) (552,340) (1,620,309)  (79,678)
 Surplus / (deficit)  301,428   (196,734)  104,694  (77,842)  225,777  (190,112)  35,665   (79,678)
 
 The recognized asset / liability of funded gratuity is netted off against recognized asset / liability of funded pension and recorded accordingly. 
 
18.1.4 Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligation: 
 
 Opening balance  1,067,969   552,340   1,620,309   79,678   1,194,618   646,506   1,841,124   72,147 
 Current service cost  17,153   32,322   49,475   3,291   11,998   20,760   32,758   1,368 
 Interest cost  102,896   54,286   157,182   8,118   63,871   34,764   98,635   3,904 
 Benefits paid  (221,596)  (94,712)  (316,308)  (8,807)  (106,941)  (50,695)  (157,636)  (5,258)
 Actuarial loss / (gain)  7,112   21,574   28,686   5,677   (95,577)  (98,995)  (194,572)  7,517 
 Past service cost  -     10,115   10,115   (10,115)  -     -     -     -   

 Closing balance  973,534   575,925   1,549,459   77,842   1,067,969   552,340   1,620,309   79,678 
 
18.1.5 Movement in the fair value of plan assets: 
 
 Opening balance  1,293,746   362,228   1,655,974   -     1,165,492   344,408   1,509,900   -   
 Expected return  127,167   37,245   164,412   -     64,311   18,406   82,717   -   
 Contributions  -     62,798   62,798   -     75,000   19,556   94,556   -   
 Benefits paid  (221,596)  (94,712)  (316,308)  -     (106,941)  (50,695)  (157,636)  -   
 Actuarial gain  75,645   11,632   87,277   -     95,884   30,553   126,437   -   

 Closing balance  - note 18.1.7  1,274,962   379,191   1,654,153   -    1,293,746   362,228   1,655,974   -   
 

17. Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment 
 
 Balance at the beginning of the year / period  698,536   740,656 
 Adjustment due to change in tax rate - note 20.1  21,042   -   
 Transferred to unappropriated profit in respect of incremental depreciation

  during the year / period - net of deferred tax  (80,206)  (42,120)

 Balance at the end of the year / period  639,372   698,536 

18. Provisions for non-management staff gratuity 77,842   79,678 

18.1 Staff retirement benefits   

 The amount recognized in the profit and loss account against defined benefit scheme for the year / period is as follows:

 As at  As at
 June 30, June 30,
  2014 2013

Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2014

Amounts in Rs ’000
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18.1.6 Historical information *    June 30  December 31 

     2014  2013   2012   2011   2010  

 Present value of defined benefit obligation     1,627,301   1,699,987   2,264,010   2,337,261   2,483,046 
 Fair value of plan assets     (1,654,153)  (1,655,974)  (1,509,900)  (1,581,574)  (1,771,477) 

 (Surplus) / deficit      (26,852)  44,013   754,110  755,687   711,569
 
 * Prior year figures are inclusive of staff retirement benefits of Paints business (2010). 
 
18.1.7 Major categories / composition of plan assets are as follows:       2014 2013 

 Debt instruments       68.77% 69.00%

 Equity at market value       28.70% 28.00% 

 Cash       2.53% 3.00%

 Fair value of plan asset 
      Pension Gratuity Pension Gratuity

    As at June 30, 2014 As at June 30, 2013 

 Investment
 National savings deposits       181,164   -     526,012   82,250 
 Government bonds       667,896   283,066   339,014   172,385 
 Corporate bonds       -     6,936   9,431   8,137 
 Shares       406,635   67,586   392,450   70,317 
 Cash       19,267   21,603   26,839   29,139 

 Total       1,274,962   379,191   1,293,746  362,228 
 
 Mortality of active employees and pensioners is represented by the LIC (96-98) table. The table has been rated down three years for mortality of female pensioners and widows. 

 Actual return on plan assets during 2014 was Rs 251.689 million (June 30, 2013: Rs 209.154 million).

18.1.8 The principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date were as follows: 
        2014 2013

 Discount rate       12.75% 10.75% 

 Future salary increases - Management       10.50% 8.75%

 Future salary increases - Non-management       8.00% 6.00%

 Future pension increases       7.50% 6.00%
 
18.1.9 Impact of changes in assumptions on defined benefit scheme is as follows: 
 
 Assumption         1% Increase   1 % Decrease   

 Discount rate        (85,297)  95,249  

 Salary increase        62,203   (56,918) 

 Pension increase        35,272   (31,726)
 
18.1.10 The Company contributed Rs 62.166 million (June 30, 2013: Rs 31.347 million) and Rs 44.950 million (June 30, 2013: Rs 21.246 million) to the provident fund and the defined contribution 

superannuation fund respectively during the year.
        As at June  As at June

       30, 2014  30, 2013
        (Unaudited) (Unaudited)

18.2 Provident fund 
 
 Size of the fund  (net assets)        1,269,506   1,234,564 

 Cost of investments made (actual investments made)        1,127,747   1,062,906 

 Percentage of investments made (cost of investments)       89% 86%

 Fair value of investments         1,192,093   1,196,650 
 
18.2.1 Break-up of investments of provident fund 
 
 Break-up of investments in terms of amount and percentage of the size of the provident fund are as follows: 

    As at June 30, 2014 As at June 30, 2013 
     (Unaudited) (Unaudited)

        Investments % of  Investments % of 
       investment   investment 
       as size of   as size of 
       the fund   the fund  

 On fair value
 Pakistan Investment Bonds      854,999  72%  518,722  44%
 Treasury Bill      49,604  4%  170,814  14%
 Regular Income Certificates      -    0%  222,300  19%
 Mutual Funds       81,682  7%  76,867  6%
 Shares      196,142  16%  195,654  16%
 Term Finance Certificates      9,666  1%  12,293  1%

       1,192,093  100%  1,196,650  100%
 
 Investments out of provident fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of section 227 of the Companies Ordinance, 1984 and the rules formulated for this purpose. 

Amounts in Rs ’000
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19 Long-term loans  2,314,805   1,887,026 
 
19.1 From banking companies / financial institutions: 
   - Faysal Bank Limited   343,591   343,591 
   - Habib Bank Limited   543,435   543,435 
   887,026  887,026 
 
 The Company has obtained Long-Term Finance Facility (LTFF) for imported and locally manufactured plant and machinery from 

Faysal Bank Limited of Rs 343.591 million (limit: Rs 500 million) and Habib Bank Limited of Rs 543.435 million (limit: Rs 1,000 
million) for a period of 7 years (including 2 years grace period), with the principal payable on semi annual basis. The mark-up 
is chargeable at fixed rate ranging from 9.65% to 9.85% payable on quarterly basis. These facilities are secured against first 
pari passu hypothecation charge on the Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) of the Company's Soda Ash Business located 
at Khewra. The loans have been refinanced by the State Bank of Pakistan under LTFF for Export Oriented Projects. 

 
19.2 Islamic Term Finance 

 From banking companies / financial institutions: 
   -Standard Chartered Bank (Pakistan) Limited  800,000   1,000,000 
   -Less: Current portion of Long-Term Finance  400,000   -   
   400,000   1,000,000 
 
 The Company had obtained long-term finance of Rs 1,000 million in June 2013 from Standard Chartered Bank (Pakistan) 

Limited under Islamic Diminishing Musharakah upto a limit of Rs 1,000 million for a period of 3 years (including 6 months grace 
period).  Repayments of Rs. 200 million were made during the current year. The rental payment is charged at relevant KIBOR 
plus 0.25% p.a. payable on semi annual basis. This facility is initially secured by a ranking charge to be subsequently replaced 
by a first pari passu hypothecation charge on the present and future fixed assets of the Company's Polyester Business located 
at Sheikhupura. 

 
   -Meezan Bank Limited  500,000   -   
   -Less: Current portion of Long-Term Finance  222,222   -   
   277,778   -   
 
 During the year, the Company has obtained long-term finance of Rs 500 million from Meezan Bank Limited under Islamic 

Diminishing Musharakah upto a limit of Rs 500 million for a period of 3 years (including 9 months grace period). The rental 
payment is charged at relevant KIBOR plus 0.25% p.a. payable on a quarterly basis. This facility is initially secured by a ranking 
charge to be subsequently replaced by a first pari passu hypothecation charge on the present and future plant, machinery and 
equipment of the Company's Soda Ash Business located at Khewra. 

 
   -Allied Bank Limited  1,000,000   -   
   -Less: Current portion of Long-Term Loan  249,999   -   
   750,001   -   
 
 During the year, the Company has obtained long-term loan for Rs 1,000 million from Allied Bank Limited upto a limit of Rs 

1,000 million for a period of 4 years (including 1 year grace period).  The rental payment is charged at relevant KIBOR plus 
0.25% p.a. payable on a quarterly basis. This facility is secured by a first pari passu hypothecation charge on the present and 
future Plant, Machinery and Equipment of the Company's Soda Ash Business located at Khewra. 

 As at  As at
 June 30, June 30,
  2014 2013
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   As at June 30, 2014   As at June 30, 2013 
  Opening Charge /  Closing Opening Charge   Closing

  (Reversal) 

20 Deferred tax liability - net     
   
 Deductible temporary differences     
 Provisions for retirement benefits,     
   doubtful debts and others  (301,666)  42,298   (259,368)  (330,076)  28,410   (301,666)
 Retirement fund provision routed through 
   other comprehensive income  (93,508)  28,276   (65,232)  (211,393)  117,885   (93,508)

 Taxable temporary differences     
 Property, plant and equipment - note 20.1  1,496,285   (77,967)  1,418,318   1,421,819   74,466   1,496,285 
   1,101,111   (7,393)  1,093,718   880,350   220,761   1,101,111 
      
20.1 Reversal during the year includes Rs. 21.042 million (June 30, 2013: Rs. Nil) adjusted in surplus on revaluation of property, 

plant and equipment on account of change in tax rate.

   
 
 
21 Trade and other payables

 Trade creditors - note 21.1 & 21.1.1  1,717,081   741,283 
 Bills payable  2,338,246   2,113,695 
 Excise and custom duties  3,959   3,964 
 Mark-up accrued 58,454   28,465 
 Accrued interest on expansion project - note 21.2 3,152   38,733 
 Accrued expenses 966,337   830,788 
 Technical service fee / royalty - note 21.3  23,686   680 
 Workers' profit participation fund - note 21.4 107,446   61,635 
 Workers' welfare fund  43,797   49,081 
 Distributors' security deposits - payable on termination of distributorship - note 21.5 106,142   118,888 
 Contractors' earnest / retention money  9,808   9,550 
 Running account with customers - note 21.6 223,874   118,086 
 Unclaimed dividends 48,693   45,982 
 Payable for capital expenditure 328,317   252,931 
 Accrual for compensated absences - note 21.7 31,249   31,249 
 Payable to ICI Pakistan PowerGen Limited (the Subsidiary) 129,519   102,057 
 Others 124,905   187,749 
   6,264,665   4,734,816 
  
21.1 This includes an amount of Rs 344.692 million (June 30, 2013: Rs 101.84 million) payable to ICI Pakistan PowerGen Limited, 

a related party on account of purchase of electricity.   
  

21.1.1 This amount includes Rs Nil (June 30, 2013: Rs 1.17 million) on account of exchange loss on forward exchange contracts.     

21.2 This liability pertains to financing obtained for Coal Fired Boiler project. Interest charged on the finance facilities is capitalised 
as part of plant and machinery.   
  

21.3 This amount includes Rs 23.008 million (June 30, 2013: Rs Nil) on account of royalty payable to Lucky Holdings Limited, the 
holding company. 

 As at  As at
 June 30, June 30,
  2014 2013
  Restated

Amounts in Rs ’000
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21.4 Workers' profit participation fund   
  

 Balance at the beginning of the year / period 61,635   75,192 
 Allocation for the year / period - note 29 104,422   54,195   

  166,057   129,387 
 Interest on funds utilised in the Company's businesses

  at 41.25 % (2013: 41.25 %) per annum  - note 30 3,049   2,248 

 Less: Payment to the fund 61,660   70,000 
 Balance at the end of the year / period 107,446   61,635 
   
21.5 Interest on security deposits from certain distributors is payable at 8.8 % (June 30, 2013: 11.2 %) per annum as specified in 

the respective agreements.   
  

21.6 Included herein are amounts due to the following associated undertakings:

   Gadoon Textile Mills 27,910   2,891 
   Yunus Textile Mills 197   -   
   Fazal Textile Mills 764   249 
  28,871   3,140 

21.7 This figure is based on actuarial valuation and estimation.

22 Short-term borrowings and running finance - note 22.1, 22.2, 22.3 & 22.4  437,368   2,654,549 
 
 Short-term borrowings and running finance facility from various banks aggregated to Rs 4,921 million (June 30, 2013: Rs 4,715 

million) and carry mark-up during the year ranging from relevant KIBOR + 0.20% to 1.00% per annum with an average mark-up 
rate of relevant KIBOR + 0.20% as at June 30, 2014 on utilized limits (June 30, 2013: relevant KIBOR + 0.40% to 0.75% per 
annum with an average mark-up rate of relevant KIBOR + 0.43% on utilized limits). These facilities are secured by hypothecation 
charge over the present and future stock-in-trade and book debts of the Company. 

 
22.1 Short-term borrowings - secured  -     2,126,000 
 
 There are no short term borrowings utilized at the balance sheet date (June 30, 2013: Rs. 2,126 million at relevant KIBOR + 

0.20% to 0.40%) 
 
22.2 Foreign currency loan against import finance  267,368   -   
 
 The above foreign currency loan carry mark-up at relevant LIBOR + bank's spread which is decided at the time of disbursement 

(June 30, 2013: NIL). 
 
22.3 Export refinance  170,000   130,000 
 
 The Company has export refinance facility of upto Rs. 200 million (June 30, 2013: Rs. 200 million) available from Faysal Bank 

Limited as at June 30, 2014 out of which Rs 170 million was utilized (June 30, 2013: Rs. 130 million). The above export refinance 
facility is  secured by  first pari passu hypothecation charge. The export refinance facility carries mark-up at State Bank of 
Pakistan (SBP) rate (currently 8.40%) + 0.25% per annum (June 30, 2013: SBP rate 8.4% + 0.25% per annum). 

 
22.4 Short-term running finance - secured  -     398,549  

 As at  As at
 June 30, June 30,
  2014 2013
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 As at  As at
 June 30, June 30,
  2014 2013

23 Contingencies and Commitments 
 
23.1 Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts are as follows: 
 
 Local bodies - note 23.1.1  32,261   12,735 
 Others  36,616   28,288 
   68,877   41,023 
 
23.1.1 The Company was served notice by Punjab Employees Social Security Institution’s (PESSI) local office Shahdara, dated 

November 24, 1997 on Polyester Plant for alleged non payment of Rs 11.96 million on account of social security contribution 
on the basis of assessment made by the PESSI for the period 1996 and 1997, on behalf of contractors’ workers (M/s Descon 
Engineering Limited) engaged for Expansion Project. The Company challenged the notice and filed an appeal with Vice 
Commissioner Social Security Institution and also filled petition in High Court Lahore on July 20, 2012, along with stay application, 
the court granted stay order on July 25, 2012. The outcome of the case cannot be determined yet. 

 
23.2 Also refer note 43 to these unconsolidated financial statements for income tax contingencies. 
 
23.3 Guarantee issued by the Company of Rs Nil (June 30, 2013: Rs 133 million) to a bank on behalf of its subsidiary ICI Pakistan 

PowerGen Limited for availing funded facility.
 
23.4 Commitments in respect of capital expenditure (including coal fired boiler project of the Soda Ash business and coal fired steam 

turbine project of the Polyester business) amounted to Rs 1,168.636 million (June 30, 2013: Rs 541.987 million). 

23.5 During the year, ICI Pakistan Limited committed an equity investment of Rs. 960 million in the Morinaga Business, to be jointly 
operated by ICI Pakistan and Unibrands (Pvt.) Ltd under a newly formed company namely NutriCo Pakistan (Pvt.) Limited 
through signing of shareholders and share subscription agreements with Unibrands. This joint venture entails a total equity 
investment of Rs. 960 million by ICI to acquire 40% equity in NutriCo in up to three tranches. Subsequent to the balance sheet 
date, the Company has paid Rs. 360 million in this respect.

 
23.6 Commitments for rentals under operating lease / Ijarah contracts in respect of vehicles amounting to Rs 153.912 million (June 

30, 2013: Rs 132.995 million) are as follows: 
 
 Year 
 2014  -     54,462 
 2015  61,657   43,304 
 2016  48,649   26,216 
 2017  34,403   9,013 
 2018  9,203   -   
   153,912   132,995 
 
 Payable not later than one year  61,657   54,462 
 Payable later than one year but not later than five years  92,255   78,533 
   153,912  132,995 

23.7 Outstanding foreign exchange contracts as at June 30, 2014 entered into by the Company amounted Rs Nil (June 30, 2013: 
Rs 1,166.117 million).

Amounts in Rs ’000
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24. Operating segment results
 
  Polyester Soda Ash Life Sciences Chemicals  Company 
  For the  For the six  For the  For the six For the  For the six For the  For the six For the  For the six

 year months  year months year months year months year months
 ended period ended ended period ended ended period ended ended period ended ended period ended

  June 30,  June 30, June 30,  June 30, June 30,  June 30, June 30,  June 30, June 30,  June 30, 
 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013

 Sales 

   Afghanistan  -     -     7,750   4,664   -     699   2,358   1,928   10,108   7,291 

   India  -     -     497,500   181,003   -     -     -     -     497,500   181,003 

   United Arab Emirates  -     -     -     -     -     -     50,410   7,861   50,410   7,861 

   Others  -     8,233   -     -     -     -     -     -     -     8,233 

   -     8,233   505,250   185,667   -     699   52,768   9,789   558,018   204,388 

   Inter-segment  -     -     -     -     -     -     5,857   9,785   5,857   9,785 

   Local  19,667,433   9,701,479   10,427,943   4,683,715   7,504,584   3,383,635   4,479,076   2,125,869   42,079,036   19,894,698 

   19,667,433   9,709,712   10,933,193   4,869,382   7,504,584   3,384,334   4,537,701   2,145,443   42,642,911   20,108,871 

 Commission / 

  toll income  -     -     -     -     -     -     61,605   34,891   61,605   34,891 

 Turnover  19,667,433   9,709,712   10,933,193   4,869,382   7,504,584   3,384,334   4,599,306   2,180,334   42,704,516   20,143,762 

 Sales tax  385,692   126,708   1,518,523   645,513   40,978   9,189   479,680   215,631   2,424,873   997,041 

 Commission and 

  discounts to 

  distributors and 

  customers  439,358   126,914   425,196   137,643   859,787   424,271   315,968   132,430   2,040,309   821,258 

   825,050   253,622   1,943,719   783,156   900,765   433,460   795,648   348,061   4,465,182   1,818,299 

 Net sales, 
  commission 
  & toll income  18,842,383   9,456,090   8,989,474   4,086,226   6,603,819   2,950,874   3,803,658   1,832,273   38,239,334   18,325,463 

 Cost of sales - 
note 26  19,066,559   9,442,026   6,622,359   3,204,255   4,792,331   2,146,431   3,106,244   1,475,570   33,587,493   16,268,282 

 Gross profit  (224,176)  14,064   2,367,115   881,971   1,811,488   804,443   697,414   356,703   4,651,841   2,057,181 

 Selling and distribution 
  expenses - note 27  258,230   46,019   236,780   51,357   824,909   329,996   210,335   96,019   1,530,254   523,391 

 Administration and 
  general expenses - 
  note 28  309,150   124,976   264,293   102,888   201,989   76,632   120,221   56,638   895,653   361,134 

 Operating result  (791,556)  (156,931)  1,866,042   727,726   784,590   397,815   366,858   204,046   2,225,934   1,172,656 

24.1 Segment assets 
  - note 24.5 & 25.3  7,643,268   7,215,283   14,827,493   12,608,937   6,335,403   4,853,688   2,809,583   2,398,548   20,565,660   18,865,663 

 
24.2 Unallocated assets          2,371,760   2,079,042 

           22,937,420  20,944,705 

24.3 Segment liabilities 
- note 24.5 & 25.4  11,336,335   8,772,215   4,389,791   3,177,567   2,555,658   1,680,842   1,024,907   809,607   8,256,604   6,229,439 

24.4 Unallocated liabilities          2,804,017   4,227,741 

           11,060,621  10,457,180 

24.5 Inter unit current account balances of respective businesses have been eliminated from the total. 

24.6 Depreciation & 
  amortization 
  - note 3.5 and 4.2  528,092   230,363   751,803   294,575   23,750   11,100   35,095   21,653   1,338,740   557,691 

 
24.7 Capital expenditure  1,627,533   407,574   803,035   550,903   43,008   16,997   35,232   19,671   2,508,808   995,145 
 
24.8 Inter-segment pricing 

 Transactions among the business segments are recorded at arm's length prices using admissible valuation methods. 
 
24.9 There were no major customer of the Company which formed part of 10% or more of the Company's revenue. 
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25. Reconciliations of reportable segment turnover, cost of sales, assets and liabilities 

25.1 Turnover 
 
 Total turnover for reportable segments - note 24  42,704,516   20,143,762 
 Elimination of inter-segment turnover - note 24  (5,857)  (9,785)
 Total turnover  42,698,659   20,133,977 
 
25.2 Cost of sales 
 
 Total cost of sales for reportable segments  - note 26  33,587,493   16,268,282 
 Elimination of inter-segment purchases - note 26  (5,857)  (9,785)
 Total cost of sales  33,581,636   16,258,497 
 
25.3 Assets 
 
 Total assets for reportable segments  20,565,660   18,865,663 
 Taxation recoverable  1,765,784   1,474,066 
 Bank deposits - note 14  103,000   102,000 
 Long-term investments - note 5  502,976   502,976 
 Total assets  22,937,420   20,944,705 
 
25.4 Liabilities 
 
 Total liabilities for reportable segments  8,256,604   6,229,439 
 Short-term loan  170,000   2,256,000 
 Long-term loan  2,314,805   1,887,026 
 Accrued interest on expansion project - note 21  3,152   38,733 
 Unclaimed dividends - note 21  48,693   45,982 
 Total liabilities  10,793,254   10,457,180 

Amounts in Rs ’000

  For the For the 
   year six months 
  ended period ended
  June 30, 2014 June 30, 2013
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26. Cost of Sales
 
  Polyester Soda Ash Life Sciences Chemicals  Company 
  For the  For the six  For the  For the six For the  For the six For the  For the six For the  For the six

 year months  year months year months year months year months
 ended period ended ended period ended ended period ended ended period ended ended period ended

  June 30,  June 30, June 30,  June 30, June 30,  June 30, June 30,  June 30, June 30,  June 30, 
 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013

 Raw and packing 

   materials consumed 

 Opening stock  897,238   1,394,859   510,102   359,582   453,994   588,355   207,993   115,497   2,069,327   2,458,293 

 Purchases 

       Inter-segment  5,857   9,785   -     -     -     -     -     -     5,857   9,785 

       Others  15,157,139   7,501,920   2,198,446   1,028,100   2,058,518   456,369   1,802,668   1,009,243   21,216,771   9,995,632 

   15,162,996   7,511,705   2,198,446   1,028,100   2,058,518   456,369   1,802,668   1,009,243   21,222,628   10,005,417 

   16,060,234   8,906,564   2,708,548   1,387,682   2,512,512   1,044,724   2,010,661   1,124,740   23,291,955   12,463,710 

 Closing stock - note 9  (878,010)  (897,238)  (552,167)  (510,102)  (636,348)  (453,994)  (272,821)  (207,993)  (2,339,346)  (2,069,327)

 Raw material 
  consumed  15,182,224   8,009,326   2,156,381   877,580   1,876,164   590,730   1,737,840   916,747   20,952,609   10,394,383 

 Salaries, wages 
  and benefits 
  - note 26.1  347,903   133,692   645,747   220,182   2,832   900   44,669   17,326   1,041,151   372,100 

 Stores and spares 
  consumed  183,251   69,819   104,415   47,339   -     -     7,697   2,293   295,363   119,451 

 Conversion fee 
  paid to contract 
  manufacturers  -     -     -     -     396,884   136,435   10,056   4,871   406,940   141,306 

 Oil, gas and 
  electricity  1,890,218   1,002,818   2,713,782   1,210,796   -     -     12,481   4,690   4,616,481   2,218,304 

 Rent, rates 
  and taxes  936   490   1,098   864   -     -     14,321   6,948   16,355   8,302 

 Insurance  24,031   12,923   27,989   16,970   -     -     1,110   563   53,130   30,456 

 Repairs and 
  maintenance  4,596   1,657   891   5   608   -     4,678   2,174   10,773   3,836 

 Depreciation & 
  amortisation charge   
  - note 3.5 & 4.2  500,637   217,025   728,703   282,967   262   207   13,830   11,408   1,243,432   511,607 

 Write-offs 
  - note 3.2.2 & 4.1  1,708   -     20,706   -     -     -     751   -     23,165   -   

 Technical fees  -     -     -     -     1,020   -     2,807   1,354   3,827   1,354 

 Royalty  -     -     -     -     1,629   -     -     -     1,629   -   

 General expenses  168,479   68,347   168,183   67,482   2,887   1,167   17,027   6,940   356,576   143,936 

 Opening stock of 
  work-in-process  170,516   74,987   -     -     59,475   71,700   2,850   1,276   232,841   147,963 

 Closing stock of
  work-in-process 
  - note 9  (143,343)  (170,516)  -     -     (16,447)  (59,475)  (5,551)  (2,850)  (165,341)  (232,841)

 Cost of goods 
  manufactured  18,331,156   9,420,568   6,567,895   2,724,185   2,325,314   741,664   1,864,566   973,740   29,088,931   13,860,157 

 Opening stock of 
  finished goods  994,304   1,009,796   78,767   383,510   793,560   1,102,849   404,476   278,929   2,271,107   2,775,084 

 Finished goods 
  purchased  136,304   6,979   -     175,327   2,977,682   1,098,109   1,203,805   631,964   4,317,791   1,912,379 

   19,461,764   10,437,343   6,646,662   3,283,022   6,096,556   2,942,622   3,472,847   1,884,633   35,677,829   18,547,620 

 Closing stock of 
  finished goods 
  - note 9  (395,205)  (994,304)  (24,303)  (78,767)  (1,291,836)  (793,560)  (366,603)  (404,476)  (2,077,947)  (2,271,107)

 Provision for slow 
  moving and obsolete 
  stocks - note 28  -     (1,013)  -     -     (12,389)  (2,631)  -     (4,587)  (12,389)  (8,231)

   19,066,559   9,442,026   6,622,359   3,204,255   4,792,331   2,146,431   3,106,244   1,475,570   33,587,493   16,268,282 
 

26.1 Staff retirement benefits 
 

 Salaries, wages and benefits include Rs 31.205 million (June 30, 2013: Rs 23.196 million) in respect of staff retirement benefits. 
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For the year ended June 30, 2014

Amounts in Rs ’000

F 34 ICI Pakistan Limited Annual Report 2013-14



Amounts in Rs ’000

27. Selling and distribution expenses
 
  Polyester Soda Ash Life Sciences Chemicals  Company 
  For the  For the six  For the  For the six For the  For the six For the  For the six For the  For the six

 year months  year months year months year months year months
 ended period ended ended period ended ended period ended ended period ended ended period ended

  June 30,  June 30, June 30,  June 30, June 30,  June 30, June 30,  June 30, June 30,  June 30, 
 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013

 Salaries and benefits 
  - note 27.1  42,010   16,373   24,624   7,690   331,964   104,418   68,240   23,610   466,838   152,091 

 Repairs and maintenance  155   101   1,810   1,092   2,828   1,378   2,491   856   7,284   3,427 

 Advertising and 
  publicity expenses  1,103   193   15,409   42   118,980   62,127   5,347   3,926   140,839   66,288 

 Rent, rates and taxes  400   192   3,015   1,529   7,936   4,179   1,225   613   12,576   6,513 

 Insurance  -   -   370   597   7,238   5,069   2,264   1,594   9,872   7,260 

 Lighting, heating and cooling  107   59   1,862   680   3,336   1,357   6,292   1,453   11,597   3,549 

 Depreciation & amortisation 
  charge  - note 3.5 & 4.2  -   -   97   65   10,416   4,506   5,256   2,751   15,769   7,322 

 Outward freight 
  and handling  2,751   5,014   81,359   30,530   61,650   30,299   66,133   28,307   211,893   94,150 

 Travelling expenses  7,415   3,350   3,138   1,336   116,545   43,833   16,408   7,761   143,506   56,280 

 Postage, telegram,
  telephone and telex  1,155   779   1,191   343   17,982   8,856   3,425   2,477   23,753   12,455 

 Royalty  188,424   -   89,895   -   -   -   -   -   278,319   -   

 Write-offs 
  - note 3.2.2 & 4.1  -   -   -   -   862   -   -   -  862   -   

 General expenses  14,710   19,958   14,010   7,453   145,172   63,974   33,254   22,671   207,146   114,056 

   258,230   46,019   236,780   51,357   824,909   329,996   210,335   96,019   1,530,254   523,391 
 
27.1 Staff retirement benefits 
 
 Salaries and benefits include Rs 13.776 million  (June 30, 2013: Rs 14.038 million) in respect of staff retirement benefits.
 
 

28. Administration and general expenses 
 
 Salaries and benefits 

  - note 28.1  186,182   61,181   168,080   54,173   111,969   38,779   78,635   28,249   544,866   182,382 

 Repairs and maintenance  4,235   2,797   3,470   1,582   4,732   1,686   1,185   481   13,622   6,546 

 Advertising and 
  publicity expenses  5,057   1,018   5,778   1,159   1,915   388   1,249   251   13,999   2,816 

 Rent, rates and taxes  5,645   2,838   2,986   1,441   965   466   645   312   10,241   5,057 

 Insurance  1,310   493   1,567   589   2,793   2,390   426   160   6,096   3,632 

 Lighting, heating and 
  cooling  6,241   2,987   4,905   2,874   9,118   2,909   1,060   621   21,324   9,391 

 Write-offs 
  - note 3.2.2 & 4.1  993   -     1,188   -     667   -     448   -     3,296   -   

 Depreciation & 
  amortisation charge   
  - note 3.5 & 4.2  27,455   13,338   23,003   11,543   13,072   6,387   16,009   7,494   79,539   38,762 

 Provision for doubtful 
  debts - trade - note 40.6  -     -     -     -     1,556   -     -     774   1,556   774 

 Provision for obsolete 
  stocks - note 9.1  -     1,013   -     -     12,389   2,631   -     4,587   12,389   8,231 

 Provision for slow moving 
  and obsolete spares 
  - note 8.2  -     -     52   -     102   -     -     -     154   -   

 Travelling expenses  7,872   3,203   4,753   1,941   7,113   2,402   4,109   2,292   23,847   9,838 

 Postage, telegram, 
  telephone and telex  3,276   1,633   3,154   1,420   2,935   1,167   1,707   827   11,072   5,047 

 General expenses  60,884   34,475   45,357   26,166   32,663   17,427   14,748   10,590   153,652   88,658 

   309,150   124,976   264,293   102,888   201,989   76,632   120,221   56,638   895,653   361,134 

 
28.1 Staff retirement benefits 
 
 Salaries and benefits include Rs 12.274 million  (June 30, 2013: Rs 15.360 million) in respect of staff retirement benefits. 
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29. Other charges 
 
 Auditors' remuneration - note 29.1  3,687   2,539 
 Donations - note 29.2  17,452   7,450 
 Workers' profit participation fund - note 21.4  104,422   54,195 
 Workers' welfare fund  40,428   20,940 
 Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment  15,069   -   
   181,058   85,124 
 
29.1 Auditors' remuneration 
 
 Statutory audit fee   2,050   2,050 
 Half yearly review and other certifications  950   -   
 Out of pocket expenses  687   489 
   3,687   2,539 
 
29.2 Represent provision in respect of donation to ICI Pakistan Foundation (Head office, Karachi). Mr. Asif Jooma, Director of the 

Group, Mr. Suhail Aslam Khan, Mr. Asif Malik, Ms. Saima Kamila Khan and Ms. Fathema Zuberi, Executives of the Company 
are amongst the Trustees of the Foundation. No amount has been paid during the current year and corresponding period. 

 
 
30. Finance costs 
 
 Mark-up   327,724   137,370 
 Interest on workers' profit participation fund - note 21.4  3,049   2,248 
 Discounting charges on receivables  46,292   20,917 
 Exchange losses  4,144   24,529 
 Guarantee fee and others  5,833   1,998 
   387,042   187,062 
 
31. Other income 
 
 Income from financial assets 
 
 Income from related party 
 Return on loan due from the Subsidiary  -     1,292 
 Service fee from related parties - note 31.1  1,980   990 
 
 Income from other financial assets 
 Profit on short-term and call deposits   368   -   
   2,348   2,282 
 Income from non-financial assets 
 
 Scrap sales  67,371   22,212 
 Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment  985   363 
 Provisions and accruals no longer required written back  138,552   90,300 
 Exchange gain  104,774   -   
 Sundries  9,100   10,461 
   323,130   125,618

31.1 This represents amount charged by the Company for certain management and other services rendered to its wholly owned 
subsidiary, ICI Pakistan PowerGen Limited, in accordance with the service agreement. 

Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2014

Amounts in Rs ’000

  For the For the 
   year six months 
  ended period ended
  June 30, 2014 June 30, 2013
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32. Taxation 
 
 Current  311,133   271,336 
 Prior   (102,548)  (35,887)
 Deferred  70,163   102,872 
 Net tax charged - note 32.1  278,748   338,321 
 
32.1 Tax reconciliation 
 
 Profit before taxation  1,980,964   1,026,088 
 
 Tax @ 34% (2013: 35%)  673,528   359,131 
 Effect of prior year charge (102,548) (35,887)
 Tax impact due to change of FTR ratio  89,034  8,230
 Effect of credit under section 65B  (316,690)  -   
 Effect of change in tax rate on beginning deferred tax balance  (62,510)  -   
 Tax effect of items not deductible for tax purposes  7,278   2,608 
 Others  (9,344)  4,239 
 Net tax charged  278,748   338,321 
 
 Average effective tax rate 14% 33%
 
33. Basic and diluted earning per share (EPS) 
 
 Profit after taxation for the year / period  1,702,216   687,767 
 
  Number of shares 
 Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue  
   during the year / period  92,359,050   92,359,050 
 
  Rupees
 
 Basic and diluted earning per share (EPS)  18.43   7.45 

Amounts in Rs ’000

34. Remuneration of chairman, chief executive, directors and executives

 The amounts charged in the financial statements for the remuneration, including all benefits, to the chairman, chief executive, 
directors and executives of the Company were as follows: 

  Chairman Chief Executive Directors Executives Total 
  For the  For the   For the  For the For the  For the For the  For the For the  For the

 year six months   year six months year six months year six months year six months
 ended period ended ended period ended ended period ended ended period ended ended period ended

  June 30,  June 30, June 30,  June 30, June 30,  June 30, June 30,  June 30, June 30,  June 30, 
 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013

 Managerial remuneration  -     365   46,447   15,633   41,251   16,125   605,490   172,879   693,188   205,002 

 Retirement benefits  -     -     7,601   2,558   6,058   3,137   131,977   44,887   145,636   50,582 

 Group insurance  -     -     34   9   68   19   4,377   548   4,479   576 

 Rent and house maintenance  -     -     894   1,862   -     -     175,134   53,054   176,028   54,916 

 Utilities  -     -     783   256   -     -     43,503   13,015   44,286   13,271 

 Medical expenses  -     -     71   42   178   66   30,880   14,741   31,129   14,849 

   -     365   55,830   20,360   47,555   19,347   991,361   299,124   1,094,746   339,196 

 Number of persons  1   1   1   1   1   2   446   368   449   376

  For the For the 
   year six months 
  ended period ended
  June 30, 2014 June 30, 2013
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34.1 In addition to above, an amount of Rs 205.8 million (June 30, 2013: Rs 98.6 million) on account of variable pay to employees 
has been recognised in the current year / period. This amount is payable in the following year after verification of achievements 
against targets. 

 
 Variable and special bonus paid during the year / period includes the following: 

  Paid in 2014  Paid in 2013
  relating  relating 
  to 2013 to 2012
 Chief Executive  7,125   -   
 Directors  10,857   3,855 
 Executives  90,577   48,007 
 Other employees  13,813   39,319 

   122,372   91,181 
 
34.2 The Directors and certain executives are provided with free use of the Company cars in accordance with their entitlement. The 

Chief Executive is provided with free use of Company car, certain household equipment and maintenance when needed. 
 
34.3 Aggregate amount charged in the unconsolidated financial statements for remuneration to six non-executive directors was Rs 

Nil (June 30, 2013: Rs 1.975 million). During the year fee paid to directors amount to Rs 1.863 million (June 30, 2013: Rs 0.525 
million) for attending board and other meetings, which is not part of remuneration. 

 
34.3.1 The remuneration and fee paid to directors during last period includes Rs 0.442 million and Rs 0.08 million respectively against 

two non-executive directors who were appointed as executive directors. 

34.4 The above amounts include an amount of Rs 189.01 million (June 30, 2013: Rs 75.35 million) on account of remuneration of key 
management personnel out of which Rs 29.31 million (June 30, 2013: Rs 11.881 million) relates to post employment benefits.

 
 

34.5 Total number of employees as of the balance sheet date 1138 1053
 Average number of employees during the year / period 1086 1055
 
35. Transactions with related parties  
 
 The related parties comprise the holding company (Lucky Holdings Limited), the ultimate holding company (Lucky Cement Limited) 

and related group companies, local  associated company, subsidiary company, directors of the Company, companies where directors 
also hold directorship, key employees (note 34) and staff retirement funds (note 18). Details of transactions with related parties, other 
than those which have been specifically disclosed elsewhere in these unconsolidated financial statements are as follows:

 
 
 Subsidiary Company

 Purchase of goods, materials and services  1,068,140   543,181 
 Provision of services and other receipts - note 31  1,980   990 
 Return on loan to the Subsidiary - note 31  -     1,292 
 Sale of goods and material and services  2,440   -   
 
 Associated companies 
 
 Purchase of goods, materials and services  17,167   62 
 Sale of goods and materials  1,646,191   718,460 
 Dividends  322,629   162,379 
 Royalty  278,319   -   

Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2014

Amounts in Rs ’000

  As at and for As at and for 
   the year the  six months 
  ended period ended
  June 30, 2014 June 30, 2013

  For the For the 
   year six months 
  ended period ended
  June 30, 2014 June 30, 2013
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36. Plant capacity and annual production 
 - in metric tonnes: 
  For the For the six months
  year ended period ended
  June 30, 2014  June 30, 2013  

  Annual Production Annual Production
  Name Plate  Name Plate 
  Capacity  Capacity 
 
 Polyester  122,000   109,810   122,000   54,428 
 Soda Ash - note 36.1  350,000   287,445   350,000   118,864 
 Chemicals - note 36.2  -     15,643   -     9,291 
 Sodium Bicarbonate  26,000   27,000   20,000   13,070 
 
36.1 Production of Soda Ash was greater as compared to previous period since Coal Fired Boilers became operational during current 

year. Further last period production was low due to gas curtailment. 
 
36.2  The capacity of Chemicals is indeterminable because these are multi-product plants. 
 
37. Fair value of financial assets and liabilities 
 
 The carrying amounts of the financial assets and financial liabilities approximate their fair values and is determined on the basis 

of non-observable market data.
 
38. Financial risk management 
 
 The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, interest rate risk and other 

price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's overall risk management policy focuses on the unpredictability of financial 
markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on the Company's financial performance. 

 
38.1  Risk management framework 
 
 The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for establishment and oversight of the Company's risk management framework. 

The executive management team is responsible for developing and monitoring the Company’s risk management policies. The 
team regularly meets and any changes and compliance issues are reported to the Board of Directors through the audit committee.  

 
 Risk management systems are reviewed regularly by the executive management team to reflect changes in market conditions 

and the Company’s activities. The Company, through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to develop 
a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations. 

 
 The audit committee oversees compliance by management with the Company’s risk management policies and procedures, 

and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company. 
 
39. Market risk 
 
 Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market 

prices. Market risk comprises of interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk. 
 

Amounts in Rs ’000
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39.1  Interest rate risk 
 
 Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair values of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market 

interest rates. At the balance sheet date the interest rate profile of the Company's interest-bearing financial instruments were: 
 
  Carrying Amount 

  As at June As at June
  30, 2014   30, 2013

 Fixed rate instruments 
 Financial assets - note 14  103,000   102,000 
 Financial liabilities - note 19 & 21  (993,168)  (1,005,914)
   (890,168) (903,914)

 Variable rate instruments 
 Financial liabilities - note 19 & 22  (2,737,368)  (3,654,549)
  (2,737,368) (3,654,549)

 Sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments 
 
 The Company does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, therefore a 

change in interest rates at the balance sheet date would not affect profit or loss. 
 
 Sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments 
 
 If KIBOR had been 1% higher / lower with all other variables held constant, the impact on the profit before tax for the year / 

period would have been Rs 27.37 million (June 30, 2013: Rs 36.54 million).

39.2  Foreign currency risk 
 
 Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in 

foreign exchange rates. Foreign currency risk arises mainly where receivables and payables exist due to transactions entered into are 
denominated in foreign currencies. The Company is exposed to foreign currency risk on sales and purchases which are entered in a 
currency other than Pak Rupees. When the management expects future depreciation of Pak Rupees, the Company enters into 
forward foreign exchange contracts in accordance with State Bank of Pakistan instructions and the Company’s treasury policy. The 
policy allows the Company to take currency exposure within predefined limits while open exposures are rigorously monitored. 

 Following is the gross balance sheet exposure classified into separate foreign currencies:
 
  EURO USD GBP JPY
   As at June 30, 2014 

 Other receivables  4,092   11,280   -     -   
 Cash and bank balances  -     6,897   -     -   
   4,092   18,177   -     -   
 Trade and other payables  (63,171)  (1,276,899)  (1,050,235)  -   
 Gross balance sheet exposure  (59,079)  (1,258,722)  (1,050,235)  -   
 
   As at June 30, 2013 

 Trade debts  -     7,861   -     -   
 Other receivables  1,156   722,914   -     -   
 Cash and bank balances  -     53,265   -     -   
   1,156   784,040   -     -   
 Trade and other payables  (143,565)  (1,416,383)  (545,421)  (1,208)
 Gross balance sheet exposure  (142,409)  (632,343)  (545,421)  (1,208)

Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2014

Amounts in Rs ’000
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 Significant exchange rates applied during the year / period were as follows: 
   Average rate    Spot rate   
  For the For the six As at As at

  year ended   months period June 30, June 30,
 June  30,   ended June   2014  2013
 2014 30, 2013  

 Rupees per  Rupees   Rupees  

 EURO  134.97   128.92   134.94   130.18 
 USD  98.90   98.22   98.80   99.66 
 GBP  168.43   151.53   168.15   151.80 
 JPY  0.98   1.03   0.97   1.01

 Sensitivity analysis  

 Every 1% increase or decrease in exchange rate with all other variables held constant will decrease or increase profit before tax 
for the year by Rs 23.68 million (June 30, 2013: Rs 13.21 million). The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to the change 
in exchange rates. As at June 30, 2014, if Pak Rupee had weakened / strengthened by 1% against other currencies, with all other 
variables held constant, the effect on the Company profit before tax at June 30, 2014 and June 30, 2013 would be as follows: 

  Increase /  Effect on Effect on Effect on Effect on
  decrease in  Profit  Profit Profit  Profit
  exchange  before tax  before tax before tax  before tax
  rates (EURO)      (USD)   (GBP)    (JPY)  
 2014 
 Pak Rupee +1%  591   12,587   10,502   -   
 Pak Rupee -1%  (591)  (12,587)  (10,502)  -   

 2013 
 Pak Rupee +1%  1,424   6,323   5,454   12 
 Pak Rupee -1%  (1,424)  (6,323)  (5,454)  (12)
 

40. Credit risk 
 
 Credit risk represents the accounting loss that would be recognised at the reporting date if counter-parties failed completely to 

perform as contracted. The Company does not have significant exposure to any individual counter-party. To reduce exposure 
to credit risk the Company has developed a formal approval process whereby credit limits are applied to its customers. The 
management also continuously monitors the credit exposure towards the customers and makes provision against those balances 
considered doubtful of recovery. To mitigate the risk, the Company has a system of assigning credit limits to its customers based 
on an extensive evaluation based on customer profile and payment history. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly 
monitored. Some customers are also secured, where possible, by way of inland letters of credit, cash security deposit, bank 
guarantees and insurance guarantees.

Amounts in Rs ’000

 The Company's gross maximum exposure to credit risk at the balance sheet date is as follows:

 

40.1 Financial assets 

 Long-term investments - note 5  2,500   2,500 
 Long-term loans - note 6  253,477   199,063 
 Long-term deposits - note 7  25,679   24,632 
 Trade debts - note 10  858,347   865,690 
 Loans and advances - note 11  191,121   158,716 
 Trade deposits  - note 12  25,803   16,960 
 Other receivables - note 13  1,177,687   745,660 
 Bank balances - note 14  844,738   723,279 

   3,379,352   2,736,500 

40.2  The Company has placed its funds with banks which are rated A-1 by Standard & Poor's and P-1 by Moody's. 

 As at  As at
 June 30, June 30,
  2014 2013
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40.3  Financial assets 
 
   - Secured  479,034   538,756 
   - Unsecured  2,900,318   2,197,744 
   3,379,352   2,736,500 
 
40.4 The ageing of trade debts and loans and advances at the balance sheet date is as follows: 
 
 Not past due  921,068   982,468 
 Past due but not impaired: 
   Not more than three months  106,392   63,946 
 Past due and impaired: 
   More than three months and not more than six months  3,726   2,000 
   More than six months and not more than nine months  4,448   -   
   More than nine months and not more than one year  2,321   -   
   More than one year  112,469   78,086 
   229,356   144,032 
 Less: Provision for: 
   - Doubtful debts - note 10  93,664   94,802 
   - Doubtful loans and advances - note 11  7,292   7,292 
   100,956   102,094 
   1,049,468   1,024,406 

40.4.1 There were no past due or impaired receivables from related parties. 
 
40.5 The maximum exposure to credit risk for past due and impaired at the reporting date by type of counter-party was: 
 
 Wholesale customers  72,282   1,181 
 Retail customers  26,008   16,650 
 End-user customers  131,066   126,201 
   229,356   144,032 
 Less: Provision for: 
 - Doubtful debts - note 10  93,664   94,802 
 - Doubtful loans and advances - note 11  7,292   7,292 
   100,956   102,094 
   128,400   41,938 
 

 As at  As at
 June 30, June 30,
  2014 2013

Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2014

Amounts in Rs ’000

40.6 Movement of provision for trade debts and loans and advances 

  Trade debts Loans and Total Total
  advances

 
 Balance at the beginning of the year / period 94,802  7,292 102,094   102,676 
 Additional provision - note 28 1,556  -     1,556   774 
 Written off during the year / period  (194)  -     (194)  (302)
 Provision no longer required  (2,500)  -     (2,500)  (1,054)
 Balance at the end of the year / period  93,664   7,292   100,956   102,094 
 
40.6.1 The recommended approach for provision is to assess the top layer (covering 50%) of trade receivables on an individual basis 

and apply a dynamic approach to the remainder of receivables. The procedure introduces a company-standard for dynamic 
provisioning:

   • Provide an impairment loss for 50% of the outstanding receivable when overdue more than 90 days, and 
   • Provide an impairment loss for 100% when overdue more than 120 days.
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40.7 Concentration risk 
 
 The sector wise analysis of receivables, comprising trade debts, loans and advances and bank balances are given below:  

 

 Textile and Chemicals  457,365   430,224 
 Glass  106,513   64,651 
 Paper and Board  12,056   2,015 
 Pharmaceuticals / Detergents  77,861   150,600 
 Paints  16,893   10,369 
 Banks  844,738   723,279 
 Loans and Advances and Others   479,736   468,641 
   1,995,162   1,849,779 
 Less: Provision for:
   - Doubtful debts - note 10  93,664   94,802 
   - Doubtful loans and advances - note 11  7,292   7,292 
   100,956   102,094 
   1,894,206   1,747,685 
 
40.8 Other price risk is the risk that the value of future cash flows of the financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in 

market prices such as equity price risk. Equity price risk is the risk arising from uncertainties about future values of investment 
securities. As at the balance sheet date, the Company is not materially exposed to other price risk except investment in subsidiary 
which is carried at cost against which provision for impairment has been provided in these unconsolidated financial statements.  

41. Liquidity risk 
 
 Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities. Prudent 

liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availability of funding through 
an adequate amount of committed credit facilities. Company's treasury aims at maintaining flexibility in funding by keeping 
committed credit lines available. 

 
  The table below analyses the Company's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at 

the balance sheet to the maturity date. 

  Carrying Contractual Less than
  amount cash flows one year 

   As at June 30, 2014 

 Financial liabilities 
 Trade creditors - note 21  1,717,081   (1,717,081)  (1,717,081)
 Bills payable - note 21  2,338,246   (2,338,246)  (2,338,246)
 Mark-up accrued - note 21  58,454   (58,454)  (58,454)
 Accrued interest on secured / unsecured loans - note 21  3,152   (3,152)  (3,152)
 Accrued expenses  - note 21  966,337   (966,337)  (966,337)
 Technical service fee / royalty - note 21  23,686   (23,686)  (23,686)
 Distributors' security deposits - payable on 
   termination of distributorship - note 21 & 21.5  106,142   (115,482)  (115,482)
 Contractors' earnest / retention money - note 21  9,808   (9,808)  (9,808)
 Unclaimed dividends - note 21  48,693   (48,693)  (48,693)
 Payable for capital expenditure - note 21  328,317   (328,317)  (328,317)
 Payable to ICI Pakistan PowerGen Limited - note 21  129,519   (129,519)  (129,519)
 Others - note 21  124,905   (124,905)  (124,905)
 Long-term loan - note 19  2,314,805   (3,832,069)  (1,188,661)
 Short-term borrowings -  note 22.1 and 22.2  437,368   (453,556)  (453,556)

   8,606,513   (10,149,305)  (7,505,897)

 It is not expected that the cash flows included in the maturity analysis could occur significantly earlier, or at significantly different 
amount.

Amounts in Rs ’000

 As at  As at
 June 30, June 30,
  2014 2013
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  Carrying Contractual Less than
  amount cash flows one year 

   As at June 30, 2013 

 Financial liabilities 
 Trade creditors - note 21  741,283   (741,283)  (741,283)
 Bills payable - note 21  2,113,695   (2,113,695)  (2,113,695)
 Mark-up accrued - note 21  28,465   (28,465)  (28,465)
 Accrued interest on secured / unsecured loans - note 21  38,733   (38,733)  (38,733)
 Accrued expenses  - note 21  791,074   (791,074)  (791,074)
 Technical service fee / royalty - note 21  680   (680)  (680)
 Distributors' security deposits - payable on 
   termination of distributorship - note 21 & 21.5  118,888   (132,203)  (132,203)
 Contractors' earnest / retention money - note 21  9,550   (9,550)  (9,550)
 Unclaimed dividends - note 21  45,982   (45,982)  (45,982)
 Payable for capital expenditure - note 21  252,931   (252,931)  (252,931)
 Payable to ICI Pakistan PowerGen Limited - note 21  102,057   (102,057)  (102,057)
 Others - note 21  149,320   (149,320)  (149,320)
 Long-term loan - note 19  1,887,026   (2,446,543)  (377,836)
 Short-term borrowings -  note 22.1 & 22.2  2,256,000   (2,290,387)  (2,290,387)
 Short-term running finance - note 22.3  398,549   (398,549)  (398,549)

   8,934,233   (9,541,452)  (7,472,745)
 
42. Capital risk management
 
 The Company's objective when managing capital is to safeguard the Company's ability to continue as a going concern so that 

it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders; and to maintain a strong capital base 
to support the sustained development of its businesses. 

 
 The Company manages its capital structure by monitoring return on net assets  and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes 

in economic conditions. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid 
to shareholders or issue new shares. The Company also monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt, interest bearing 
loans and borrowings including finance cost thereon, trade and other payables, less cash and bank balances. Capital signifies 
equity as shown in the balance sheet plus net debt. The gearing ratio as at June 30, 2014 and June 30, 2013 is as follows:

 

 
 Long-term loans  2,314,805   1,887,026 
 Trade and other payables  6,264,665   4,734,816 
 Short-term borrowings and running finance  437,368   2,654,549 
 Total debt  9,016,838   9,276,391 
 Cash and bank balances  (852,095)  (730,349)
 Net debt  8,164,743   8,546,042 
 Share capital  923,591   923,591 
 Capital reserves  309,643   309,643 
 Unappropriated profit  10,004,193   8,555,755 
 Equity  11,237,427   9,788,989 
 Capital  19,402,170   18,335,031 
 
 Gearing ratio 42.08% 46.61%

Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2014

Amounts in Rs ’000

 As at  As at
 June 30, June 30,
  2014 2013
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43. Accounting estimates and judgements 
 
 Income taxes 
 
 The Company takes into account the current income tax law and decisions taken by appellate authorities. Instances where the 

Company's view differs from the view taken by the income tax department at the assessment stage and where the Company 
considers that its view on items of material nature is in accordance with law, the amounts are shown as contingent liabilities 
(unless there is remote possibility of transfer of benefits). The details of the tax matters are as follows: 

 
 The Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (The Tribunal) had earlier set aside the assessment for the assessment year 1998-99 on 

the issues of date of commissioning of PTA plant & depreciation thereon, restriction of cost of capitalisation of PTA plant and 
addition to income in respect of trial production stocks. The re-assessment was finalised by the department on June 29, 2010 
giving rise to an additional tax demand. The Company had filed an appeal against the said order before the CIR (Appeals), the 
hearing of which has been completed and the order is awaited.

 
 The tax department reopened the income tax assessment for the assessment year 2001-2002 on the ground that demerger 

of PTA business from ICI Pakistan Ltd. was effective from the completion date i.e. August 6, 2001. This was challenged by the 
Company in the High Court which upheld the Company’s contention that the department did not have the right to reopen this 
finalised assessment. The department filed an appeal in the Supreme Court against the High Court’s order. The appeal was 
dismissed by the Supreme Court under the principle of well known case of Eli Lilly. After the Supreme Court’s decision on 
retrospectivity as mentioned above, a notice has been issued u/s 66A of the repealed Ordinance by tax department on June 
20, 2011, which was challenged by the Company in the High Court on the basis of Supreme Court’s decision as above. However, 
despite the stay granted by High Court, the tax department issued an order on May 7, 2012 and raised the demand of the 
additional tax liability of Rs 19 million. The Company filed an appeal before The Tribunal which decided the case in Company's 
favour on the basis that order issued on May 7, 2012 was time barred. The tax department has also issued an order through 
which Tribunal's order has been given effect and Company's position has been accepted. 

 
 For the assessment year 2002-2003 on receipt of notice under section 62 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 1979, the Company 

had filed a writ petition in the Supreme Court after it being dismissed by the Sindh High Court on maintainability, challenging 
the tax department’s notice that the effective date of PTA’s demerger was August 6, 2001 rather than the effective date given 
in the Scheme of Arrangement as October 1, 2000. That notice had raised certain issues relating to vesting of PTA assets by 
the company. It is the Company’s contention that such an action is unwarranted and which has illegally changed the settled 
position. 

 
 Whilst amending the assessment for the Tax Year 2003, 2004, 2005, 2007, 2008 and 2010, the department has taken certain 

action in the order, considered by the department as “protective assessment” on the matter of unabsorbed depreciation carried 
forward. It is the Company’s contention that such an action is unwarranted. The CIR (Appeals) has also passed the orders for 
these tax years during the year ended June 30, 2014 thereby accepting the company’s contention on the issue of carrying 
forward of unabsorbed depreciation. The department has filed an appeal against the orders of the CIR (Appeals) in the Tribunal 
which are pending for hearing. 

 
 In April 2012, a notice had been issued by the tax department for recovery of tax demand of Rs 271 million for Tax year 2003 

and Rs 310 million for tax year 2004 on account of unabsorbed tax depreciation relating to the demerger of PPTA business. 
This notice has been issued by the tax department on the basis that revenue cases cannot be stayed by the High Court of 
Sindh for a period of more than six months as mentioned in Article 199(4A) of the Constitution of Pakistan. The Company through 
its counsel has filed a reply to the department stating that since our assessments are protective assessments and as stated in 
the order the demand can only arise after the matter is finally decided by the Supreme Court for assessment year 2002-03. No 
action has been taken by the tax department after the reply of the Company.  

 
 Notice under section 221 of the Income Tax Ordinance 2001 for rectification of deemed assessment order for the Tax Year 2005 

has been issued to disallow unabsorbed depreciation carried forward. A writ petition against the said notice has been filed with 
the High Court of Sindh which is pending for hearing.  

 
  For Tax Year 2006, the case had been selected for audit / scrutiny and whilst framing the order tax department has taken certain 

action in the orders, considered by the department as “protective assessments” on the matter of unabsorbed depreciation 
carried forward. A tax demand of Rs 616 million was raised in the order. It is the company’s contention that such an action is 
unwarranted. An appeal before the CIR (Appeals) on the matter has been decided in the Company’s favour and carrying forward 
of unabsorbed depreciation has been allowed. The department has filed an appeal against the order of the CIR (Appeals) in the 
Tribunal which is pending for hearing. 

  
 In June 2012, whilst amending the assessment for the Tax Year 2009, the tax department had disallowed the unabsorbed 

depreciation on the ground that there was no brought forward depreciation from Tax Year 2008 and a demand of Rs 972 million 
was created. It was the Company’s contention that such an action was unwarranted. This position was totally different from the
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 position taken earlier by the tax department. The Company had filed an appeal before the High Court of Sindh challenging the  
said order which had decided the case with the direction that the matter will be finalised by the CIR (Appeals) within six weeks 
from the date of High Court’s Order. On August 15, 2012 CIR (Appeals) issued its order and upheld the order passed by the 
tax department earlier. The Company then filed an appeal before the Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue against the said order 
of CIR (Appeals) as well as for the stay of demand. On November 15, 2012, the Tribunal decided the case in Company’s favour 
on the basis that the original assessment order for assessment year 2001-02 passed on May 29, 2002 is now crystallized and 
therefore unabsorbed depreciation is available to the company. The Tax Department has also issued an order giving effect to 
the Tribunal's decision through which the unabsorbed depreciation has been allowed to be carried forward for adjustment in 
Tax Year 2009. In July 2013 tax department had also passed an order for Tax Year 2010 whereby allowed the benefit of carried 
forward depreciation from Tax Year 2009.  

 
 Pension and Gratuity 
 
 Certain actuarial assumptions have been adopted as disclosed in note 18 to the financial statements for valuation of present 

value of defined benefit obligations and fair value of plan assets. Any changes in these assumptions in future years might affect 
gains and losses in those years. 

 
 Property, plant and equipment 
 
 The estimates for revalued amounts, if any, of different classes of property, plant and equipment, are based on valuation 

performed by external professional valuer and recommendation of technical teams of the Company. The said recommendations 
also include estimates with respect to residual values and depreciable lives. Further, the Company reviews the value of the 
assets for possible impairment on an annual basis. The future cash flows used in the impairment testing of assets is based on 
management's best estimates which may change in future periods. Any change in the estimates in future years might affect 
the carrying amounts of the respective items of property, plant and equipment with a corresponding effect on the depreciation 
charge and impairment. 

 

44. Standards or Interpretations not yet effective
 
 The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are consistent with those of the previous 

financial year except as follows : 
 
44.1 New, Amended and Revised Standards and Interpretations of IFRSs 
 
 The Company has adopted the following revised standard, amendments and interpretation of IFRSs which became effective 

for the current year: 

 IFRS 7 – Financial Instruments: Disclosures – (Amendments) - Amendments enhancing disclosures about offsetting of financial 
assets and financial liabilities

 IFRIC 20 – Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine

 IFAS 3 – Profit and Loss Sharing on Deposits 

 Improvements to Accounting Standards Issued by the IASB

 IAS 1 – Presentation of Financial Statements – Clarification of the requirements for comparative information
 IAS 16 – Property, Plant and Equipment – Clarification of Servicing Equipment
 IAS 32 – Financial Instruments: Presentation – Tax Effects of Distribution to Holders of Equity Instruments
 IAS 34 – Interim Financial Reporting – Interim Financial Reporting and Segment Information for Total Assets and Liabilities

 The adoption of the above revision, amendments interpretation of the standards did not have any effect on the financial 
statements.

Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2014
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 Standards, Interpretations and Amendments to Approved Accounting Standards that are not yet effective 
 
 The following are the standards and interpretations, which have been issued but are not yet effective for the current financial year: 

 Standard or Interpretation Effective date (annual periods
 beginning on or after) 

 
 IFRS 10 – Consolidated Financial Statements January 01, 2015
 IFRS 11 – Joint Arrangements January 01, 2015 
 IFRS 12 – Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities January 01, 2015
 IFRS 13 – Fair Value Measurement January 01, 2015 
 IAS 16 & 38 – Clarification of Acceptable Method of Depreciation and Amortization January 01, 2016 
 IAS 16 & 41 – Agriculture: Bearer Plants January 01, 2016 
 IAS 19 - Employee Benefits July 01, 2014
 IAS 32 – Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial liabilities – (Amendment)  January 01, 2014 
 IAS 36 – Recoverable Amount for Non-Financial Assets – (Amendment)  January 01, 2014 
 IAS 39 – Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting – (Amendment)  January 01, 2014 
 IFRIC 21 – Levies January 01, 2014 

 The Company expects that the adoption of the above amendments and interpretation of the standards will not affect the 
Company's financial statements in the period of initial application. 

 
 In addition to the above standards and interpretations, amendments to various accounting standards have also been issued 

by the IASB. Such improvements are generally effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 01 July 2014. The Company 
expects that such improvements to the standards will not have any impact on the Company's financial statements in the period 
of initial application.

 
 Further, following new standards have been issued by IASB which are yet to be notified by the SECP for the purpose of 

applicability in Pakistan.
 
 IFRS 9 – Financial Instruments: Classification and Measurement January 01, 2018
 IFRS 14 – Regulatory Deferral Accounts January 01, 2016
 IFRS 15 – Revenue from Contracts with Customers January 01, 2017 

 
45. Post balance sheet events - dividends 
 
 The Directors in their meeting held on August 29, 2014 have recommended a final dividend of Rs 4 per share (2013: Rs Nil per 

share) in respect of year ended June 30, 2014. This dividend is in addition to Interim dividend paid of Rs. 4 per share during 
the current year. The unconsolidated financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2014 do not include the effect of the 
final dividend which will be accounted for in the year in which it is approved.

 
 
46. Date of authorisation 
 
 These financial statements were authorised for issue in the Board of Directors meeting held on August 29, 2014. 
 

47. General 
 
47.1  Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand rupees except as stated otherwise. 

47.2  During the six months ended June 30, 2013 the Company changed its financial year from December 31 to June 30. Accordingly, 
the corresponding figures in the profit and loss account, statement of comprehensive income, cash flow statement and statement 
of changes in equity pertain to six months ended June 30, 2013 and, hence, are not comparable.   

47.3  Corresponding figures have also been rearranged and reclassified, wherever necessary, for better presentation. However, there 
has been no material reclassification to report except for reclassification of eligible retired employees' medical scheme from 
deferred liabilities to trade and other payables amounting to Rs. 39.714 million. 

 

Muhammad Sohail Tabba    Asif Jooma  Muhammad Abid Ganatra 
Chairman / Director      Chief Executive  Chief Financial Officer  
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 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2012-13* 2013-14
 Restated  Restated Restated   Restated Restated Restated 

Balance Sheet            

Equity  9,493,072   10,265,010   11,368,830   12,448,126   13,482,796   14,548,093   9,066,723   9,024,890   9,788,989   11,237,427 

Revaluation Reserves  494,315   1,124,220   1,012,167   962,795   931,846   907,352   824,207   740,656   698,536   639,372 

Equity and Revaluation Reserve  9,987,387   11,389,230   12,380,997   13,410,921   14,414,642   15,455,445   9,890,930   9,765,546   10,487,525   11,876,799 

Non Current Liability  90,604   104,079   119,571   612,954   1,208,117   1,093,190   1,340,306   1,593,267   3,067,815   3,486,365 

Current Liability  5,891,930   5,436,275   6,263,805   4,446,810   5,799,898   5,482,037   9,280,988   9,355,282   7,389,365   7,574,254 

Total Equity and Liabilities  15,969,921   16,929,584   18,764,373   18,470,685   21,422,657   22,030,672   20,512,224   20,714,095   20,944,705   22,937,418 

 

Non Current Assets  9,469,783   9,905,729   9,741,603   10,435,258   10,297,489   10,152,415   9,154,438   10,898,077   11,330,538   12,500,614 

Current Assets  6,500,138   7,023,855   9,022,770   8,035,427   11,125,168   11,878,257   11,357,786   9,816,018   9,614,167   10,436,804 

Total Assets  15,969,921   16,929,584   18,764,373   18,470,685   21,422,657   22,030,672   20,512,224   20,714,095   20,944,705   22,937,418 

 

Profit and Loss Account 

Turnover  21,054,298   21,947,688   25,988,351   31,921,873   32,399,181   39,532,506   38,348,591   37,809,433   39,627,119   42,698,659 

Net sales, commission & toll income  18,476,457   19,574,118   23,024,123   27,798,915   28,429,897   35,129,980   35,516,114   34,681,563   36,267,761   38,233,477 

Cost of sales  15,124,759   15,492,648   18,205,369   22,303,138   22,754,005   28,443,690   30,910,029   30,688,097   32,193,170   33,581,636 

Gross profit  3,351,698   4,081,470   4,818,754   5,495,777   5,675,892   6,686,290   4,606,085   3,993,466   4,074,592   4,651,841 

Operating Result  1,842,542   2,479,018   2,984,004   3,052,360   3,027,654   3,712,566   2,378,449   1,624,634   1,986,737   2,225,934 

Profit before taxation  1,612,401   2,117,797   2,768,523   2,812,778   3,072,506   3,731,516   2,294,653   1,496,223   1,749,207   1,980,964 

Profit after taxation  1,572,257   1,455,628   1,784,800   1,862,738   2,044,738   2,428,826   1,531,430   973,661   1,158,701   1,702,216 

 

Summary of Cash Flows 

Cash generated from / (used in) operations  2,666,900   3,554,048   4,312,406   1,188,392   4,938,310   3,716,187   4,127,104   (1,963,689)  (164,272)  4,818,897 

Net cash generated from / (used in) operating activities  2,521,959   3,477,093   4,093,537   969,809   4,476,231   2,334,428   2,875,020   (3,176,714)  (971,364)  3,806,585 

Net cash used in investing activities  (1,420,757)  (1,040,183)  (1,397,436)  (1,780,969)  (938,043)  (752,830)  (509,814)  (2,125,793)  (940,727)  (2,400,932)

Net cash generated from / (used in) financing activities  (1,118,221)  (2,337,028)  (868,583)  (832,815)  (1,041,018)  (1,388,027)  (2,151,436)  (796,407)  1,453,483   933,274 

Cash and cash equivalents at December 31 / June 30  1,687,656   1,787,538   3,615,056   1,971,081   4,468,251   4,661,822   4,633,322   (1,465,592)  (1,924,200)  414,727 

 

  Excluding recognition of deferred tax credit in 2005 

  2011 and 2012 numbers have been restated due to IAS 19 revision 

  Year 2011 onwards exclude the effect of Paints business due to demerger 

* Comparative analysis is based on twelve months performance of current year versus same period last year (SPLY) for a meaningful comparison. 

Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2014
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 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2012-13* 2013-14
 Restated  Restated Restated   Restated Restated Restated 

Balance Sheet            

Equity  9,493,072   10,265,010   11,368,830   12,448,126   13,482,796   14,548,093   9,066,723   9,024,890   9,788,989   11,237,427 

Revaluation Reserves  494,315   1,124,220   1,012,167   962,795   931,846   907,352   824,207   740,656   698,536   639,372 

Equity and Revaluation Reserve  9,987,387   11,389,230   12,380,997   13,410,921   14,414,642   15,455,445   9,890,930   9,765,546   10,487,525   11,876,799 

Non Current Liability  90,604   104,079   119,571   612,954   1,208,117   1,093,190   1,340,306   1,593,267   3,067,815   3,486,365 

Current Liability  5,891,930   5,436,275   6,263,805   4,446,810   5,799,898   5,482,037   9,280,988   9,355,282   7,389,365   7,574,254 

Total Equity and Liabilities  15,969,921   16,929,584   18,764,373   18,470,685   21,422,657   22,030,672   20,512,224   20,714,095   20,944,705   22,937,418 

 

Non Current Assets  9,469,783   9,905,729   9,741,603   10,435,258   10,297,489   10,152,415   9,154,438   10,898,077   11,330,538   12,500,614 

Current Assets  6,500,138   7,023,855   9,022,770   8,035,427   11,125,168   11,878,257   11,357,786   9,816,018   9,614,167   10,436,804 

Total Assets  15,969,921   16,929,584   18,764,373   18,470,685   21,422,657   22,030,672   20,512,224   20,714,095   20,944,705   22,937,418 

 

Profit and Loss Account 

Turnover  21,054,298   21,947,688   25,988,351   31,921,873   32,399,181   39,532,506   38,348,591   37,809,433   39,627,119   42,698,659 

Net sales, commission & toll income  18,476,457   19,574,118   23,024,123   27,798,915   28,429,897   35,129,980   35,516,114   34,681,563   36,267,761   38,233,477 

Cost of sales  15,124,759   15,492,648   18,205,369   22,303,138   22,754,005   28,443,690   30,910,029   30,688,097   32,193,170   33,581,636 

Gross profit  3,351,698   4,081,470   4,818,754   5,495,777   5,675,892   6,686,290   4,606,085   3,993,466   4,074,592   4,651,841 

Operating Result  1,842,542   2,479,018   2,984,004   3,052,360   3,027,654   3,712,566   2,378,449   1,624,634   1,986,737   2,225,934 

Profit before taxation  1,612,401   2,117,797   2,768,523   2,812,778   3,072,506   3,731,516   2,294,653   1,496,223   1,749,207   1,980,964 

Profit after taxation  1,572,257   1,455,628   1,784,800   1,862,738   2,044,738   2,428,826   1,531,430   973,661   1,158,701   1,702,216 

 

Summary of Cash Flows 

Cash generated from / (used in) operations  2,666,900   3,554,048   4,312,406   1,188,392   4,938,310   3,716,187   4,127,104   (1,963,689)  (164,272)  4,818,897 

Net cash generated from / (used in) operating activities  2,521,959   3,477,093   4,093,537   969,809   4,476,231   2,334,428   2,875,020   (3,176,714)  (971,364)  3,806,585 

Net cash used in investing activities  (1,420,757)  (1,040,183)  (1,397,436)  (1,780,969)  (938,043)  (752,830)  (509,814)  (2,125,793)  (940,727)  (2,400,932)

Net cash generated from / (used in) financing activities  (1,118,221)  (2,337,028)  (868,583)  (832,815)  (1,041,018)  (1,388,027)  (2,151,436)  (796,407)  1,453,483   933,274 

Cash and cash equivalents at December 31 / June 30  1,687,656   1,787,538   3,615,056   1,971,081   4,468,251   4,661,822   4,633,322   (1,465,592)  (1,924,200)  414,727 

 

  Excluding recognition of deferred tax credit in 2005 

  2011 and 2012 numbers have been restated due to IAS 19 revision 

  Year 2011 onwards exclude the effect of Paints business due to demerger 

* Comparative analysis is based on twelve months performance of current year versus same period last year (SPLY) for a meaningful comparison. 

Amounts in Rs ’000

July to JuneJanuary to December
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 No. of Shareholders Categories No. of Shares

  From To 

 6,445 1 100 215,018

 2,681 101 500 633,238

 638 501 1,000 463,458

 597 1,001 5,000 1,294,428

 80 5,001 10,000 591,601

 26 10,001 15,000 328,184

 13 15,001 20,000 227,095

 11 20,001 25,000 242,322

 6 25,001 30,000 159,630

 4 30,001 35,000 135,369

 1 35,001 40,000 35,400

 1 40,001 45,000 41,659

 4 45,001 50,000 193,200

 1 50,001 55,000 50,370

 1 55,001 60,000 55,018

 1 65,001 70,000 66,540

 2 80,001 85,000 165,665

 2 85,001 90,000 177,657

 1 90,001 95,000 91,579

 2 95,001 100,000 197,900

 1 100,001 105,000 102,000

 1 115,001 120,000 119,687

 1 140,001 145,000 140,800

 1 160,001 165,000 162,523

 1 165,001 170,000 167,570

 1 225,001 230,000 227,700

 1 275,001 280,000 279,700

 1 305,001 310,000 307,281

 1 310,001 315,000 310,550

 1 325,001 330,000 326,138

 1 330,001 335,000 331,953

 1 505,001 510,000 506,920

 1 530,001 535,000 533,175

 1 690,001 695,000 691,400

 1 2,125,001 2,130,000 2,129,188

 1 5,075,001 5,080,000 5,077,180

 1 5,980,001 5,985,000 5,980,917

 1 69,595,001 69,600,000 69,599,037

 10,535   92,359,050 

Pattern of Shareholding
as at June 30, 2014
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S.No. Categories of Shareholders No. of No. of Shares Percentage
  Shareholders 

1 Directors, Chief Executive Officer, and their spouse and 
 minor children. 4 520,515 0.56

2 Associated Companies, undertakings and related parties. 3 80,657,134 87.33

3 NIT and ICP 0 0 0

4 Banks Development Financial Institutions, 
 Non Banking Financial Institutions. 25 153,113 0.17

5 Insurance Companies 17 2,749,404 2.98

6 Modarabas and Mutual Funds 35 2,712,549 2.94

7 Share holders holding 10% 1 69,599,037 75.36

8 General Public :

   a. Local 10,302 3,928,039 4.25

   b. Foreign

9 Others 149 1,638,296 1.77

 Total (excluding : shareholders holding 10%) 10,535 92,359,050 100.00

Pattern of Shareholding
as at June 30, 2014
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Shareholder’s Category Number of Number of %
  Shareholders /  Shares Held
 folios

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

i. Associated Companies, Undertakings and Related Parties 
 (name wise details) 
 GADOON TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED 1 5,980,917 6.48 
 LUCKY HOLDINGS LIMITED 1 69,599,037 75.36 
 LUCKY TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED 1 5,077,180 5.50 
  3 80,657,134 87.33 

ii. Mutual Funds (name wise details) 
 CDC - TRUSTEE AKD INDEX TRACKER FUND 1 3,238 0.00 
 CDC - TRUSTEE AL MEEZAN MUTUAL FUND 1 91,579 0.10 
 CDC - TRUSTEE AL-AMEEN SHARIAH STOCK FUND 1 326,138 0.35 
 CDC - TRUSTEE ALFALAH GHP ALPHA FUND 1 34,000 0.04 
 CDC - TRUSTEE FIRST CAPITAL MUTUAL FUND 1 4,788 0.01 
 CDC - TRUSTEE FIRST HABIB STOCK FUND 1 23,200 0.03 
 CDC - TRUSTEE HBL - STOCK FUND 1 691,400 0.75 
 CDC - TRUSTEE HBL IPF EQUITY SUB FUND 1 17,200 0.02 
 CDC - TRUSTEE HBL MULTI - ASSET FUND 1 102,000 0.11 
 CDC - TRUSTEE HBL PF EQUITY SUB FUND 1 17,500 0.02 
 CDC - TRUSTEE IGI STOCK FUND 1 87,800 0.10 
 CDC - TRUSTEE KSE MEEZAN INDEX FUND 1 18,500 0.02 
 CDC - TRUSTEE MEEZAN BALANCED FUND 1 25,116 0.03 
 CDC - TRUSTEE MEEZAN ISLAMIC FUND 1 533,175 0.58 
 CDC - TRUSTEE MEEZAN TAHAFFUZ PENSION FUND - EQUITY SUB FUND 1 167,570 0.18 
 CDC - TRUSTEE NATIONAL INVESTMENT (UNIT) TRUST 1 4,909 0.01 
 CDC - TRUSTEE NIT-EQUITY MARKET OPPORTUNITY FUND 1 33,569 0.04 
 CDC - TRUSTEE PICIC ISLAMIC STOCK FUND 1 20,000 0.02 
 CDC - TRUSTEE UBL RETIREMENT SAVINGS FUND - EQUITY SUB FUND 1 35,400 0.04 
 CDC - TRUSTEE UBL STOCK ADVANTAGE FUND 1 227,700 0.25 
 CDC-TRUSTEE AL-AMEEN ISLAMIC RET. SAV. FUND-EQUITY SUB FUND 1 16,000 0.02 
 CDC-TRUSTEE FIRST HABIB ISLAMIC BALANCED FUND 1 32,800 0.04 
 CDC-TRUSTEE HBL ISLAMIC STOCK FUND 1 140,800 0.15 
 CDC-TRUSTEE MEEZAN CAPITAL PROTECTED FUND-II 1 25,641 0.03 
 CONFIDENCE MUTUAL FUND LTD 1 7 0.00 
 DOMINION STOCK FUND LIMITED 1 182 0.00 
 GOLDEN ARROW SELECTED STOCKS FUND 1 7 0.00 
 GOLDEN ARROW SELECTED STOCKS FUND LIMITED 1 21,900 0.02 
 INVESTEC MUTUAL FUND LIMITED 1 17 0.00 
 SAFEWAY MUTUAL FUND LIMITED 1 256 0.00 
 SECURITY STOCK FUND LIMITED 1 36 0.00 
  31 2,702,428 2.93 

iii. Directors and their spouse(s) and minor children (name wise details) 
 MR. ASIF JOOMA 1 506,920 0.55 
 MR. KAMAL A CHINOY 2 1,095 0.00 
 MR. KHAWAJA IQBAL HASSAN 1 12,500 0.01 
  4 520,515 0.56

Pattern of Shareholding
as at June 30, 2014
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Shareholder’s Category Number of Number of %
  Shareholders /  Shares Held
 folios

iv. Executives 5 1,173 0.00 

v. Public Sector Companies and Corporations 2 2,129,832 2.31 

vi Banks, Development Finance Institutions, Non-Banking Finance Institutions, 
 Insurance Companies, Takaful, Modaraba and Pension Funds 46 646,365 0.70 

vii. Shareholders Holding five percent or more Voting Rights in the 
 Listed Company (name wise details) 
 GADOON TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED 1 5,980,917 6.48 
 LUCKY HOLDINGS LIMITED 1 69,599,037 75.36 
 LUCKY TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED 1 5,077,180 5.50 
  3 80,657,134 87.33 

viii. Others & General Public   10,444   5,701,603  6.17 

Total (excluding : shareholders holding 5%)  10,535   92,359,050  100.00 
 
ix. Details of trading in the shares by the Directors, CEO, CFO, Company Secretary and their spouses: 
 
During the year, Mr. Asif Jooma, purchased 506,920 shares of the Company and Mr. Kamal A Chinoy purchased 1,000 qualification 
shares as required under the Articles of the Company. Other than these, the directors, CEO, CFO, Compamy Secretary and their 
spouses and minor children did not carry out any transaction in the shares of the Company during the year. 
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Notice is hereby given that the Sixty-Third Annual General Meeting of  ICI Pakistan Limited will be held on Wednesday,  
October 22, 2014 at 9:30 a.m. at ICI House, 5 West Wharf, Karachi, to transact the following business:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the accounts of the Company for the period ended June 30, 2014, the report of the 
Auditors thereon and the report of the Directors.

2. To declare and approve Final cash dividend @ 40% i.e. Rs. 4/- per ordinary share of Rs.10/- each for the year ended 
June 30, 2014, as recommended by the Directors, payable to the Members whose names appear in the Register 
of the Members as at October 15, 2014.

3. To appoint the Auditors of the Company and to fix their remuneration.

 By Order of the Board

October 01, 2014 Saima Kamila Khan
Karachi Company Secretary

1. Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed 
from October 16, 2014 to October 22, 2014 (both days 
inclusive). Transfers received in order at the office of our 
Shares Registrar, FAMCO Associates (Pvt) Limited, 8-F, 
Block-6, P.E.C.H.S., Shahra-e-Faisal, Karachi, by the close 
of business on October 15, 2014 will be in time for the 
purposes of the Annual General Meeting.

2. All Members are entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting. A 
Member entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting is entitled to 
appoint a proxy to attend, speak and vote for him/her. A proxy 
must be a Member of the Company.

3. An instrument of proxy applicable for the Meeting is being 
provided with the notice sent to Members. Further copies of 
the instrument of proxy may be obtained from the Registered 
Office of the Company during normal office hours. Proxy form 
may also be downloaded from the Company’s website: 
www.ici.com.pk.

4. An instrument of proxy and the power of attorney or other 
authority (if any) under which it is signed, or a notarially certified 
copy of such power or authority, must, to be valid, be deposited 
at the Registered Office of the Company not less than 48 hours 
before the time of the Meeting.

5. Members are requested to submit a copy of their 
Computerized National Identity Card/Smart National Identity 
Card (CNIC/SNIC), if not already provided and notify 
immediately changes, if any, in their registered address to 
our Shares Registrar, FAMCO Associates (Pvt) Ltd.

6. CDC Account Holders will further have to follow the under 
mentioned guidelines as laid down in Circular 1 dated 
January 26, 2000, issued by the Securities and Exchange 
Commission of Pakistan.

A. For Attending the Meeting:

(i) In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account 
holder and/or the person whose securities are in group 
account and their registration details are uploaded as 
per the Regulations, shall authenticate his/her identity 
by showing his/her original CNIC/SNIC or original 
passport at the time of attending the meeting.

(ii) In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ 
resolution/power of attorney with specimen signature of 
the nominee shall be produced (unless it has been 
provided earlier) at the time of the Meeting.

B. For Appointing Proxies:

(i) In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account 
holder and/or the person whose securities are in group 
account and their registration details are uploaded as 
per the Regulations, shall submit the proxy form as per 
the above requirement.

(ii) The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose 
names, addresses and CNIC/SNIC numbers shall be 
mentioned on the form.

(iii) Attested copies of CNIC/SNIC or passport of the 
beneficial owners and the proxy shall be furnished with 
the proxy form.

(iv) The proxy shall produce his/her original CNIC/SNIC or 
original passport at the time of the Meeting.

(v) In case of a corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ 
resolution/power of attorney with specimen signature 
shall be submitted (unless it has been provided earlier) 
along with proxy form to the Company.

Notes:

Notice of 63rd Annual General Meeting
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Report of the Directors
For the year Ended June 30, 2014

The Directors are pleased to present their report together with the audited Group results of 
ICI Pakistan Limited for the year ended June 30, 2014. The ICI Pakistan Group comprises of 
ICI Pakistan Limited and ICI Pakistan PowerGen Limited (PowerGen), a wholly owned 
subsidiary.

The Director’s report, giving a commentary on the performance of ICI Pakistan Limited for the year 
ended June 30, 2014 has been presented separately.

Net Sales Income of PowerGen for the period at Rs. 913 million is 2% lower as compared to same 
period last year due to lower electricity sales to Polyester Business. As a result, Company made 
an operating profit of Rs. 143 million for the year which is 15% lower compared to the corresponding 
period last year.

Muhammad Sohail Tabba
Chairman / Director 
 

Dated: August 29, 2014

Karachi

 Asif Jooma
Chief Executive



Auditors’ Report to the Members
We have audited the annexed consolidated financial statements comprising consolidated balance sheet of ICI Pakistan 
Limited (the Holding Company) and its subsidiary company (together referred to as Group) as at 30 June 2014 and the 
related consolidated profit and loss account, consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated cash flow 
statement and consolidated statement of changes in equity together with the notes forming part thereof, for the year then 
ended. We have also expressed separate opinions on the financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary 
company namely ICI Pakistan PowerGen Limited.  These financial statements are the responsibility of the Holding Company’s 
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

Our audit was conducted in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing and accordingly included such tests 
of accounting records and such other auditing procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly the financial position of the Holding Company and its 
subsidiary company as at 30 June 2014 and the results of their operations for the year then ended.

Date: 29 August, 2014 Ernst & Young Ford Rhodes Sidat Hyder
 Chartered Accountants
Karachi Shariq Ali Zaidi
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
As at June 30, 2014

ASSETS 

 

Non-current assets   

Property, plant and equipment 3  11,808,502   10,727,467 

Intangible assets 4  64,261   45,123 

   11,872,763   10,772,590 

 

Long-term investment 5  2,500   2,500 

Long-term loans 6  256,525   202,071 

Long-term deposits and prepayments 7  27,843   33,338 

   286,868   237,909 

   12,159,631   11,010,499 

Current assets 

Stores, spares and consumables 8  617,668   615,782 

Stock-in-trade 9  4,607,216   4,594,877 

Trade debts 10  883,710   891,186 

Loans and advances 11  193,000   160,640 

Trade deposits and short-term prepayments 12  220,018   161,888 

Other receivables 13  1,488,685   1,188,212 

Taxation - net   1,765,784   1,474,066 

Cash and bank balances 14  858,204   836,143 

   10,634,285   9,922,794 

 

Total assets   22,793,916   20,933,293 

 Note June 30, June 30,
  2014  2013 

Amounts in Rs ’000
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EQUITY AND LIABILITIES   

   

Share capital and reserves   

Authorised capital 

1,500,000,000 (2013: 1,500,000,000) ordinary shares of Rs 10 each   15,000,000   15,000,000 

 

Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital 15  923,591   923,591 

Capital reserves 16  309,643   309,643 

Unappropriated profit   10,125,694   8,544,999 

Total equity   11,358,928   9,778,233 

Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment  17  784,517   843,037 

 

Non-current liabilities  

Provisions for non-management staff gratuity  18  78,081   79,917 

Long-term loans 19  2,314,805   1,887,026 

Deferred tax liability - net 20  1,093,718   1,101,111 

   3,486,604   3,068,054 

Current liabilities 

Current portion of long-term loans 19   872,221   -   

Trade and other payables 21  5,854,278   4,589,420 

Short-term borrowings and running finance 22  437,368   2,654,549 

   7,163,867   7,243,969 

Contingencies and commitments 23 

 

Total equity and liabilities   22,793,916   20,933,293 

 

The annexed notes 1 to 47 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 

 Note June 30, June 30,
  2014  2013 

Amounts in Rs ’000

Muhammad Sohail Tabba    Asif Jooma  Muhammad Abid Ganatra 
Chairman / Director      Chief Executive  Chief Financial Officer  

F 61ICI Pakistan Limited Annual Report 2013-14



Consolidated Profit and Loss Account
For the year ended June 30, 2014

Turnover 25  42,698,659   20,133,977 

Sales tax, commission and discounts 24  (4,620,382)  (1,893,940)

Net sales, commission and toll income   38,078,277   18,240,037 

Cost of sales 25  (33,280,470)  (16,105,080)

Gross profit   4,797,807   2,134,957 

Selling and distribution expenses 27  (1,530,254)  (523,391)

Administration and general expenses 28  (896,407)  (361,635)

Operating result   2,371,146   1,249,931 

Other charges 29  (191,033)  (90,550)

Finance costs 30  (388,024)  (187,793)

   (579,057)  (278,343)

Other income 31  321,776   125,600 

Profit before taxation   2,113,865   1,097,188 

Taxation 32  (278,748)  (338,321)

Profit after taxation    1,835,117   758,867 

  

Basic and diluted earnings per share (Rupees) 33  19.87   8.22 

 
  For the year For the year
  ended ended
  June 30, 2014 June 30, 2013

Basic and diluted earnings per share (Rupees)   19.87   15.36 

 

The annexed notes 1 to 47 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 

 Note For the For the 
   year six months 
  ended period ended
  June 30, 2014 June 30, 2013

Amounts in Rs ’000

Muhammad Sohail Tabba    Asif Jooma  Muhammad Abid Ganatra 
Chairman / Director      Chief Executive  Chief Financial Officer  

F 62 ICI Pakistan Limited Annual Report 2013-14



Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended June 30, 2014

Profit for the year / period  1,835,117   758,867 

Items not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods: 

Actuarial gains on defined benefit plans   52,914   336,815 

Tax effect  (17,462)  (117,885)

  35,452   218,930 

Total comprehensive income for the year / period  1,870,569   977,797 

 

The annexed notes 1 to 47 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 

  For the For the 
   year six months 
  ended period ended
  June 30, 2014 June 30, 2013

Amounts in Rs ’000

Muhammad Sohail Tabba    Asif Jooma  Muhammad Abid Ganatra 
Chairman / Director      Chief Executive  Chief Financial Officer  
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
For the year ended June 30, 2014

Cash flows from operating activities  

 

Profit before taxation  2,113,865   1,097,188  

Adjustments for: 

  Depreciation and amortisation - note 3.5 & 4.2  1,381,219   580,439 

  Loss / (gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment - note 29 & 31  14,081   (363)

  Write offs - note 3.2.2 & 4.1  27,404   -   

  Provision for staff retirement benefit plan - note 18.1.1  52,740   48,676 

  Provisions / (reversal) for non-management staff gratuity 

    and eligible retired employees' medical scheme  4,800   (275,275)

  Interest on bank deposits   (368)  -   

  Interest expense  381,878   162,884 

  3,975,619   1,613,549 

Movement in: 

   Working capital   839,062   (1,683,437)

   Long-term loans   (54,455)  (7,639)

   Long-term deposits and prepayments   5,495   7,553 

Cash generated from / (used in) operations  4,765,721   (69,974)

 

Payments for : 

   Staff retirement benefit pension plans - note 18.1.2  (63,178)  (94,556)

   Non-management staff gratuity and eligible retired employees' medical scheme  (23,695)  (12,174)

   Taxation  (574,280)  (551,563)

   Interest  (351,889)  (151,059)

Net cash generated from / (used in) operating activities  3,752,679   (879,326)

 

Cash flows from investing activities 

 

   Payments for capital expenditure   (2,454,705)  (969,981)

   Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment  7,626   5,358 

   Interest received on bank deposits  368   -   

Net cash used in investing activities  (2,446,711)  (964,623)

  For the For the 
   year six months 
  ended period ended
  June 30, 2014 June 30, 2013

Amounts in Rs ’000
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Cash flows from financing activities 

 

Long-term loans  1,300,000   1,596,756 

Dividends paid  (366,726)  (143,273)

Net cash generated from financing activities  933,274   1,453,483 

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  2,239,242   (390,466)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year / period  (1,818,406)  (1,427,940)

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year / period  420,836   (1,818,406)

 

Movement in working capital  

(Increase) / decrease in current assets 

   Stores, spares and consumables  (1,886)  (18,422)

   Stock-in-trade  (12,339)  816,734 

   Trade debts  7,476   (295,493)

   Loans and advances  (32,360)  33,208 

   Trade deposits and short-term prepayments  10,824   (20,292)

   Other receivables  (300,473)  (122,689)

  (328,758)  393,046 

Increase / (decrease) in current liabilities 

  Trade and other payables  1,167,820   (2,076,483)

  839,062   (1,683,437)

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year / period comprise of: 

   Cash and bank balances - note 14  858,204   836,143 
   Short-term borrowings and running finance - note 22  (437,368)  (2,654,549)

  420,836   (1,818,406)

 

The annexed notes 1 to 47 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 

Amounts in Rs ’000

  For the For the 
   year six months 
  ended period ended
  June 30, 2014 June 30, 2013

Muhammad Sohail Tabba    Asif Jooma  Muhammad Abid Ganatra 
Chairman / Director      Chief Executive  Chief Financial Officer  
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As at January 01, 2013  923,591   309,643   7,710,090   8,943,324 

Final dividend for the year ended  

   December 31, 2012 @ Rs 2.00 per share  -     -     (184,718)  (184,718)

Transactions with owners, recorded directly in equity  -     -     (184,718)  (184,718)

Profit for the period   -     -     758,867   758,867 

Other comprehensive income for the period   -     -     218,930   218,930 

Total comprehensive income  -     -     977,797   977,797 

Transfer from surplus on revaluation of property, 

   plant and equipment - incremental depreciation 

   for the period - net of deferred tax - note 17  -     -     41,830   41,830 

  -     -     41,830   41,830 

As at June 30, 2013  923,591   309,643   8,544,999   9,778,233 

Interim dividend for the year ended  

   June 30, 2014 @ Rs 4.00 per share  -     -     (369,436)  (369,436)

Transactions with owners, recorded directly in equity  -     -     (369,436)  (369,436)

Profit for the year   -     -     1,835,117   1,835,117 

Other comprehensive income for the year   -     -     35,452   35,452 

Total comprehensive income  -     -     1,870,569   1,870,569 

Transfer from surplus on revaluation of property, 

   plant and equipment - incremental depreciation 

   for the year - net of deferred tax - note 17  -     -     79,562   79,562 

  -     -     79,562   79,562 

As at June 30, 2014  923,591   309,643   10,125,694   11,358,928 

 

The annexed notes 1 to 47 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

 Issued, Capital Unappropriated Total
  subscribed  reserves profit
 and paid-up
  capital

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended June 30, 2014

Amounts in Rs ’000

Muhammad Sohail Tabba    Asif Jooma  Muhammad Abid Ganatra 
Chairman / Director      Chief Executive  Chief Financial Officer  
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1. Status and Nature of Business

 The Group consists of:

 �  ICI Pakistan Limited; and
 �  ICI Pakistan PowerGen Limited.

 ICI Pakistan Limited (“the Company”) is incorporated in Pakistan and is listed on the Karachi, Lahore and Islamabad Stock 
Exchanges.

 ICI Pakistan PowerGen Limited (“the Subsidiary”) is incorporated in Pakistan as an unlisted public company and is a wholly owned 
subsidiary company of ICI Pakistan Limited.

 The Company is engaged in the manufacture of polyester staple fibre, POY chips, soda ash, specialty chemicals, sodium 
bicarbonate and polyurethanes; marketing of seeds, toll manufactured and imported pharmaceuticals and animal health products; 
and merchanting of general chemicals. It also acts as an indenting agent and toll manufacturer.

 The Subsidiary is engaged in generating, selling and supplying electricity to the Company.  

 The Group’s registered office is situated at 5 West Wharf, Karachi.

2. Summary of significant accounting policies

 Following are the details of significant accounting policies.

2.1 Statement of compliance

 These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with approved accounting standards as applicable 
in Pakistan. Approved accounting standards comprise of such International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the 
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) as are notified under the Companies Ordinance, 1984, provisions of and directives 
issued under the Companies Ordinance, 1984. In case requirements differ, the provisions or directives of the Companies Ordinance, 
1984 shall prevail.

2.2 Basis of preparation

 These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except: 

 a) certain classes of property, plant and equipment (i.e. freehold land, buildings on freehold and leasehold land and plant and 
    machinery) have been measured at revalued amounts; and

 b) Provision for management staff gratuity, non-management staff gratuity, and eligible retired employees’ medical scheme is 
    stated at present value. 

 The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires management 
to make estimates, assumptions and use judgments that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and 
liabilities and income and expenses. Estimates, assumptions and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical 
experience and other factors, including reasonable expectations of future events. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised 
prospectively commencing from the period of revision.

 Judgments and estimates made by the management that may have a significant risk of material adjustments to the consolidated 
financial statements in subsequent years are discussed in note 43.

2.3 Basis of consolidation

 The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, 
here-in-after referred to as “the Group”.

 A company is a subsidiary, if an entity (the Holding Company) directly or indirectly controls, beneficially owns or holds more than 
fifty percent of its voting securities or otherwise has power to elect and appoint more than fifty percent of its directors.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2014

 Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date 
when such control ceases.

 The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the Holding Company, using consistent 
accounting policies.

 All intra-group balances, transactions and unrealised gains and losses resulting from intra-group transactions and dividends are 
eliminated in full.

 The assets, liabilities, income and expenses of subsidiary companies are consolidated on a line by line basis and carrying value 
of investments held by the Holding Company is eliminated against the subsidiary companies’ shareholders’ equity in the consolidated 
financial statements.  

2.4 Property, plant and equipment and depreciation 

 Property, plant and equipment (except freehold land, buildings on freehold & leasehold land and plant & machinery) are stated 
at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Freehold land, buildings on freehold land and leasehold 
land and plant and machinery are stated at revalued amounts less subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent 
impairment losses, if any. Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less impairment if any. Cost of certain property, plant and 
equipment comprises historical cost. Such cost includes the cost of replacing parts of the property, plant and equipment and 
the cost of borrowings for long-term construction projects, if the recognition criteria are met. 

 Depreciation charge is based on the straight-line method whereby the cost or revalued amount of an asset is written off to profit 
and loss account over its estimated useful life after taking into account residual value, if material. The cost of leasehold land is 
depreciated in equal installments over the lease period. Depreciation on additions is charged from the month in which the asset 
is available for use and on disposals up to the month of disposal. 

 The residual value, depreciation method and the useful lives of each part of property, plant and equipment that is significant in 
relation to the total cost of the asset are reviewed at each balance sheet date, and adjusted, if appropriate.   

 Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to profit and loss account as and when incurred. Improvements are capitalised 
when it is probable that respective future economic benefits will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured 
reliably. Assets replaced, if any, are derecognised.

 Gains and losses on disposal of assets are taken to the profit and loss account, and the related surplus / deficit on revaluation 
of property, plant and equipment is transferred directly to unappropriated profit.

2.5 Intangible assets and amortisation

 Intangible assets with a finite useful life, such as certain softwares, licenses (including extraction rights, software licenses, etc.) 
and property rights, are capitalised initially at cost and subsequently stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment 
losses, if any. 

 Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to 
which it relates. All other expenditures are recognized in profit and loss account as incurred.

 Amortisation is based on the cost of an asset less its residual value. Amortisation is recognized in profit and loss account on a 
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of intangible assets. Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values are 
reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted, if appropriate.

2.6 Stores, spares and consumables

 Stores, spares and consumables are stated at the lower of weighted average cost and net realisable value. Net realizable value 
is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less net estimated cost to sell, which is generally equivalent to 
replacement cost. Items in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges incurred thereon up to the 
balance sheet date.

2.7 Stock-in-trade

 Stock-in-trade is valued at the lower of weighted average cost and estimated net realisable value. 

 Cost comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present 
location and condition. Net realisable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less net estimated 
costs of completion and selling expenses.

 Items in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges incurred thereon up to the balance sheet date.

2.8 Trade debts and other receivables

 Trade debts and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value plus directly attributable cost, if any, and subsequently 
measured at amortised cost. A provision for impairment of trade and other receivables is established when there is objective evidence 
that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of receivables (Refer note 40.6.1).

2.9 Taxation 

 Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognised in the profit and loss account, except 
to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in other comprehensive income or below equity, in which case it is 
recognised in other comprehensive income or below equity, respectively.

 Current 

 Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income at the enacted or substantively enacted rates of taxation after taking into 
account available tax credits and rebates, if any. The charge for current tax includes adjustments to charge for prior years, if any.

 Deferred

 Deferred tax is recognised using balance sheet method, providing for temporary differences between the carrying amounts of 
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. The amount of deferred tax 
provided is based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using the 
enacted or substantively enacted rates of taxation. In this regard the effects on deferred taxation on the portion of income 
expected to be subject to final tax regime is adjusted in accordance with the requirements of Accounting Technical Release – 
27 of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan

 The Group recognises a deferred tax asset to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits for the foreseeable future will be 
available against which the asset can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that 
the related tax benefit will be realised. 

 Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit and loss account is recognised outside profit and loss account. Deferred 
tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

 Further, the Group recognises deferred tax asset / liability on deficit / surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment 
which is adjusted against the related deficit / surplus.

2.10 Cash and cash equivalents

 Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash in hand and current and deposit accounts held with banks. Running finance facilities 
availed by the Group, which are payable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management are included 
as part of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of statement of cash flows.

2.11 Impairment 

 Financial assets

 Financial assets are assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is objective evidence that they are impaired. A 
financial asset is impaired if objective evidence indicates that a loss event has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset, 
and that the loss event had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset that can be estimated reliably. 
Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired may include default or delinquency by a debtor, indications that a debtor 
or issuer will enter bankruptcy.

 All individually significant receivables are assessed for specific impairment. All individually significant receivables found not to be 
specifically impaired are then collectively assessed for any impairment that has been incurred but not yet identified. Receivables 
that are not individually significant are collectively assessed for impairment by grouping together receivables with similar risk 
characteristics.

 An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortised cost is calculated as the difference between its carrying 
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate. Losses 
are recognised in profit and loss account and reflected in an allowance account against receivables. Interest on the impaired 
asset continues to be recognised through the unwinding of the discount. When a subsequent event causes the amount of 
impairment loss to decrease, the decrease in impairment loss is reversed through profit and loss account.

 Non-financial assets

 The carrying amounts of non-financial assets other than inventories and deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date 
to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is 
estimated. The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value-in-use and its fair value less 
costs to sell. In assessing value-in-use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax 
discount rate that reflects current market assessment of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For the 
purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the smallest group of assets 
that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of 
assets (“the cash-generating unit, or CGU”). 

 The Group’s corporate assets do not generate separate cash inflows. If there is an indication that a corporate asset may be 
impaired, then the recoverable amount is determined for the CGU to which the corporate asset belongs. An impairment loss is 
recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are 
recognised in profit and loss account. 

 Impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss has decreased 
or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable 
amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount 
that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

2.12 Surplus on revaluation of fixed assets

 The surplus arising on revaluation of fixed assets is credited to the “Surplus on Revaluation of property, plant and equipment” 
account shown below equity in the balance sheet in accordance with the requirements of section 235 of the Companies Ordinance, 
1984. The said section was amended through the Companies (Amendment) Ordinance, 2002 and accordingly the Group has 
adopted the following accounting treatment of depreciation on revalued assets, keeping in view the Securities and Exchange 
Commission of Pakistan’s (SECP) SRO 45(1)/2003 dated January 13, 2003:

 a) depreciation on assets which are revalued is determined with reference to the value assigned to such assets on revaluation 
    and depreciation charge for the year is taken to the profit and loss account; and

 b) an amount equal to incremental depreciation for the year net of deferred taxation is transferred from “Surplus on Revaluation 
    of property, plant and equipment” account to unappropriated profit / loss through Statement of Changes in Equity to record 
    realization of surplus to the extent of the incremental depreciation charge for the year.

2.13 Staff retirement benefits

 The Group’s retirement benefit plans comprise of provident funds, pensions, gratuity schemes and a medical scheme for eligible 
retired employees. 

 Defined benefit plans

 The Group operates a funded pension scheme and a funded gratuity scheme for management staff. The pension and gratuity 
schemes are salary schemes providing pension and lump sums, respectively. Pension and gratuity schemes for management 
staff are invested through two approved trust funds. The Group also operates gratuity scheme for non-management staff and 
the pensioners’ medical scheme which are unfunded. The pension and gratuity plans are final salary plans. The pensioner’s 
medical plan reimburses actual medical expenses to pensioners as per entitlement. The Group recognises expense in accordance 
with IAS 19 “Employee Benefits”.

 An actuarial valuation of all defined benefit schemes is conducted every year. The valuation uses the Projected Unit Credit method. 
Actuarial gains and losses are recognized in full in the period in which they occur in other comprehensive income.

 All past service costs are recognized at the earlier of when the amendment or curtailment occurs and when the Group has 
recognized related restructuring or termination benefits. 

 Defined contribution plans

 The Group operates two registered contributory provident funds for its entire staff and a registered defined contribution 
superannuation fund for its management staff, who have either opted for this fund by July 31, 2004 or have joined the Group 
after April 30, 2004. In addition to this, the Group also provides group insurance to all its employees.

 Compensated absences

 The Group recognizes the accrual for compensated absences in respect of employees in which these are earned up to the 
balance sheet date. The accrual  has been recognized on the basis of actuarial valuation.

2.14 Operating leases / Ijarah contracts

 Leases, other than those under Ijarah contracts, in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by 
the lessor, are classified as operating leases. Ijarah contracts are classified as operating leases irrespective of whether significant portion 
of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by lessor. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received 
from the lessor) and Ijarah contracts are charged to the profit and loss account on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

2.15 Trade and other payables

 Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value plus directly attributable cost, if any.

2.16 Borrowings and their cost

 Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense 
in the period in which these are incurred except to the extent of borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, 
construction or production of a qualifying asset. Such borrowing costs, if any, are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset.

2.17 Provisions

 A provision is recognised in the balance sheet when the Group has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, 
and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be 
made of the amount of obligation. The amount recognized as a provision reflects the best estimate of the expenditure required 
to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period.

2.18 Financial liabilities

 All financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value net of directly attributable cost, if any, and subsequently measured at 
amortised cost.

2.19 Earnings per share

 The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing 
the profit after tax attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Group by the weighted average number of ordinary shares 
outstanding during the period.

2.20 Foreign currency translation

 Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are translated to Pak Rupees, at the foreign exchange rate prevailing at the date 
of transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are re-translated into Pak Rupees at the foreign exchange 
rates at the balance sheet date. Exchange differences are taken to the profit and loss account.

2.21 Functional and presentation currency 

 Items included in the consolidated financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment 
in which the Group operates. The consolidated financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees, which is the Group’s functional 
and presentation currency.

2.22 Revenue recognition

 Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue can be 
measured reliably. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, excluding discounts, rebates 
and government levies.

 Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the 
customer. For those products which are often sold with a right of return, accumulated experience is used to estimate and provide 
for such returns at the time of sale.

 Commission income is recognised on date of shipment from suppliers.
 
 Profit on short-term deposits is accounted for on a time-apportioned basis using the effective interest rate method. 
 
 Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive dividend is established.

 Toll manufacturing income is recognised when services are rendered.

2.23 Financial expense and financial income

 Financial expenses are recognised using the effective interest rate method and comprise foreign currency losses and markup / 
interest expense on borrowings.

 Financial income comprises interest income on funds invested. Markup / interest income is recognised as it accrues in profit 
and loss account, using the effective interest rate method. 

2.24 Dividend 

 Dividend distribution to the Group’s shareholders is recognised as a liability in the period in which the dividends are approved.

2.25 Segment reporting 

 Segment reporting is based on the operating (business) segments of the Group. An operating segment is a component of the 
Group that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses 
that relate to transactions with any of the Group’s other components. An operating segment’s operating results are reviewed 
regularly by the Chief Executive Officer (the CEO) to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess 
its performance, and for which discrete financial information is available.  

 Segment results that are reported to the CEO include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be 
allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated items comprise mainly corporate assets, income tax assets, liabilities and related 
income and expenditure. Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the year to acquire property, plant and 
equipment.

 The business segments are engaged in providing products or services which are subject to risks and rewards which differ from 
the risk and rewards of other segments. Segments reported are Polyester, Soda Ash, Life Sciences, Chemicals and others 
(PowerGen), which also reflects the management structure of the Group.

2.26 Derivative financial instruments

 The Group uses derivative financial instruments to hedge its exposure to foreign exchange and interest rate risks arising from 
operational, financing and investment activities. In accordance with its treasury policy, the Group does not hold or issue derivative 
financial instruments for trading purposes. Derivatives qualifying for hedge accounting are accounted for accordingly whereas, 
derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are accounted for as held for trading instruments. All changes in the fair 
value are recognized in the profit and loss account.

2.27 Off-setting

 Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the consolidated financial statements only when there 
is, legally enforceable right to set-off the recognised amount and the Group intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise 
the assets and to settle the liabilities simultaneously. 
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1. Status and Nature of Business

 The Group consists of:

 �  ICI Pakistan Limited; and
 �  ICI Pakistan PowerGen Limited.

 ICI Pakistan Limited (“the Company”) is incorporated in Pakistan and is listed on the Karachi, Lahore and Islamabad Stock 
Exchanges.

 ICI Pakistan PowerGen Limited (“the Subsidiary”) is incorporated in Pakistan as an unlisted public company and is a wholly owned 
subsidiary company of ICI Pakistan Limited.

 The Company is engaged in the manufacture of polyester staple fibre, POY chips, soda ash, specialty chemicals, sodium 
bicarbonate and polyurethanes; marketing of seeds, toll manufactured and imported pharmaceuticals and animal health products; 
and merchanting of general chemicals. It also acts as an indenting agent and toll manufacturer.

 The Subsidiary is engaged in generating, selling and supplying electricity to the Company.  

 The Group’s registered office is situated at 5 West Wharf, Karachi.

2. Summary of significant accounting policies

 Following are the details of significant accounting policies.

2.1 Statement of compliance

 These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with approved accounting standards as applicable 
in Pakistan. Approved accounting standards comprise of such International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the 
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) as are notified under the Companies Ordinance, 1984, provisions of and directives 
issued under the Companies Ordinance, 1984. In case requirements differ, the provisions or directives of the Companies Ordinance, 
1984 shall prevail.

2.2 Basis of preparation

 These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except: 

 a) certain classes of property, plant and equipment (i.e. freehold land, buildings on freehold and leasehold land and plant and 
    machinery) have been measured at revalued amounts; and

 b) Provision for management staff gratuity, non-management staff gratuity, and eligible retired employees’ medical scheme is 
    stated at present value. 

 The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires management 
to make estimates, assumptions and use judgments that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and 
liabilities and income and expenses. Estimates, assumptions and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical 
experience and other factors, including reasonable expectations of future events. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised 
prospectively commencing from the period of revision.

 Judgments and estimates made by the management that may have a significant risk of material adjustments to the consolidated 
financial statements in subsequent years are discussed in note 43.

2.3 Basis of consolidation

 The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, 
here-in-after referred to as “the Group”.

 A company is a subsidiary, if an entity (the Holding Company) directly or indirectly controls, beneficially owns or holds more than 
fifty percent of its voting securities or otherwise has power to elect and appoint more than fifty percent of its directors.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2014

 Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date 
when such control ceases.

 The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the Holding Company, using consistent 
accounting policies.

 All intra-group balances, transactions and unrealised gains and losses resulting from intra-group transactions and dividends are 
eliminated in full.

 The assets, liabilities, income and expenses of subsidiary companies are consolidated on a line by line basis and carrying value 
of investments held by the Holding Company is eliminated against the subsidiary companies’ shareholders’ equity in the consolidated 
financial statements.  

2.4 Property, plant and equipment and depreciation 

 Property, plant and equipment (except freehold land, buildings on freehold & leasehold land and plant & machinery) are stated 
at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Freehold land, buildings on freehold land and leasehold 
land and plant and machinery are stated at revalued amounts less subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent 
impairment losses, if any. Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less impairment if any. Cost of certain property, plant and 
equipment comprises historical cost. Such cost includes the cost of replacing parts of the property, plant and equipment and 
the cost of borrowings for long-term construction projects, if the recognition criteria are met. 

 Depreciation charge is based on the straight-line method whereby the cost or revalued amount of an asset is written off to profit 
and loss account over its estimated useful life after taking into account residual value, if material. The cost of leasehold land is 
depreciated in equal installments over the lease period. Depreciation on additions is charged from the month in which the asset 
is available for use and on disposals up to the month of disposal. 

 The residual value, depreciation method and the useful lives of each part of property, plant and equipment that is significant in 
relation to the total cost of the asset are reviewed at each balance sheet date, and adjusted, if appropriate.   

 Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to profit and loss account as and when incurred. Improvements are capitalised 
when it is probable that respective future economic benefits will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured 
reliably. Assets replaced, if any, are derecognised.

 Gains and losses on disposal of assets are taken to the profit and loss account, and the related surplus / deficit on revaluation 
of property, plant and equipment is transferred directly to unappropriated profit.

2.5 Intangible assets and amortisation

 Intangible assets with a finite useful life, such as certain softwares, licenses (including extraction rights, software licenses, etc.) 
and property rights, are capitalised initially at cost and subsequently stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment 
losses, if any. 

 Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to 
which it relates. All other expenditures are recognized in profit and loss account as incurred.

 Amortisation is based on the cost of an asset less its residual value. Amortisation is recognized in profit and loss account on a 
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of intangible assets. Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values are 
reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted, if appropriate.

2.6 Stores, spares and consumables

 Stores, spares and consumables are stated at the lower of weighted average cost and net realisable value. Net realizable value 
is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less net estimated cost to sell, which is generally equivalent to 
replacement cost. Items in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges incurred thereon up to the 
balance sheet date.

2.7 Stock-in-trade

 Stock-in-trade is valued at the lower of weighted average cost and estimated net realisable value. 

 Cost comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present 
location and condition. Net realisable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less net estimated 
costs of completion and selling expenses.

 Items in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges incurred thereon up to the balance sheet date.

2.8 Trade debts and other receivables

 Trade debts and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value plus directly attributable cost, if any, and subsequently 
measured at amortised cost. A provision for impairment of trade and other receivables is established when there is objective evidence 
that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of receivables (Refer note 40.6.1).

2.9 Taxation 

 Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognised in the profit and loss account, except 
to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in other comprehensive income or below equity, in which case it is 
recognised in other comprehensive income or below equity, respectively.

 Current 

 Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income at the enacted or substantively enacted rates of taxation after taking into 
account available tax credits and rebates, if any. The charge for current tax includes adjustments to charge for prior years, if any.

 Deferred

 Deferred tax is recognised using balance sheet method, providing for temporary differences between the carrying amounts of 
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. The amount of deferred tax 
provided is based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using the 
enacted or substantively enacted rates of taxation. In this regard the effects on deferred taxation on the portion of income 
expected to be subject to final tax regime is adjusted in accordance with the requirements of Accounting Technical Release – 
27 of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan

 The Group recognises a deferred tax asset to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits for the foreseeable future will be 
available against which the asset can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that 
the related tax benefit will be realised. 

 Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit and loss account is recognised outside profit and loss account. Deferred 
tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

 Further, the Group recognises deferred tax asset / liability on deficit / surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment 
which is adjusted against the related deficit / surplus.

2.10 Cash and cash equivalents

 Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash in hand and current and deposit accounts held with banks. Running finance facilities 
availed by the Group, which are payable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management are included 
as part of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of statement of cash flows.

2.11 Impairment 

 Financial assets

 Financial assets are assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is objective evidence that they are impaired. A 
financial asset is impaired if objective evidence indicates that a loss event has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset, 
and that the loss event had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset that can be estimated reliably. 
Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired may include default or delinquency by a debtor, indications that a debtor 
or issuer will enter bankruptcy.

 All individually significant receivables are assessed for specific impairment. All individually significant receivables found not to be 
specifically impaired are then collectively assessed for any impairment that has been incurred but not yet identified. Receivables 
that are not individually significant are collectively assessed for impairment by grouping together receivables with similar risk 
characteristics.

 An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortised cost is calculated as the difference between its carrying 
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate. Losses 
are recognised in profit and loss account and reflected in an allowance account against receivables. Interest on the impaired 
asset continues to be recognised through the unwinding of the discount. When a subsequent event causes the amount of 
impairment loss to decrease, the decrease in impairment loss is reversed through profit and loss account.

 Non-financial assets

 The carrying amounts of non-financial assets other than inventories and deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date 
to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is 
estimated. The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value-in-use and its fair value less 
costs to sell. In assessing value-in-use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax 
discount rate that reflects current market assessment of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For the 
purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the smallest group of assets 
that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of 
assets (“the cash-generating unit, or CGU”). 

 The Group’s corporate assets do not generate separate cash inflows. If there is an indication that a corporate asset may be 
impaired, then the recoverable amount is determined for the CGU to which the corporate asset belongs. An impairment loss is 
recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are 
recognised in profit and loss account. 

 Impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss has decreased 
or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable 
amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount 
that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

2.12 Surplus on revaluation of fixed assets

 The surplus arising on revaluation of fixed assets is credited to the “Surplus on Revaluation of property, plant and equipment” 
account shown below equity in the balance sheet in accordance with the requirements of section 235 of the Companies Ordinance, 
1984. The said section was amended through the Companies (Amendment) Ordinance, 2002 and accordingly the Group has 
adopted the following accounting treatment of depreciation on revalued assets, keeping in view the Securities and Exchange 
Commission of Pakistan’s (SECP) SRO 45(1)/2003 dated January 13, 2003:

 a) depreciation on assets which are revalued is determined with reference to the value assigned to such assets on revaluation 
    and depreciation charge for the year is taken to the profit and loss account; and

 b) an amount equal to incremental depreciation for the year net of deferred taxation is transferred from “Surplus on Revaluation 
    of property, plant and equipment” account to unappropriated profit / loss through Statement of Changes in Equity to record 
    realization of surplus to the extent of the incremental depreciation charge for the year.

2.13 Staff retirement benefits

 The Group’s retirement benefit plans comprise of provident funds, pensions, gratuity schemes and a medical scheme for eligible 
retired employees. 

 Defined benefit plans

 The Group operates a funded pension scheme and a funded gratuity scheme for management staff. The pension and gratuity 
schemes are salary schemes providing pension and lump sums, respectively. Pension and gratuity schemes for management 
staff are invested through two approved trust funds. The Group also operates gratuity scheme for non-management staff and 
the pensioners’ medical scheme which are unfunded. The pension and gratuity plans are final salary plans. The pensioner’s 
medical plan reimburses actual medical expenses to pensioners as per entitlement. The Group recognises expense in accordance 
with IAS 19 “Employee Benefits”.

 An actuarial valuation of all defined benefit schemes is conducted every year. The valuation uses the Projected Unit Credit method. 
Actuarial gains and losses are recognized in full in the period in which they occur in other comprehensive income.

 All past service costs are recognized at the earlier of when the amendment or curtailment occurs and when the Group has 
recognized related restructuring or termination benefits. 

 Defined contribution plans

 The Group operates two registered contributory provident funds for its entire staff and a registered defined contribution 
superannuation fund for its management staff, who have either opted for this fund by July 31, 2004 or have joined the Group 
after April 30, 2004. In addition to this, the Group also provides group insurance to all its employees.

 Compensated absences

 The Group recognizes the accrual for compensated absences in respect of employees in which these are earned up to the 
balance sheet date. The accrual  has been recognized on the basis of actuarial valuation.

2.14 Operating leases / Ijarah contracts

 Leases, other than those under Ijarah contracts, in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by 
the lessor, are classified as operating leases. Ijarah contracts are classified as operating leases irrespective of whether significant portion 
of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by lessor. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received 
from the lessor) and Ijarah contracts are charged to the profit and loss account on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

2.15 Trade and other payables

 Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value plus directly attributable cost, if any.

2.16 Borrowings and their cost

 Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense 
in the period in which these are incurred except to the extent of borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, 
construction or production of a qualifying asset. Such borrowing costs, if any, are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset.

2.17 Provisions

 A provision is recognised in the balance sheet when the Group has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, 
and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be 
made of the amount of obligation. The amount recognized as a provision reflects the best estimate of the expenditure required 
to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period.

2.18 Financial liabilities

 All financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value net of directly attributable cost, if any, and subsequently measured at 
amortised cost.

2.19 Earnings per share

 The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing 
the profit after tax attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Group by the weighted average number of ordinary shares 
outstanding during the period.

2.20 Foreign currency translation

 Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are translated to Pak Rupees, at the foreign exchange rate prevailing at the date 
of transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are re-translated into Pak Rupees at the foreign exchange 
rates at the balance sheet date. Exchange differences are taken to the profit and loss account.

2.21 Functional and presentation currency 

 Items included in the consolidated financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment 
in which the Group operates. The consolidated financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees, which is the Group’s functional 
and presentation currency.

2.22 Revenue recognition

 Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue can be 
measured reliably. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, excluding discounts, rebates 
and government levies.

 Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the 
customer. For those products which are often sold with a right of return, accumulated experience is used to estimate and provide 
for such returns at the time of sale.

 Commission income is recognised on date of shipment from suppliers.
 
 Profit on short-term deposits is accounted for on a time-apportioned basis using the effective interest rate method. 
 
 Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive dividend is established.

 Toll manufacturing income is recognised when services are rendered.

2.23 Financial expense and financial income

 Financial expenses are recognised using the effective interest rate method and comprise foreign currency losses and markup / 
interest expense on borrowings.

 Financial income comprises interest income on funds invested. Markup / interest income is recognised as it accrues in profit 
and loss account, using the effective interest rate method. 

2.24 Dividend 

 Dividend distribution to the Group’s shareholders is recognised as a liability in the period in which the dividends are approved.

2.25 Segment reporting 

 Segment reporting is based on the operating (business) segments of the Group. An operating segment is a component of the 
Group that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses 
that relate to transactions with any of the Group’s other components. An operating segment’s operating results are reviewed 
regularly by the Chief Executive Officer (the CEO) to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess 
its performance, and for which discrete financial information is available.  

 Segment results that are reported to the CEO include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be 
allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated items comprise mainly corporate assets, income tax assets, liabilities and related 
income and expenditure. Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the year to acquire property, plant and 
equipment.

 The business segments are engaged in providing products or services which are subject to risks and rewards which differ from 
the risk and rewards of other segments. Segments reported are Polyester, Soda Ash, Life Sciences, Chemicals and others 
(PowerGen), which also reflects the management structure of the Group.

2.26 Derivative financial instruments

 The Group uses derivative financial instruments to hedge its exposure to foreign exchange and interest rate risks arising from 
operational, financing and investment activities. In accordance with its treasury policy, the Group does not hold or issue derivative 
financial instruments for trading purposes. Derivatives qualifying for hedge accounting are accounted for accordingly whereas, 
derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are accounted for as held for trading instruments. All changes in the fair 
value are recognized in the profit and loss account.

2.27 Off-setting

 Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the consolidated financial statements only when there 
is, legally enforceable right to set-off the recognised amount and the Group intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise 
the assets and to settle the liabilities simultaneously. 
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1. Status and Nature of Business

 The Group consists of:

 �  ICI Pakistan Limited; and
 �  ICI Pakistan PowerGen Limited.

 ICI Pakistan Limited (“the Company”) is incorporated in Pakistan and is listed on the Karachi, Lahore and Islamabad Stock 
Exchanges.

 ICI Pakistan PowerGen Limited (“the Subsidiary”) is incorporated in Pakistan as an unlisted public company and is a wholly owned 
subsidiary company of ICI Pakistan Limited.

 The Company is engaged in the manufacture of polyester staple fibre, POY chips, soda ash, specialty chemicals, sodium 
bicarbonate and polyurethanes; marketing of seeds, toll manufactured and imported pharmaceuticals and animal health products; 
and merchanting of general chemicals. It also acts as an indenting agent and toll manufacturer.

 The Subsidiary is engaged in generating, selling and supplying electricity to the Company.  

 The Group’s registered office is situated at 5 West Wharf, Karachi.

2. Summary of significant accounting policies

 Following are the details of significant accounting policies.

2.1 Statement of compliance

 These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with approved accounting standards as applicable 
in Pakistan. Approved accounting standards comprise of such International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the 
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) as are notified under the Companies Ordinance, 1984, provisions of and directives 
issued under the Companies Ordinance, 1984. In case requirements differ, the provisions or directives of the Companies Ordinance, 
1984 shall prevail.

2.2 Basis of preparation

 These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except: 

 a) certain classes of property, plant and equipment (i.e. freehold land, buildings on freehold and leasehold land and plant and 
    machinery) have been measured at revalued amounts; and

 b) Provision for management staff gratuity, non-management staff gratuity, and eligible retired employees’ medical scheme is 
    stated at present value. 

 The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires management 
to make estimates, assumptions and use judgments that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and 
liabilities and income and expenses. Estimates, assumptions and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical 
experience and other factors, including reasonable expectations of future events. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised 
prospectively commencing from the period of revision.

 Judgments and estimates made by the management that may have a significant risk of material adjustments to the consolidated 
financial statements in subsequent years are discussed in note 43.

2.3 Basis of consolidation

 The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, 
here-in-after referred to as “the Group”.

 A company is a subsidiary, if an entity (the Holding Company) directly or indirectly controls, beneficially owns or holds more than 
fifty percent of its voting securities or otherwise has power to elect and appoint more than fifty percent of its directors.

 Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date 
when such control ceases.

 The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the Holding Company, using consistent 
accounting policies.

 All intra-group balances, transactions and unrealised gains and losses resulting from intra-group transactions and dividends are 
eliminated in full.

 The assets, liabilities, income and expenses of subsidiary companies are consolidated on a line by line basis and carrying value 
of investments held by the Holding Company is eliminated against the subsidiary companies’ shareholders’ equity in the consolidated 
financial statements.  

2.4 Property, plant and equipment and depreciation 

 Property, plant and equipment (except freehold land, buildings on freehold & leasehold land and plant & machinery) are stated 
at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Freehold land, buildings on freehold land and leasehold 
land and plant and machinery are stated at revalued amounts less subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent 
impairment losses, if any. Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less impairment if any. Cost of certain property, plant and 
equipment comprises historical cost. Such cost includes the cost of replacing parts of the property, plant and equipment and 
the cost of borrowings for long-term construction projects, if the recognition criteria are met. 

 Depreciation charge is based on the straight-line method whereby the cost or revalued amount of an asset is written off to profit 
and loss account over its estimated useful life after taking into account residual value, if material. The cost of leasehold land is 
depreciated in equal installments over the lease period. Depreciation on additions is charged from the month in which the asset 
is available for use and on disposals up to the month of disposal. 

 The residual value, depreciation method and the useful lives of each part of property, plant and equipment that is significant in 
relation to the total cost of the asset are reviewed at each balance sheet date, and adjusted, if appropriate.   

 Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to profit and loss account as and when incurred. Improvements are capitalised 
when it is probable that respective future economic benefits will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured 
reliably. Assets replaced, if any, are derecognised.

 Gains and losses on disposal of assets are taken to the profit and loss account, and the related surplus / deficit on revaluation 
of property, plant and equipment is transferred directly to unappropriated profit.

2.5 Intangible assets and amortisation

 Intangible assets with a finite useful life, such as certain softwares, licenses (including extraction rights, software licenses, etc.) 
and property rights, are capitalised initially at cost and subsequently stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment 
losses, if any. 

 Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to 
which it relates. All other expenditures are recognized in profit and loss account as incurred.

 Amortisation is based on the cost of an asset less its residual value. Amortisation is recognized in profit and loss account on a 
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of intangible assets. Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values are 
reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted, if appropriate.

2.6 Stores, spares and consumables

 Stores, spares and consumables are stated at the lower of weighted average cost and net realisable value. Net realizable value 
is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less net estimated cost to sell, which is generally equivalent to 
replacement cost. Items in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges incurred thereon up to the 
balance sheet date.

2.7 Stock-in-trade

 Stock-in-trade is valued at the lower of weighted average cost and estimated net realisable value. 

 Cost comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present 
location and condition. Net realisable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less net estimated 
costs of completion and selling expenses.

 Items in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges incurred thereon up to the balance sheet date.

2.8 Trade debts and other receivables

 Trade debts and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value plus directly attributable cost, if any, and subsequently 
measured at amortised cost. A provision for impairment of trade and other receivables is established when there is objective evidence 
that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of receivables (Refer note 40.6.1).

2.9 Taxation 

 Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognised in the profit and loss account, except 
to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in other comprehensive income or below equity, in which case it is 
recognised in other comprehensive income or below equity, respectively.

 Current 

 Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income at the enacted or substantively enacted rates of taxation after taking into 
account available tax credits and rebates, if any. The charge for current tax includes adjustments to charge for prior years, if any.

 Deferred

 Deferred tax is recognised using balance sheet method, providing for temporary differences between the carrying amounts of 
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. The amount of deferred tax 
provided is based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using the 
enacted or substantively enacted rates of taxation. In this regard the effects on deferred taxation on the portion of income 
expected to be subject to final tax regime is adjusted in accordance with the requirements of Accounting Technical Release – 
27 of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan

 The Group recognises a deferred tax asset to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits for the foreseeable future will be 
available against which the asset can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that 
the related tax benefit will be realised. 

 Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit and loss account is recognised outside profit and loss account. Deferred 
tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

 Further, the Group recognises deferred tax asset / liability on deficit / surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment 
which is adjusted against the related deficit / surplus.

2.10 Cash and cash equivalents

 Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash in hand and current and deposit accounts held with banks. Running finance facilities 
availed by the Group, which are payable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management are included 
as part of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of statement of cash flows.

2.11 Impairment 

 Financial assets

 Financial assets are assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is objective evidence that they are impaired. A 
financial asset is impaired if objective evidence indicates that a loss event has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset, 
and that the loss event had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset that can be estimated reliably. 
Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired may include default or delinquency by a debtor, indications that a debtor 
or issuer will enter bankruptcy.

 All individually significant receivables are assessed for specific impairment. All individually significant receivables found not to be 
specifically impaired are then collectively assessed for any impairment that has been incurred but not yet identified. Receivables 
that are not individually significant are collectively assessed for impairment by grouping together receivables with similar risk 
characteristics.

 An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortised cost is calculated as the difference between its carrying 
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate. Losses 
are recognised in profit and loss account and reflected in an allowance account against receivables. Interest on the impaired 
asset continues to be recognised through the unwinding of the discount. When a subsequent event causes the amount of 
impairment loss to decrease, the decrease in impairment loss is reversed through profit and loss account.

 Non-financial assets

 The carrying amounts of non-financial assets other than inventories and deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date 
to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is 
estimated. The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value-in-use and its fair value less 
costs to sell. In assessing value-in-use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax 
discount rate that reflects current market assessment of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For the 
purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the smallest group of assets 
that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of 
assets (“the cash-generating unit, or CGU”). 

 The Group’s corporate assets do not generate separate cash inflows. If there is an indication that a corporate asset may be 
impaired, then the recoverable amount is determined for the CGU to which the corporate asset belongs. An impairment loss is 
recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are 
recognised in profit and loss account. 

 Impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss has decreased 
or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable 
amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount 
that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

2.12 Surplus on revaluation of fixed assets

 The surplus arising on revaluation of fixed assets is credited to the “Surplus on Revaluation of property, plant and equipment” 
account shown below equity in the balance sheet in accordance with the requirements of section 235 of the Companies Ordinance, 
1984. The said section was amended through the Companies (Amendment) Ordinance, 2002 and accordingly the Group has 
adopted the following accounting treatment of depreciation on revalued assets, keeping in view the Securities and Exchange 
Commission of Pakistan’s (SECP) SRO 45(1)/2003 dated January 13, 2003:

 a) depreciation on assets which are revalued is determined with reference to the value assigned to such assets on revaluation 
    and depreciation charge for the year is taken to the profit and loss account; and

 b) an amount equal to incremental depreciation for the year net of deferred taxation is transferred from “Surplus on Revaluation 
    of property, plant and equipment” account to unappropriated profit / loss through Statement of Changes in Equity to record 
    realization of surplus to the extent of the incremental depreciation charge for the year.

2.13 Staff retirement benefits

 The Group’s retirement benefit plans comprise of provident funds, pensions, gratuity schemes and a medical scheme for eligible 
retired employees. 

 Defined benefit plans

 The Group operates a funded pension scheme and a funded gratuity scheme for management staff. The pension and gratuity 
schemes are salary schemes providing pension and lump sums, respectively. Pension and gratuity schemes for management 
staff are invested through two approved trust funds. The Group also operates gratuity scheme for non-management staff and 
the pensioners’ medical scheme which are unfunded. The pension and gratuity plans are final salary plans. The pensioner’s 
medical plan reimburses actual medical expenses to pensioners as per entitlement. The Group recognises expense in accordance 
with IAS 19 “Employee Benefits”.

 An actuarial valuation of all defined benefit schemes is conducted every year. The valuation uses the Projected Unit Credit method. 
Actuarial gains and losses are recognized in full in the period in which they occur in other comprehensive income.

 All past service costs are recognized at the earlier of when the amendment or curtailment occurs and when the Group has 
recognized related restructuring or termination benefits. 

 Defined contribution plans

 The Group operates two registered contributory provident funds for its entire staff and a registered defined contribution 
superannuation fund for its management staff, who have either opted for this fund by July 31, 2004 or have joined the Group 
after April 30, 2004. In addition to this, the Group also provides group insurance to all its employees.

 Compensated absences

 The Group recognizes the accrual for compensated absences in respect of employees in which these are earned up to the 
balance sheet date. The accrual  has been recognized on the basis of actuarial valuation.

2.14 Operating leases / Ijarah contracts

 Leases, other than those under Ijarah contracts, in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by 
the lessor, are classified as operating leases. Ijarah contracts are classified as operating leases irrespective of whether significant portion 
of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by lessor. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received 
from the lessor) and Ijarah contracts are charged to the profit and loss account on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

2.15 Trade and other payables

 Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value plus directly attributable cost, if any.

2.16 Borrowings and their cost

 Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense 
in the period in which these are incurred except to the extent of borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, 
construction or production of a qualifying asset. Such borrowing costs, if any, are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset.

2.17 Provisions

 A provision is recognised in the balance sheet when the Group has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, 
and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be 
made of the amount of obligation. The amount recognized as a provision reflects the best estimate of the expenditure required 
to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period.

2.18 Financial liabilities

 All financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value net of directly attributable cost, if any, and subsequently measured at 
amortised cost.

2.19 Earnings per share

 The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing 
the profit after tax attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Group by the weighted average number of ordinary shares 
outstanding during the period.

2.20 Foreign currency translation

 Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are translated to Pak Rupees, at the foreign exchange rate prevailing at the date 
of transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are re-translated into Pak Rupees at the foreign exchange 
rates at the balance sheet date. Exchange differences are taken to the profit and loss account.

2.21 Functional and presentation currency 

 Items included in the consolidated financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment 
in which the Group operates. The consolidated financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees, which is the Group’s functional 
and presentation currency.

2.22 Revenue recognition

 Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue can be 
measured reliably. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, excluding discounts, rebates 
and government levies.

 Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the 
customer. For those products which are often sold with a right of return, accumulated experience is used to estimate and provide 
for such returns at the time of sale.

 Commission income is recognised on date of shipment from suppliers.
 
 Profit on short-term deposits is accounted for on a time-apportioned basis using the effective interest rate method. 
 
 Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive dividend is established.

 Toll manufacturing income is recognised when services are rendered.

2.23 Financial expense and financial income

 Financial expenses are recognised using the effective interest rate method and comprise foreign currency losses and markup / 
interest expense on borrowings.

 Financial income comprises interest income on funds invested. Markup / interest income is recognised as it accrues in profit 
and loss account, using the effective interest rate method. 

2.24 Dividend 

 Dividend distribution to the Group’s shareholders is recognised as a liability in the period in which the dividends are approved.

2.25 Segment reporting 

 Segment reporting is based on the operating (business) segments of the Group. An operating segment is a component of the 
Group that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses 
that relate to transactions with any of the Group’s other components. An operating segment’s operating results are reviewed 
regularly by the Chief Executive Officer (the CEO) to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess 
its performance, and for which discrete financial information is available.  

 Segment results that are reported to the CEO include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be 
allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated items comprise mainly corporate assets, income tax assets, liabilities and related 
income and expenditure. Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the year to acquire property, plant and 
equipment.

 The business segments are engaged in providing products or services which are subject to risks and rewards which differ from 
the risk and rewards of other segments. Segments reported are Polyester, Soda Ash, Life Sciences, Chemicals and others 
(PowerGen), which also reflects the management structure of the Group.

2.26 Derivative financial instruments

 The Group uses derivative financial instruments to hedge its exposure to foreign exchange and interest rate risks arising from 
operational, financing and investment activities. In accordance with its treasury policy, the Group does not hold or issue derivative 
financial instruments for trading purposes. Derivatives qualifying for hedge accounting are accounted for accordingly whereas, 
derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are accounted for as held for trading instruments. All changes in the fair 
value are recognized in the profit and loss account.

2.27 Off-setting

 Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the consolidated financial statements only when there 
is, legally enforceable right to set-off the recognised amount and the Group intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise 
the assets and to settle the liabilities simultaneously. 
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1. Status and Nature of Business

 The Group consists of:

 �  ICI Pakistan Limited; and
 �  ICI Pakistan PowerGen Limited.

 ICI Pakistan Limited (“the Company”) is incorporated in Pakistan and is listed on the Karachi, Lahore and Islamabad Stock 
Exchanges.

 ICI Pakistan PowerGen Limited (“the Subsidiary”) is incorporated in Pakistan as an unlisted public company and is a wholly owned 
subsidiary company of ICI Pakistan Limited.

 The Company is engaged in the manufacture of polyester staple fibre, POY chips, soda ash, specialty chemicals, sodium 
bicarbonate and polyurethanes; marketing of seeds, toll manufactured and imported pharmaceuticals and animal health products; 
and merchanting of general chemicals. It also acts as an indenting agent and toll manufacturer.

 The Subsidiary is engaged in generating, selling and supplying electricity to the Company.  

 The Group’s registered office is situated at 5 West Wharf, Karachi.

2. Summary of significant accounting policies

 Following are the details of significant accounting policies.

2.1 Statement of compliance

 These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with approved accounting standards as applicable 
in Pakistan. Approved accounting standards comprise of such International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the 
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) as are notified under the Companies Ordinance, 1984, provisions of and directives 
issued under the Companies Ordinance, 1984. In case requirements differ, the provisions or directives of the Companies Ordinance, 
1984 shall prevail.

2.2 Basis of preparation

 These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except: 

 a) certain classes of property, plant and equipment (i.e. freehold land, buildings on freehold and leasehold land and plant and 
    machinery) have been measured at revalued amounts; and

 b) Provision for management staff gratuity, non-management staff gratuity, and eligible retired employees’ medical scheme is 
    stated at present value. 

 The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires management 
to make estimates, assumptions and use judgments that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and 
liabilities and income and expenses. Estimates, assumptions and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical 
experience and other factors, including reasonable expectations of future events. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised 
prospectively commencing from the period of revision.

 Judgments and estimates made by the management that may have a significant risk of material adjustments to the consolidated 
financial statements in subsequent years are discussed in note 43.

2.3 Basis of consolidation

 The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, 
here-in-after referred to as “the Group”.

 A company is a subsidiary, if an entity (the Holding Company) directly or indirectly controls, beneficially owns or holds more than 
fifty percent of its voting securities or otherwise has power to elect and appoint more than fifty percent of its directors.

 Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date 
when such control ceases.

 The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the Holding Company, using consistent 
accounting policies.

 All intra-group balances, transactions and unrealised gains and losses resulting from intra-group transactions and dividends are 
eliminated in full.

 The assets, liabilities, income and expenses of subsidiary companies are consolidated on a line by line basis and carrying value 
of investments held by the Holding Company is eliminated against the subsidiary companies’ shareholders’ equity in the consolidated 
financial statements.  

2.4 Property, plant and equipment and depreciation 

 Property, plant and equipment (except freehold land, buildings on freehold & leasehold land and plant & machinery) are stated 
at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Freehold land, buildings on freehold land and leasehold 
land and plant and machinery are stated at revalued amounts less subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent 
impairment losses, if any. Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less impairment if any. Cost of certain property, plant and 
equipment comprises historical cost. Such cost includes the cost of replacing parts of the property, plant and equipment and 
the cost of borrowings for long-term construction projects, if the recognition criteria are met. 

 Depreciation charge is based on the straight-line method whereby the cost or revalued amount of an asset is written off to profit 
and loss account over its estimated useful life after taking into account residual value, if material. The cost of leasehold land is 
depreciated in equal installments over the lease period. Depreciation on additions is charged from the month in which the asset 
is available for use and on disposals up to the month of disposal. 

 The residual value, depreciation method and the useful lives of each part of property, plant and equipment that is significant in 
relation to the total cost of the asset are reviewed at each balance sheet date, and adjusted, if appropriate.   

 Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to profit and loss account as and when incurred. Improvements are capitalised 
when it is probable that respective future economic benefits will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured 
reliably. Assets replaced, if any, are derecognised.

 Gains and losses on disposal of assets are taken to the profit and loss account, and the related surplus / deficit on revaluation 
of property, plant and equipment is transferred directly to unappropriated profit.

2.5 Intangible assets and amortisation

 Intangible assets with a finite useful life, such as certain softwares, licenses (including extraction rights, software licenses, etc.) 
and property rights, are capitalised initially at cost and subsequently stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment 
losses, if any. 

 Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to 
which it relates. All other expenditures are recognized in profit and loss account as incurred.

 Amortisation is based on the cost of an asset less its residual value. Amortisation is recognized in profit and loss account on a 
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of intangible assets. Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values are 
reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted, if appropriate.

2.6 Stores, spares and consumables

 Stores, spares and consumables are stated at the lower of weighted average cost and net realisable value. Net realizable value 
is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less net estimated cost to sell, which is generally equivalent to 
replacement cost. Items in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges incurred thereon up to the 
balance sheet date.

2.7 Stock-in-trade

 Stock-in-trade is valued at the lower of weighted average cost and estimated net realisable value. 

 Cost comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present 
location and condition. Net realisable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less net estimated 
costs of completion and selling expenses.

 Items in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges incurred thereon up to the balance sheet date.

2.8 Trade debts and other receivables

 Trade debts and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value plus directly attributable cost, if any, and subsequently 
measured at amortised cost. A provision for impairment of trade and other receivables is established when there is objective evidence 
that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of receivables (Refer note 40.6.1).

2.9 Taxation 

 Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognised in the profit and loss account, except 
to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in other comprehensive income or below equity, in which case it is 
recognised in other comprehensive income or below equity, respectively.

 Current 

 Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income at the enacted or substantively enacted rates of taxation after taking into 
account available tax credits and rebates, if any. The charge for current tax includes adjustments to charge for prior years, if any.

 Deferred

 Deferred tax is recognised using balance sheet method, providing for temporary differences between the carrying amounts of 
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. The amount of deferred tax 
provided is based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using the 
enacted or substantively enacted rates of taxation. In this regard the effects on deferred taxation on the portion of income 
expected to be subject to final tax regime is adjusted in accordance with the requirements of Accounting Technical Release – 
27 of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan

 The Group recognises a deferred tax asset to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits for the foreseeable future will be 
available against which the asset can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that 
the related tax benefit will be realised. 

 Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit and loss account is recognised outside profit and loss account. Deferred 
tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

 Further, the Group recognises deferred tax asset / liability on deficit / surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment 
which is adjusted against the related deficit / surplus.

2.10 Cash and cash equivalents

 Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash in hand and current and deposit accounts held with banks. Running finance facilities 
availed by the Group, which are payable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management are included 
as part of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of statement of cash flows.

2.11 Impairment 

 Financial assets

 Financial assets are assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is objective evidence that they are impaired. A 
financial asset is impaired if objective evidence indicates that a loss event has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset, 
and that the loss event had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset that can be estimated reliably. 
Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired may include default or delinquency by a debtor, indications that a debtor 
or issuer will enter bankruptcy.

 All individually significant receivables are assessed for specific impairment. All individually significant receivables found not to be 
specifically impaired are then collectively assessed for any impairment that has been incurred but not yet identified. Receivables 
that are not individually significant are collectively assessed for impairment by grouping together receivables with similar risk 
characteristics.
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 An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortised cost is calculated as the difference between its carrying 
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate. Losses 
are recognised in profit and loss account and reflected in an allowance account against receivables. Interest on the impaired 
asset continues to be recognised through the unwinding of the discount. When a subsequent event causes the amount of 
impairment loss to decrease, the decrease in impairment loss is reversed through profit and loss account.

 Non-financial assets

 The carrying amounts of non-financial assets other than inventories and deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date 
to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is 
estimated. The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value-in-use and its fair value less 
costs to sell. In assessing value-in-use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax 
discount rate that reflects current market assessment of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For the 
purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the smallest group of assets 
that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of 
assets (“the cash-generating unit, or CGU”). 

 The Group’s corporate assets do not generate separate cash inflows. If there is an indication that a corporate asset may be 
impaired, then the recoverable amount is determined for the CGU to which the corporate asset belongs. An impairment loss is 
recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are 
recognised in profit and loss account. 

 Impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss has decreased 
or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable 
amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount 
that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

2.12 Surplus on revaluation of fixed assets

 The surplus arising on revaluation of fixed assets is credited to the “Surplus on Revaluation of property, plant and equipment” 
account shown below equity in the balance sheet in accordance with the requirements of section 235 of the Companies Ordinance, 
1984. The said section was amended through the Companies (Amendment) Ordinance, 2002 and accordingly the Group has 
adopted the following accounting treatment of depreciation on revalued assets, keeping in view the Securities and Exchange 
Commission of Pakistan’s (SECP) SRO 45(1)/2003 dated January 13, 2003:

 a) depreciation on assets which are revalued is determined with reference to the value assigned to such assets on revaluation 
    and depreciation charge for the year is taken to the profit and loss account; and

 b) an amount equal to incremental depreciation for the year net of deferred taxation is transferred from “Surplus on Revaluation 
    of property, plant and equipment” account to unappropriated profit / loss through Statement of Changes in Equity to record 
    realization of surplus to the extent of the incremental depreciation charge for the year.

2.13 Staff retirement benefits

 The Group’s retirement benefit plans comprise of provident funds, pensions, gratuity schemes and a medical scheme for eligible 
retired employees. 

 Defined benefit plans

 The Group operates a funded pension scheme and a funded gratuity scheme for management staff. The pension and gratuity 
schemes are salary schemes providing pension and lump sums, respectively. Pension and gratuity schemes for management 
staff are invested through two approved trust funds. The Group also operates gratuity scheme for non-management staff and 
the pensioners’ medical scheme which are unfunded. The pension and gratuity plans are final salary plans. The pensioner’s 
medical plan reimburses actual medical expenses to pensioners as per entitlement. The Group recognises expense in accordance 
with IAS 19 “Employee Benefits”.

 An actuarial valuation of all defined benefit schemes is conducted every year. The valuation uses the Projected Unit Credit method. 
Actuarial gains and losses are recognized in full in the period in which they occur in other comprehensive income.

 All past service costs are recognized at the earlier of when the amendment or curtailment occurs and when the Group has 
recognized related restructuring or termination benefits. 

 Defined contribution plans

 The Group operates two registered contributory provident funds for its entire staff and a registered defined contribution 
superannuation fund for its management staff, who have either opted for this fund by July 31, 2004 or have joined the Group 
after April 30, 2004. In addition to this, the Group also provides group insurance to all its employees.

 Compensated absences

 The Group recognizes the accrual for compensated absences in respect of employees in which these are earned up to the 
balance sheet date. The accrual  has been recognized on the basis of actuarial valuation.

2.14 Operating leases / Ijarah contracts

 Leases, other than those under Ijarah contracts, in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by 
the lessor, are classified as operating leases. Ijarah contracts are classified as operating leases irrespective of whether significant portion 
of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by lessor. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received 
from the lessor) and Ijarah contracts are charged to the profit and loss account on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

2.15 Trade and other payables

 Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value plus directly attributable cost, if any.

2.16 Borrowings and their cost

 Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense 
in the period in which these are incurred except to the extent of borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, 
construction or production of a qualifying asset. Such borrowing costs, if any, are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset.

2.17 Provisions

 A provision is recognised in the balance sheet when the Group has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, 
and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be 
made of the amount of obligation. The amount recognized as a provision reflects the best estimate of the expenditure required 
to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period.

2.18 Financial liabilities

 All financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value net of directly attributable cost, if any, and subsequently measured at 
amortised cost.

2.19 Earnings per share

 The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing 
the profit after tax attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Group by the weighted average number of ordinary shares 
outstanding during the period.

2.20 Foreign currency translation

 Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are translated to Pak Rupees, at the foreign exchange rate prevailing at the date 
of transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are re-translated into Pak Rupees at the foreign exchange 
rates at the balance sheet date. Exchange differences are taken to the profit and loss account.

2.21 Functional and presentation currency 

 Items included in the consolidated financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment 
in which the Group operates. The consolidated financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees, which is the Group’s functional 
and presentation currency.

2.22 Revenue recognition

 Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue can be 
measured reliably. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, excluding discounts, rebates 
and government levies.

 Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the 
customer. For those products which are often sold with a right of return, accumulated experience is used to estimate and provide 
for such returns at the time of sale.

 Commission income is recognised on date of shipment from suppliers.
 
 Profit on short-term deposits is accounted for on a time-apportioned basis using the effective interest rate method. 
 
 Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive dividend is established.

 Toll manufacturing income is recognised when services are rendered.

2.23 Financial expense and financial income

 Financial expenses are recognised using the effective interest rate method and comprise foreign currency losses and markup / 
interest expense on borrowings.

 Financial income comprises interest income on funds invested. Markup / interest income is recognised as it accrues in profit 
and loss account, using the effective interest rate method. 

2.24 Dividend 

 Dividend distribution to the Group’s shareholders is recognised as a liability in the period in which the dividends are approved.

2.25 Segment reporting 

 Segment reporting is based on the operating (business) segments of the Group. An operating segment is a component of the 
Group that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses 
that relate to transactions with any of the Group’s other components. An operating segment’s operating results are reviewed 
regularly by the Chief Executive Officer (the CEO) to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess 
its performance, and for which discrete financial information is available.  

 Segment results that are reported to the CEO include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be 
allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated items comprise mainly corporate assets, income tax assets, liabilities and related 
income and expenditure. Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the year to acquire property, plant and 
equipment.

 The business segments are engaged in providing products or services which are subject to risks and rewards which differ from 
the risk and rewards of other segments. Segments reported are Polyester, Soda Ash, Life Sciences, Chemicals and others 
(PowerGen), which also reflects the management structure of the Group.

2.26 Derivative financial instruments

 The Group uses derivative financial instruments to hedge its exposure to foreign exchange and interest rate risks arising from 
operational, financing and investment activities. In accordance with its treasury policy, the Group does not hold or issue derivative 
financial instruments for trading purposes. Derivatives qualifying for hedge accounting are accounted for accordingly whereas, 
derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are accounted for as held for trading instruments. All changes in the fair 
value are recognized in the profit and loss account.

2.27 Off-setting

 Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the consolidated financial statements only when there 
is, legally enforceable right to set-off the recognised amount and the Group intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise 
the assets and to settle the liabilities simultaneously. 
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1. Status and Nature of Business

 The Group consists of:

 �  ICI Pakistan Limited; and
 �  ICI Pakistan PowerGen Limited.

 ICI Pakistan Limited (“the Company”) is incorporated in Pakistan and is listed on the Karachi, Lahore and Islamabad Stock 
Exchanges.

 ICI Pakistan PowerGen Limited (“the Subsidiary”) is incorporated in Pakistan as an unlisted public company and is a wholly owned 
subsidiary company of ICI Pakistan Limited.

 The Company is engaged in the manufacture of polyester staple fibre, POY chips, soda ash, specialty chemicals, sodium 
bicarbonate and polyurethanes; marketing of seeds, toll manufactured and imported pharmaceuticals and animal health products; 
and merchanting of general chemicals. It also acts as an indenting agent and toll manufacturer.

 The Subsidiary is engaged in generating, selling and supplying electricity to the Company.  

 The Group’s registered office is situated at 5 West Wharf, Karachi.

2. Summary of significant accounting policies

 Following are the details of significant accounting policies.

2.1 Statement of compliance

 These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with approved accounting standards as applicable 
in Pakistan. Approved accounting standards comprise of such International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the 
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) as are notified under the Companies Ordinance, 1984, provisions of and directives 
issued under the Companies Ordinance, 1984. In case requirements differ, the provisions or directives of the Companies Ordinance, 
1984 shall prevail.

2.2 Basis of preparation

 These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except: 

 a) certain classes of property, plant and equipment (i.e. freehold land, buildings on freehold and leasehold land and plant and 
    machinery) have been measured at revalued amounts; and

 b) Provision for management staff gratuity, non-management staff gratuity, and eligible retired employees’ medical scheme is 
    stated at present value. 

 The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires management 
to make estimates, assumptions and use judgments that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and 
liabilities and income and expenses. Estimates, assumptions and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical 
experience and other factors, including reasonable expectations of future events. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised 
prospectively commencing from the period of revision.

 Judgments and estimates made by the management that may have a significant risk of material adjustments to the consolidated 
financial statements in subsequent years are discussed in note 43.

2.3 Basis of consolidation

 The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, 
here-in-after referred to as “the Group”.

 A company is a subsidiary, if an entity (the Holding Company) directly or indirectly controls, beneficially owns or holds more than 
fifty percent of its voting securities or otherwise has power to elect and appoint more than fifty percent of its directors.

 Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date 
when such control ceases.

 The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the Holding Company, using consistent 
accounting policies.

 All intra-group balances, transactions and unrealised gains and losses resulting from intra-group transactions and dividends are 
eliminated in full.

 The assets, liabilities, income and expenses of subsidiary companies are consolidated on a line by line basis and carrying value 
of investments held by the Holding Company is eliminated against the subsidiary companies’ shareholders’ equity in the consolidated 
financial statements.  

2.4 Property, plant and equipment and depreciation 

 Property, plant and equipment (except freehold land, buildings on freehold & leasehold land and plant & machinery) are stated 
at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Freehold land, buildings on freehold land and leasehold 
land and plant and machinery are stated at revalued amounts less subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent 
impairment losses, if any. Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less impairment if any. Cost of certain property, plant and 
equipment comprises historical cost. Such cost includes the cost of replacing parts of the property, plant and equipment and 
the cost of borrowings for long-term construction projects, if the recognition criteria are met. 

 Depreciation charge is based on the straight-line method whereby the cost or revalued amount of an asset is written off to profit 
and loss account over its estimated useful life after taking into account residual value, if material. The cost of leasehold land is 
depreciated in equal installments over the lease period. Depreciation on additions is charged from the month in which the asset 
is available for use and on disposals up to the month of disposal. 

 The residual value, depreciation method and the useful lives of each part of property, plant and equipment that is significant in 
relation to the total cost of the asset are reviewed at each balance sheet date, and adjusted, if appropriate.   

 Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to profit and loss account as and when incurred. Improvements are capitalised 
when it is probable that respective future economic benefits will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured 
reliably. Assets replaced, if any, are derecognised.

 Gains and losses on disposal of assets are taken to the profit and loss account, and the related surplus / deficit on revaluation 
of property, plant and equipment is transferred directly to unappropriated profit.

2.5 Intangible assets and amortisation

 Intangible assets with a finite useful life, such as certain softwares, licenses (including extraction rights, software licenses, etc.) 
and property rights, are capitalised initially at cost and subsequently stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment 
losses, if any. 

 Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to 
which it relates. All other expenditures are recognized in profit and loss account as incurred.

 Amortisation is based on the cost of an asset less its residual value. Amortisation is recognized in profit and loss account on a 
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of intangible assets. Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values are 
reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted, if appropriate.

2.6 Stores, spares and consumables

 Stores, spares and consumables are stated at the lower of weighted average cost and net realisable value. Net realizable value 
is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less net estimated cost to sell, which is generally equivalent to 
replacement cost. Items in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges incurred thereon up to the 
balance sheet date.

2.7 Stock-in-trade

 Stock-in-trade is valued at the lower of weighted average cost and estimated net realisable value. 

 Cost comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present 
location and condition. Net realisable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less net estimated 
costs of completion and selling expenses.

 Items in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges incurred thereon up to the balance sheet date.

2.8 Trade debts and other receivables

 Trade debts and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value plus directly attributable cost, if any, and subsequently 
measured at amortised cost. A provision for impairment of trade and other receivables is established when there is objective evidence 
that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of receivables (Refer note 40.6.1).

2.9 Taxation 

 Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognised in the profit and loss account, except 
to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in other comprehensive income or below equity, in which case it is 
recognised in other comprehensive income or below equity, respectively.

 Current 

 Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income at the enacted or substantively enacted rates of taxation after taking into 
account available tax credits and rebates, if any. The charge for current tax includes adjustments to charge for prior years, if any.

 Deferred

 Deferred tax is recognised using balance sheet method, providing for temporary differences between the carrying amounts of 
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. The amount of deferred tax 
provided is based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using the 
enacted or substantively enacted rates of taxation. In this regard the effects on deferred taxation on the portion of income 
expected to be subject to final tax regime is adjusted in accordance with the requirements of Accounting Technical Release – 
27 of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan

 The Group recognises a deferred tax asset to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits for the foreseeable future will be 
available against which the asset can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that 
the related tax benefit will be realised. 

 Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit and loss account is recognised outside profit and loss account. Deferred 
tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

 Further, the Group recognises deferred tax asset / liability on deficit / surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment 
which is adjusted against the related deficit / surplus.

2.10 Cash and cash equivalents

 Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash in hand and current and deposit accounts held with banks. Running finance facilities 
availed by the Group, which are payable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management are included 
as part of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of statement of cash flows.

2.11 Impairment 

 Financial assets

 Financial assets are assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is objective evidence that they are impaired. A 
financial asset is impaired if objective evidence indicates that a loss event has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset, 
and that the loss event had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset that can be estimated reliably. 
Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired may include default or delinquency by a debtor, indications that a debtor 
or issuer will enter bankruptcy.

 All individually significant receivables are assessed for specific impairment. All individually significant receivables found not to be 
specifically impaired are then collectively assessed for any impairment that has been incurred but not yet identified. Receivables 
that are not individually significant are collectively assessed for impairment by grouping together receivables with similar risk 
characteristics.

 An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortised cost is calculated as the difference between its carrying 
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate. Losses 
are recognised in profit and loss account and reflected in an allowance account against receivables. Interest on the impaired 
asset continues to be recognised through the unwinding of the discount. When a subsequent event causes the amount of 
impairment loss to decrease, the decrease in impairment loss is reversed through profit and loss account.

 Non-financial assets

 The carrying amounts of non-financial assets other than inventories and deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date 
to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is 
estimated. The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value-in-use and its fair value less 
costs to sell. In assessing value-in-use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax 
discount rate that reflects current market assessment of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For the 
purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the smallest group of assets 
that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of 
assets (“the cash-generating unit, or CGU”). 

 The Group’s corporate assets do not generate separate cash inflows. If there is an indication that a corporate asset may be 
impaired, then the recoverable amount is determined for the CGU to which the corporate asset belongs. An impairment loss is 
recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are 
recognised in profit and loss account. 

 Impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss has decreased 
or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable 
amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount 
that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

2.12 Surplus on revaluation of fixed assets

 The surplus arising on revaluation of fixed assets is credited to the “Surplus on Revaluation of property, plant and equipment” 
account shown below equity in the balance sheet in accordance with the requirements of section 235 of the Companies Ordinance, 
1984. The said section was amended through the Companies (Amendment) Ordinance, 2002 and accordingly the Group has 
adopted the following accounting treatment of depreciation on revalued assets, keeping in view the Securities and Exchange 
Commission of Pakistan’s (SECP) SRO 45(1)/2003 dated January 13, 2003:

 a) depreciation on assets which are revalued is determined with reference to the value assigned to such assets on revaluation 
    and depreciation charge for the year is taken to the profit and loss account; and

 b) an amount equal to incremental depreciation for the year net of deferred taxation is transferred from “Surplus on Revaluation 
    of property, plant and equipment” account to unappropriated profit / loss through Statement of Changes in Equity to record 
    realization of surplus to the extent of the incremental depreciation charge for the year.

2.13 Staff retirement benefits

 The Group’s retirement benefit plans comprise of provident funds, pensions, gratuity schemes and a medical scheme for eligible 
retired employees. 

 Defined benefit plans

 The Group operates a funded pension scheme and a funded gratuity scheme for management staff. The pension and gratuity 
schemes are salary schemes providing pension and lump sums, respectively. Pension and gratuity schemes for management 
staff are invested through two approved trust funds. The Group also operates gratuity scheme for non-management staff and 
the pensioners’ medical scheme which are unfunded. The pension and gratuity plans are final salary plans. The pensioner’s 
medical plan reimburses actual medical expenses to pensioners as per entitlement. The Group recognises expense in accordance 
with IAS 19 “Employee Benefits”.

 An actuarial valuation of all defined benefit schemes is conducted every year. The valuation uses the Projected Unit Credit method. 
Actuarial gains and losses are recognized in full in the period in which they occur in other comprehensive income.

 All past service costs are recognized at the earlier of when the amendment or curtailment occurs and when the Group has 
recognized related restructuring or termination benefits. 

 Defined contribution plans

 The Group operates two registered contributory provident funds for its entire staff and a registered defined contribution 
superannuation fund for its management staff, who have either opted for this fund by July 31, 2004 or have joined the Group 
after April 30, 2004. In addition to this, the Group also provides group insurance to all its employees.

 Compensated absences

 The Group recognizes the accrual for compensated absences in respect of employees in which these are earned up to the 
balance sheet date. The accrual  has been recognized on the basis of actuarial valuation.

2.14 Operating leases / Ijarah contracts

 Leases, other than those under Ijarah contracts, in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by 
the lessor, are classified as operating leases. Ijarah contracts are classified as operating leases irrespective of whether significant portion 
of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by lessor. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received 
from the lessor) and Ijarah contracts are charged to the profit and loss account on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

2.15 Trade and other payables

 Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value plus directly attributable cost, if any.

2.16 Borrowings and their cost

 Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense 
in the period in which these are incurred except to the extent of borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, 
construction or production of a qualifying asset. Such borrowing costs, if any, are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset.

2.17 Provisions

 A provision is recognised in the balance sheet when the Group has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, 
and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be 
made of the amount of obligation. The amount recognized as a provision reflects the best estimate of the expenditure required 
to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period.

2.18 Financial liabilities

 All financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value net of directly attributable cost, if any, and subsequently measured at 
amortised cost.

2.19 Earnings per share

 The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing 
the profit after tax attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Group by the weighted average number of ordinary shares 
outstanding during the period.

2.20 Foreign currency translation

 Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are translated to Pak Rupees, at the foreign exchange rate prevailing at the date 
of transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are re-translated into Pak Rupees at the foreign exchange 
rates at the balance sheet date. Exchange differences are taken to the profit and loss account.

2.21 Functional and presentation currency 

 Items included in the consolidated financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment 
in which the Group operates. The consolidated financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees, which is the Group’s functional 
and presentation currency.

2.22 Revenue recognition

 Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue can be 
measured reliably. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, excluding discounts, rebates 
and government levies.

 Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the 
customer. For those products which are often sold with a right of return, accumulated experience is used to estimate and provide 
for such returns at the time of sale.

 Commission income is recognised on date of shipment from suppliers.
 
 Profit on short-term deposits is accounted for on a time-apportioned basis using the effective interest rate method. 
 
 Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive dividend is established.

 Toll manufacturing income is recognised when services are rendered.

2.23 Financial expense and financial income

 Financial expenses are recognised using the effective interest rate method and comprise foreign currency losses and markup / 
interest expense on borrowings.

 Financial income comprises interest income on funds invested. Markup / interest income is recognised as it accrues in profit 
and loss account, using the effective interest rate method. 

2.24 Dividend 

 Dividend distribution to the Group’s shareholders is recognised as a liability in the period in which the dividends are approved.

2.25 Segment reporting 

 Segment reporting is based on the operating (business) segments of the Group. An operating segment is a component of the 
Group that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses 
that relate to transactions with any of the Group’s other components. An operating segment’s operating results are reviewed 
regularly by the Chief Executive Officer (the CEO) to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess 
its performance, and for which discrete financial information is available.  

 Segment results that are reported to the CEO include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be 
allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated items comprise mainly corporate assets, income tax assets, liabilities and related 
income and expenditure. Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the year to acquire property, plant and 
equipment.

 The business segments are engaged in providing products or services which are subject to risks and rewards which differ from 
the risk and rewards of other segments. Segments reported are Polyester, Soda Ash, Life Sciences, Chemicals and others 
(PowerGen), which also reflects the management structure of the Group.

2.26 Derivative financial instruments

 The Group uses derivative financial instruments to hedge its exposure to foreign exchange and interest rate risks arising from 
operational, financing and investment activities. In accordance with its treasury policy, the Group does not hold or issue derivative 
financial instruments for trading purposes. Derivatives qualifying for hedge accounting are accounted for accordingly whereas, 
derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are accounted for as held for trading instruments. All changes in the fair 
value are recognized in the profit and loss account.

2.27 Off-setting

 Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the consolidated financial statements only when there 
is, legally enforceable right to set-off the recognised amount and the Group intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise 
the assets and to settle the liabilities simultaneously. 
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1. Status and Nature of Business

 The Group consists of:

 �  ICI Pakistan Limited; and
 �  ICI Pakistan PowerGen Limited.

 ICI Pakistan Limited (“the Company”) is incorporated in Pakistan and is listed on the Karachi, Lahore and Islamabad Stock 
Exchanges.

 ICI Pakistan PowerGen Limited (“the Subsidiary”) is incorporated in Pakistan as an unlisted public company and is a wholly owned 
subsidiary company of ICI Pakistan Limited.

 The Company is engaged in the manufacture of polyester staple fibre, POY chips, soda ash, specialty chemicals, sodium 
bicarbonate and polyurethanes; marketing of seeds, toll manufactured and imported pharmaceuticals and animal health products; 
and merchanting of general chemicals. It also acts as an indenting agent and toll manufacturer.

 The Subsidiary is engaged in generating, selling and supplying electricity to the Company.  

 The Group’s registered office is situated at 5 West Wharf, Karachi.

2. Summary of significant accounting policies

 Following are the details of significant accounting policies.

2.1 Statement of compliance

 These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with approved accounting standards as applicable 
in Pakistan. Approved accounting standards comprise of such International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the 
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) as are notified under the Companies Ordinance, 1984, provisions of and directives 
issued under the Companies Ordinance, 1984. In case requirements differ, the provisions or directives of the Companies Ordinance, 
1984 shall prevail.

2.2 Basis of preparation

 These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except: 

 a) certain classes of property, plant and equipment (i.e. freehold land, buildings on freehold and leasehold land and plant and 
    machinery) have been measured at revalued amounts; and

 b) Provision for management staff gratuity, non-management staff gratuity, and eligible retired employees’ medical scheme is 
    stated at present value. 

 The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires management 
to make estimates, assumptions and use judgments that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and 
liabilities and income and expenses. Estimates, assumptions and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical 
experience and other factors, including reasonable expectations of future events. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised 
prospectively commencing from the period of revision.

 Judgments and estimates made by the management that may have a significant risk of material adjustments to the consolidated 
financial statements in subsequent years are discussed in note 43.

2.3 Basis of consolidation

 The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, 
here-in-after referred to as “the Group”.

 A company is a subsidiary, if an entity (the Holding Company) directly or indirectly controls, beneficially owns or holds more than 
fifty percent of its voting securities or otherwise has power to elect and appoint more than fifty percent of its directors.

 Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date 
when such control ceases.

 The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the Holding Company, using consistent 
accounting policies.

 All intra-group balances, transactions and unrealised gains and losses resulting from intra-group transactions and dividends are 
eliminated in full.

 The assets, liabilities, income and expenses of subsidiary companies are consolidated on a line by line basis and carrying value 
of investments held by the Holding Company is eliminated against the subsidiary companies’ shareholders’ equity in the consolidated 
financial statements.  

2.4 Property, plant and equipment and depreciation 

 Property, plant and equipment (except freehold land, buildings on freehold & leasehold land and plant & machinery) are stated 
at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Freehold land, buildings on freehold land and leasehold 
land and plant and machinery are stated at revalued amounts less subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent 
impairment losses, if any. Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less impairment if any. Cost of certain property, plant and 
equipment comprises historical cost. Such cost includes the cost of replacing parts of the property, plant and equipment and 
the cost of borrowings for long-term construction projects, if the recognition criteria are met. 

 Depreciation charge is based on the straight-line method whereby the cost or revalued amount of an asset is written off to profit 
and loss account over its estimated useful life after taking into account residual value, if material. The cost of leasehold land is 
depreciated in equal installments over the lease period. Depreciation on additions is charged from the month in which the asset 
is available for use and on disposals up to the month of disposal. 

 The residual value, depreciation method and the useful lives of each part of property, plant and equipment that is significant in 
relation to the total cost of the asset are reviewed at each balance sheet date, and adjusted, if appropriate.   

 Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to profit and loss account as and when incurred. Improvements are capitalised 
when it is probable that respective future economic benefits will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured 
reliably. Assets replaced, if any, are derecognised.

 Gains and losses on disposal of assets are taken to the profit and loss account, and the related surplus / deficit on revaluation 
of property, plant and equipment is transferred directly to unappropriated profit.

2.5 Intangible assets and amortisation

 Intangible assets with a finite useful life, such as certain softwares, licenses (including extraction rights, software licenses, etc.) 
and property rights, are capitalised initially at cost and subsequently stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment 
losses, if any. 

 Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to 
which it relates. All other expenditures are recognized in profit and loss account as incurred.

 Amortisation is based on the cost of an asset less its residual value. Amortisation is recognized in profit and loss account on a 
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of intangible assets. Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values are 
reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted, if appropriate.

2.6 Stores, spares and consumables

 Stores, spares and consumables are stated at the lower of weighted average cost and net realisable value. Net realizable value 
is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less net estimated cost to sell, which is generally equivalent to 
replacement cost. Items in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges incurred thereon up to the 
balance sheet date.

2.7 Stock-in-trade

 Stock-in-trade is valued at the lower of weighted average cost and estimated net realisable value. 

 Cost comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present 
location and condition. Net realisable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less net estimated 
costs of completion and selling expenses.

 Items in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges incurred thereon up to the balance sheet date.

2.8 Trade debts and other receivables

 Trade debts and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value plus directly attributable cost, if any, and subsequently 
measured at amortised cost. A provision for impairment of trade and other receivables is established when there is objective evidence 
that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of receivables (Refer note 40.6.1).

2.9 Taxation 

 Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognised in the profit and loss account, except 
to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in other comprehensive income or below equity, in which case it is 
recognised in other comprehensive income or below equity, respectively.

 Current 

 Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income at the enacted or substantively enacted rates of taxation after taking into 
account available tax credits and rebates, if any. The charge for current tax includes adjustments to charge for prior years, if any.

 Deferred

 Deferred tax is recognised using balance sheet method, providing for temporary differences between the carrying amounts of 
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. The amount of deferred tax 
provided is based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using the 
enacted or substantively enacted rates of taxation. In this regard the effects on deferred taxation on the portion of income 
expected to be subject to final tax regime is adjusted in accordance with the requirements of Accounting Technical Release – 
27 of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan

 The Group recognises a deferred tax asset to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits for the foreseeable future will be 
available against which the asset can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that 
the related tax benefit will be realised. 

 Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit and loss account is recognised outside profit and loss account. Deferred 
tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

 Further, the Group recognises deferred tax asset / liability on deficit / surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment 
which is adjusted against the related deficit / surplus.

2.10 Cash and cash equivalents

 Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash in hand and current and deposit accounts held with banks. Running finance facilities 
availed by the Group, which are payable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management are included 
as part of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of statement of cash flows.

2.11 Impairment 

 Financial assets

 Financial assets are assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is objective evidence that they are impaired. A 
financial asset is impaired if objective evidence indicates that a loss event has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset, 
and that the loss event had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset that can be estimated reliably. 
Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired may include default or delinquency by a debtor, indications that a debtor 
or issuer will enter bankruptcy.

 All individually significant receivables are assessed for specific impairment. All individually significant receivables found not to be 
specifically impaired are then collectively assessed for any impairment that has been incurred but not yet identified. Receivables 
that are not individually significant are collectively assessed for impairment by grouping together receivables with similar risk 
characteristics.

 An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortised cost is calculated as the difference between its carrying 
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate. Losses 
are recognised in profit and loss account and reflected in an allowance account against receivables. Interest on the impaired 
asset continues to be recognised through the unwinding of the discount. When a subsequent event causes the amount of 
impairment loss to decrease, the decrease in impairment loss is reversed through profit and loss account.

 Non-financial assets

 The carrying amounts of non-financial assets other than inventories and deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date 
to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is 
estimated. The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value-in-use and its fair value less 
costs to sell. In assessing value-in-use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax 
discount rate that reflects current market assessment of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For the 
purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the smallest group of assets 
that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of 
assets (“the cash-generating unit, or CGU”). 

 The Group’s corporate assets do not generate separate cash inflows. If there is an indication that a corporate asset may be 
impaired, then the recoverable amount is determined for the CGU to which the corporate asset belongs. An impairment loss is 
recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are 
recognised in profit and loss account. 

 Impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss has decreased 
or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable 
amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount 
that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

2.12 Surplus on revaluation of fixed assets

 The surplus arising on revaluation of fixed assets is credited to the “Surplus on Revaluation of property, plant and equipment” 
account shown below equity in the balance sheet in accordance with the requirements of section 235 of the Companies Ordinance, 
1984. The said section was amended through the Companies (Amendment) Ordinance, 2002 and accordingly the Group has 
adopted the following accounting treatment of depreciation on revalued assets, keeping in view the Securities and Exchange 
Commission of Pakistan’s (SECP) SRO 45(1)/2003 dated January 13, 2003:

 a) depreciation on assets which are revalued is determined with reference to the value assigned to such assets on revaluation 
    and depreciation charge for the year is taken to the profit and loss account; and

 b) an amount equal to incremental depreciation for the year net of deferred taxation is transferred from “Surplus on Revaluation 
    of property, plant and equipment” account to unappropriated profit / loss through Statement of Changes in Equity to record 
    realization of surplus to the extent of the incremental depreciation charge for the year.

2.13 Staff retirement benefits

 The Group’s retirement benefit plans comprise of provident funds, pensions, gratuity schemes and a medical scheme for eligible 
retired employees. 

 Defined benefit plans

 The Group operates a funded pension scheme and a funded gratuity scheme for management staff. The pension and gratuity 
schemes are salary schemes providing pension and lump sums, respectively. Pension and gratuity schemes for management 
staff are invested through two approved trust funds. The Group also operates gratuity scheme for non-management staff and 
the pensioners’ medical scheme which are unfunded. The pension and gratuity plans are final salary plans. The pensioner’s 
medical plan reimburses actual medical expenses to pensioners as per entitlement. The Group recognises expense in accordance 
with IAS 19 “Employee Benefits”.

 An actuarial valuation of all defined benefit schemes is conducted every year. The valuation uses the Projected Unit Credit method. 
Actuarial gains and losses are recognized in full in the period in which they occur in other comprehensive income.

 All past service costs are recognized at the earlier of when the amendment or curtailment occurs and when the Group has 
recognized related restructuring or termination benefits. 

 Defined contribution plans

 The Group operates two registered contributory provident funds for its entire staff and a registered defined contribution 
superannuation fund for its management staff, who have either opted for this fund by July 31, 2004 or have joined the Group 
after April 30, 2004. In addition to this, the Group also provides group insurance to all its employees.

 Compensated absences

 The Group recognizes the accrual for compensated absences in respect of employees in which these are earned up to the 
balance sheet date. The accrual  has been recognized on the basis of actuarial valuation.

2.14 Operating leases / Ijarah contracts

 Leases, other than those under Ijarah contracts, in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by 
the lessor, are classified as operating leases. Ijarah contracts are classified as operating leases irrespective of whether significant portion 
of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by lessor. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received 
from the lessor) and Ijarah contracts are charged to the profit and loss account on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

2.15 Trade and other payables

 Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value plus directly attributable cost, if any.

2.16 Borrowings and their cost

 Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense 
in the period in which these are incurred except to the extent of borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, 
construction or production of a qualifying asset. Such borrowing costs, if any, are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset.

2.17 Provisions

 A provision is recognised in the balance sheet when the Group has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, 
and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be 
made of the amount of obligation. The amount recognized as a provision reflects the best estimate of the expenditure required 
to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period.

2.18 Financial liabilities

 All financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value net of directly attributable cost, if any, and subsequently measured at 
amortised cost.

2.19 Earnings per share

 The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing 
the profit after tax attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Group by the weighted average number of ordinary shares 
outstanding during the period.

2.20 Foreign currency translation

 Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are translated to Pak Rupees, at the foreign exchange rate prevailing at the date 
of transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are re-translated into Pak Rupees at the foreign exchange 
rates at the balance sheet date. Exchange differences are taken to the profit and loss account.

2.21 Functional and presentation currency 

 Items included in the consolidated financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment 
in which the Group operates. The consolidated financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees, which is the Group’s functional 
and presentation currency.

2.22 Revenue recognition

 Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue can be 
measured reliably. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, excluding discounts, rebates 
and government levies.

 Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the 
customer. For those products which are often sold with a right of return, accumulated experience is used to estimate and provide 
for such returns at the time of sale.

 Commission income is recognised on date of shipment from suppliers.
 
 Profit on short-term deposits is accounted for on a time-apportioned basis using the effective interest rate method. 
 
 Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive dividend is established.

 Toll manufacturing income is recognised when services are rendered.

2.23 Financial expense and financial income

 Financial expenses are recognised using the effective interest rate method and comprise foreign currency losses and markup / 
interest expense on borrowings.

 Financial income comprises interest income on funds invested. Markup / interest income is recognised as it accrues in profit 
and loss account, using the effective interest rate method. 

2.24 Dividend 

 Dividend distribution to the Group’s shareholders is recognised as a liability in the period in which the dividends are approved.

2.25 Segment reporting 

 Segment reporting is based on the operating (business) segments of the Group. An operating segment is a component of the 
Group that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses 
that relate to transactions with any of the Group’s other components. An operating segment’s operating results are reviewed 
regularly by the Chief Executive Officer (the CEO) to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess 
its performance, and for which discrete financial information is available.  

 Segment results that are reported to the CEO include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be 
allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated items comprise mainly corporate assets, income tax assets, liabilities and related 
income and expenditure. Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the year to acquire property, plant and 
equipment.

 The business segments are engaged in providing products or services which are subject to risks and rewards which differ from 
the risk and rewards of other segments. Segments reported are Polyester, Soda Ash, Life Sciences, Chemicals and others 
(PowerGen), which also reflects the management structure of the Group.

2.26 Derivative financial instruments

 The Group uses derivative financial instruments to hedge its exposure to foreign exchange and interest rate risks arising from 
operational, financing and investment activities. In accordance with its treasury policy, the Group does not hold or issue derivative 
financial instruments for trading purposes. Derivatives qualifying for hedge accounting are accounted for accordingly whereas, 
derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are accounted for as held for trading instruments. All changes in the fair 
value are recognized in the profit and loss account.

2.27 Off-setting

 Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the consolidated financial statements only when there 
is, legally enforceable right to set-off the recognised amount and the Group intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise 
the assets and to settle the liabilities simultaneously. 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2014
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   Land  Lime beds               Buildings   Plant and  Railway  Rolling  Furniture  Total
  Freehold  Leasehold on freehold  On On  machinery sidings stock and and
       land  freehold  leasehold     vehicles equipment
       land land
   Note 3.3                 Note 3.3      Note 3.3 & 3.4  

  As at June 30, 2014

Net carrying value basis 
Opening net book value (NBV)  341,885   -    134,525  321,322   655,011  6,497,300   -    12,965  184,251   8,147,259 
Addition / transfer (at cost) - note 3.2.1  96,137   -    10,899   92,816   443,596  3,446,311   -    6,090  63,603   4,159,452 
Disposal / transfer (at NBV)  -     -     -     (30)  (260)  (16,162)  -    (4,700)  (555)  (21,707)
Adjustments (at NBV) - note 3.2.2  (1) (29) (15) (87,351)  86,751  (25,043)  -     26,777  (43,085)  (41,996)
Depreciation charge / reversal - note 3.5  -     29   (11,549)  (50,396) (105,011) (1,095,606)  -    (14,730) (57,199)  (1,334,462)

Net book value  438,021   -     133,860   276,361   1,080,087   8,806,800   -     26,402   147,015   10,908,546 
 
Gross carrying value basis 
Cost / revaluation  438,021  562,166  250,556   2,462,313  1,968,029  23,281,028   297  118,610  491,723  29,572,743 
Accumulated depreciation  -    (562,166)  (116,696)  (2,185,952)  (887,942) (14,474,228)  (297) (92,208)  (344,708) (18,664,197)

Net book value  438,021   -    133,860   276,361  1,080,087  8,806,800   -    26,402  147,015  10,908,546 
 
Depreciation rate % per annum  -     2 to 4   5 to 25   5 to 50   3 to 33.33   3.33 to 50   3.33   10 to 33.33   10 to 50 
 
  As at June 30, 2013

Net carrying value basis 
Opening net book value  341,885   -     127,434   337,375   683,958   6,592,326   -     21,010   199,593   8,303,581 
Addition / transfer (at cost)  -     -     12,534   8,993   14,383   357,579   -     400   14,311   408,200 
Disposal / transfer (at NBV)  -     -     -     -     (803)  (3,654)  -     (508)  (29)  (4,994)
Depreciation charge - note 3.5  -     -     (5,443)  (25,046)  (42,527)  (448,951)  -     (7,937)  (29,624)  (559,528)

Net book value  341,885   -    134,525  321,322  655,011  6,497,300   -     12,965  184,251  8,147,259 
 
Gross carrying value basis 
Cost / revaluation  341,885   567,799   239,657   1,256,083   1,470,646   19,991,178   297   94,690   665,599   24,627,834 
Accumulated depreciation  -     (567,799)  (105,132)  (934,761)  (815,635)  (13,493,878)  (297)  (81,725)  (481,348)  (16,480,575)

Net book value  341,885   -     134,525   321,322  655,011  6,497,300   -    12,965  184,251   8,147,259 

Depreciation rate % per annum  -     2 to 4     3.33 to 7.5   5 to 10    2.5 to 10   3.33 to 50   3.33   10 to 25     10 to 33.33  

 As at  As at
 June 30, June 30,
  2014 2013

Amounts in Rs ’000

3. Property, plant and equipment 

3.1 The following is a statement of property, plant and equipment: 

 Operating property, plant and equipment - note 3.2  10,908,546   8,147,259 

 Capital work-in-progress - note 3.7  899,956   2,580,208 

   11,808,502   10,727,467 

 

3.2 The following is a statement of operating property, plant and equipment:

3.2.1 Additions to plant and machinery includes interest charge on long-term loan obtained for coal fired boiler project amounting to 
Rs 231.406 million. Out of Rs 231.406 million, an amount of Rs 95.406 million was incurred during the year ended June 30, 
2014.

 
3.2.2 During the year, the Group appointed a professional firm to conduct a physical verification exercise for reconciling physical fixed 

assets with the books of account. As per their recommendation, fixed asset having net book value of Rs. 27.295 million and 
Rs. 14.701 million have been written off and reclassified to intangible assets, respectively.       
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Amounts in Rs ’000

 As at  As at
 June 30, June 30,
  2014 2013

 As at  As at
 June 30, June 30,
  2014 2013

3.2.3 Property, plant and equipment includes the following major spare parts and stand by equipment: 

 Cost  366,575   345,981 

 Net book value  195,797   205,170 

 
3.3 Subsequent to revaluation on October 1, 1959, September 30, 2000 and December 15, 2006 which had resulted in a surplus 

of Rs 14.207 million, Rs 1,569.869 million and Rs 704.752 million, respectively, the land, buildings on freehold and leasehold 
land and plant and machinery were revalued again on December 31, 2011 resulting in a net surplus of  Rs 848.191 million, 
respectively. The valuation was conducted by an independent valuer. Valuations for plant and machinery and building were 
based on the estimated gross replacement cost, depreciated to reflect the residual service potential of the assets taking account 
of the age, condition and obsolescence. Land was valued on the basis of fair market value.

3.4 Plant and machinery including equipment held with Searle Pakistan Limited, Breeze Pharmaceutical Limited and Maple 
Pharmaceutical (Private) Limited (toll manufacturers), are as follows: 

 Cost  8,369   2,272 

 Net book value 5,638  1,099 

3.5 The depreciation charge for the year / period has been allocated as follows:  
 

 Cost of sales - note 26  1,272,297  529,895 

 Selling and distribution expenses - note 27  13,821   2,837 

 Administration and general expenses - note 28  48,344   26,796 

   1,334,462   559,528 

3.5.1 Depreciation charge is inclusive of the incremental depreciation due to revaluation.
 
3.6 Had there been no revaluation, the net book value of specific classes of operating property, plant and equipment would have 

amounted to: 

 Net book value 

 Freehold land  138,741   42,605 

 Buildings  1,219,920   806,318 

 Plant and machinery  8,394,093   6,017,549 

   9,752,754   6,866,472 

  For the For the 
   year six months 
  ended period ended
  June 30, 2014 June 30, 2013
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  As at June 30, 2014
   Mode of sale Cost Accumulated   Net book    Sale Particulars of buyers 
     depreciation value proceeds 

 Plant and machinery 

 Refractory, Panelmate and   Scrap 31,040 14,608 16,434 1,301 Shahbaz and Company,
   various other assets      Malakwal District Mandi 
       Bahauddin 

 Rolling stock and vehicles 

 Audi and Fork lift trucks Auction  6,440   1,739   4,701   5,343  Mr. Azfar Abbas Ashary, 
       Karachi 

 Building 

 Civil Work Lime Stone Storage  Scrap  2,877   2,648   229   20  Shahbaz and Company,
       Malakwal District Mandi 
       Bahauddin 

                        As at June 30, 2013

 Plant and machinery 

 Diesel Generator Set and  Scrap  16,594   13,333   3,261   1,037  Shahbaz and Company, 
   various other items      Malakwal district Mandi
        Bahauddin 

 Rolling stock and vehicles 

 Toyota Corolla, Toyota Altis  Auction  2,600   2,092   508   2,470  S Muhammad Shakeel, 
    and Fork lift trucks      Mr. Zahid Qadri and 
         Mr. Asif Mahmood, Karachi 

 Building 

 Scrap items Scrap  2,930   2,274   656   10  Anjum Wood Craft,  
       Khewra District Jhelum 

Amounts in Rs ’000

 As at  As at
 June 30, June 30,
  2014 2013

3.7 Capital work-in-progress comprises of: 

   Civil works and buildings  270,916   290,758 

   Plant and machinery  553,481   1,970,677 

   Miscellaneous equipment  44,606   235,219 

   Advances to suppliers / contractors  19,013   14,189 

   Designing, consultancy and engineering fee  11,940   69,365 

   899,956   2,580,208 

 This includes interest charged during the  period ended June 30, 2013 in respect of long-term loan obtained for coal fired boiler 
project amounting to Rs 136 million which has been transferred to operating property, plant and equipment during the year. 

3.7.1 The following is the movement in capital work-in-progress during the year 
 

 Balance at the beginning of the year / period  2,580,208   2,006,731 

 Addition during the year / period  2,431,531  981,677 

   5,011,739   2,988,408 

 

 Transferred to property plant and equipment during the year / period  4,111,783   408,200 

 Balance at the end of the year / period  899,956   2,580,208 
 
3.8 Details of operating property, plant and equipment disposals having net book value in excess of Rs 50,000 are as follows: 

F 75ICI Pakistan Limited Annual Report 2013-14



4 Intangible assets 

   As at June 30, 2014 

  Software Licenses  Total 

 

 Net carrying value basis

 Opening net book value (NBV)  11,754  33,369   45,123 

 Addition / transfer (at cost)   -    51,303   51,303 

 Adjustments (at NBV) - note  4.1  10,900  3,692   14,592 

 Amortisation charge - note 4.2  (12,286)  (34,471)  (46,757)

 Net book value  10,368   53,893   64,261 

 

 Gross carrying amount 

 Cost  172,187  188,546   360,733 

 Accumulated amortisation  (161,819) (134,653)  (296,472)

 Net book value  10,368   53,893   64,261 

 Amortisation rate % per annum 20     20 to 50  

 

   As at June 30, 2013 

 Net carrying value basis 

 Opening net book value  19,115   21,877   40,992 

 Additions (at cost)  -     25,042   25,042 

 Amortisation charge - note 4.2  (7,361)  (13,550)  (20,911)

 Net book value  11,754  33,369   45,123 

 

 Gross carrying amount 

 Cost  230,212   128,459   358,671 

 Accumulated amortisation  (218,458)  (95,090)  (313,548)

 Net book value  11,754   33,369   45,123 

 Amortisation rate % per annum 20    20 to 50 

 

4.1 As explained in note 3.2.2, assets having net book value of Rs. 14.701 million and Rs. 0.109 million have been reclassified 

from tangible assets and written off, respectively. 

 

4.2 The amortisation charge for the year / period has been allocated as follows: 

 

 Cost of sales - note 26  13,614   4,460 

 Selling and distribution expenses - note 27  1,948   4,485 

 Administration and general expenses - note 28  31,195   11,966 

   46,757  20,911 

 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2014

Amounts in Rs ’000

  For the For the 
   year six months 
  ended period ended
  June 30, 2014 June 30, 2013
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5. Long-term investments 
 
 Unquoted - at cost 

 Equity security available-for-sale 
   -Arabian Sea Country Club Limited  
     250,000 ordinary shares (June 30, 2013: 250,000) of Rs 10 each  2,500   2,500 

6. Long-term loans 

   – Considered good 

 Due from directors, executives and employees - note 6.1  256,525  202,071 
 
6.1 Due from directors, executives and employees 
  Motor car House Total  Total 
   building 

 Due from directors and executives - note 6.2, 6.3 & 6.4  145,844   59,167   205,011   186,930 
 Less: Receivable within one year - note 11  27,450   26,517   53,967   47,148 
   118,394   32,650   151,044   139,782 

 Due from employees - note 6.3  128,345   86,023 
 Less: Receivable within one year - note 11  22,864   23,734 
   105,481   62,289 
   256,525   202,071 

 Outstanding for period: 
    - less than three years but over one year  163,005   113,643 
    - more than three years  93,520   88,428 
   256,525   202,071 
 
6.2 Reconciliation of the carrying amount of loans to directors and executives: 
 
 Balance at the beginning of the year / period  186,930   182,008 
 Disbursements during the year / period  123,988   46,528 
 Repayments during the year / period  (105,907)  (41,606)
 Balance at the end of the year / period  205,011   186,930 
 
6.3 Loans for purchase of motor cars and house building are repayable between two to ten years. These loans are interest free 

and granted to the employees including executives of the Group in accordance with their terms of employment. 
 
6.4 The maximum aggregate amount of loans due from the director and executives at the end of any month during the year was 

Rs 205.011 million (June 30, 2013: Rs 186.930 million). 
 

7 Long-term deposits and prepayments 
 
 Deposits  25,679   24,632 
 Prepayments   2,164   8,706 
   27,843   33,338 

Amounts in Rs ’000

 As at  As at
 June 30, June 30,
  2014 2013
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8 Stores, spares and consumables  
 
 Stores - note 8.1  36,803   48,301 
 Spares  680,133   665,949 
 Consumables  106,167   106,915 
   823,103   821,165 
 Less: Provision for slow moving and obsolete spares - note 8.2  205,435   205,383 
   617,668   615,782 
 
8.1 The above amounts include stores and spares in transit of Rs. 17.506 million (June 30, 2013: Rs. 19.821 million) 
 
8.2 Movement of provision for slow moving and obsolete spares is as follows: 
 
 Balance at the beginning of the year / period  205,383   205,383 
 Charge for the year / period - note 28  154   -   
 Write off during the year / period  (102)  -   
 Balance at the end of the year / period  205,435   205,383 

9. Stock-in-trade 
 
 Raw and packing material (include in-transit Rs 791.850 million; 2013:  
   Rs 741.313 million) - note 9.3  2,372,699   2,106,390 
 Work-in-process  165,341   232,841 
 Finished goods (include in-transit Rs 137.44 million, 2013: Rs. 343.754 million)  2,166,884   2,348,788 
   4,704,924   4,688,019 
 Less: Provision for slow moving and obsolete stock-in-trade - note 9.1 
 - Raw materials   8,771   15,461 
 - Finished goods  88,937   77,681 
   97,708   93,142 
   4,607,216   4,594,877 

9.1 Movement of provision for slow moving and obsolete stock-in-trade is as follows: 
 
 Balance at the beginning of the year / period  93,142   88,428 
 Charge for the year / period - note 28  12,389   8,231 
 Reversal during the year / period  (6,890)  -   
 Write-off for the year / period  (933)  (3,517)
 Balance at the end of the year / period  97,708   93,142 
 
9.2 Stock amounting to  Rs 28.801 million (June 30, 2013: Rs 364.413 million) is measured at net realisable value and 

impairment has been reversed by Rs 20.529 million (June 30, 2013: Impairment charge of Rs 17.354 million) to arrive 
at its net realisable value. 

 As at  As at
 June 30, June 30,
  2014 2013

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2014

Amounts in Rs ’000
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9.3 Raw and packing materials held with the toll manufacturers are as follows: 

  Searle Pakistan Limited  349,019   305,766 
 Maple Pharmaceutical (Private) Limited  2,064   1,934 
 EPLA Laboratories (Private) Limited  10,031   46,258 
 Breeze Pharma (Private) Limited  20,811   33,831 
 NovaMed Pharmaceuticals (Private) Ltd   18,002   25,308 
 BioGenics Pakistan (Private) Limited  1,551   -   
 Seeds Sahiwal warehouses  21,777   1,597 
   423,255   414,694 
 
10 Trade debts 

 Considered good 
    - Secured  161,166   288,092 
    - Unsecured   891,976   743,984 
   1,053,142   1,032,076 
 Considered doubtful  93,664   94,802 
   1,146,806   1,126,878 
 Less: Provision for: 
    - Doubtful debts - note 40.4 & 40.6  93,664   94,802 
    - Discounts payable on Sales  169,432   140,890 
   263,096   235,692 
  note 10.1  883,710   891,186 
 
10.1 The above balances include amounts due from the following associated undertakings: 
 
   Yunus Textile Mills Limited  26,397   17,496 
   Lucky Textile Mills Limited  1,162   10,657 
   Lucky Knits (Private) Limited  3,340   730 
   30,899   28,883 

11. Loans and advances 

 Considered good 
 Loans due from: 
   Directors and executives - note 6.1  53,967   47,148 
   Employees - note 6.1  22,864   23,734 
   76,831   70,882 
 Advances to: 
   Directors and executives - note 11.1  14,538   7,573 
   Employees  219   199 
   Contractors and suppliers  95,921   76,572 
   Others  5,491   5,414 
   116,169   89,758 
   193,000   160,640 
 Considered doubtful  7,292   7,292 
   200,292   167,932 
 Less: Provision for doubtful loans and advances - note 40.4 & 40.6  7,292   7,292 
   193,000   160,640 
 
11.1 The maximum aggregate amount of advances due from the directors and executives at the end of any month during the year 

was Rs 3.221 million and  Rs 14.333 million (June 30, 2013: Rs 2.585 million and  Rs 10.922 million) respectively.

Amounts in Rs ’000

 As at  As at
 June 30, June 30,
  2014 2013
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12. Trade deposits and short-term prepayments 

 Trade deposits  26,008   17,165 
 Short-term prepayments   194,010   144,723 
   220,018   161,888 

13. Other receivables 
 
 Considered good 
 Duties, sales tax and octroi refunds due  287,020   392,101 
 Commission receivable  22,612   21,784 
 Interest income receivable  8,214   10,231 
 Receivable from principal - note 13.2  1,068,427   710,600 
 Others  102,412   53,496 
   1,488,685   1,188,212 
 Considered doubtful  20,237   57,312 
   1,508,922   1,245,524 
 Less: Provision for doubtful receivables - note 13.3  20,237   57,312 
  note 13.1  1,488,685   1,188,212 
 
13.1 The above amount includes Rs Nil (June 30, 2013: Rs 23.36 million) on account of exchange gain on forward exchange
 contracts. 
13.2 This includes receivable amounting to Rs 1,019.8 million (June 30, 2013: Rs 710.6 million) from foreign vendor in relation to 

margin support guarantee. 
  
13.3 Movement of provision for doubtful receivables 
 
 Balance at the beginning of the year / period  57,312   57,312 
 Reversal during the year / period  (37,075)  -   
 Balance at the end of the year / period  20,237   57,312 
 

14 Cash and bank balances 
 
 Cash at bank: 
    - Short-term deposits - note 14.1  103,000   102,000 
    - Current accounts   747,210   465,308 
 In hand: 
    - Cheques  -     261,159 
    - Cash  7,994   7,676 
   858,204   836,143 
 
14.1 Represent security deposits from customer that are placed with various banks with terms ranging from one week to one year. 

The mark-up on these deposits ranges between 8.00% to 9.00% (June 30, 2013: 9.50% to 11.50%) and these term deposits 
are readily encashable without any penalty. 

 As at  As at
 June 30, June 30,
  2014 2013
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15. Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital
  
  83,734,062   83,734,062  Ordinary shares of Rs 10 each fully paid in cash     837,341   837,341 

   Ordinary shares of Rs 10 each issued as  
      fully paid for consideration other than cash under 
  211,925   211,925    scheme of arrangement for amalgamation (note 15.1)  2,119   2,119 

   Ordinary shares of Rs 10 each issued as 
  16,786   16,786    fully paid bonus shares  168   168 

   Ordinary shares issued pursuant to the  
     previous scheme as fully paid for consideration of 
  8,396,277   8,396,277    investment in associate (note 15.2)  83,963   83,963 

  92,359,050   92,359,050    923,591   923,591 
 
15.1 The process for amalgamation of three companies namely Paintex Limited, ICI Pakistan Manufacturers Limited and Imperial 

Chemical Industries Limited resulted in a new company as ICI Pakistan Limited on April 1, 1987. 
 
15.2 With effect from October 1, 2000 the Pure Terephthalic Acid (PTA) Business of the Company was demerged under a scheme 

of arrangement dated December 12, 2000 approved by the shareholders and sanctioned by the High Court of Sindh. 
 
15.3 On December 28, 2012, Lucky Holdings Limited acquired from ICI Omicron B.V. its entire shareholding of 70,019,459 shares 

in ICI Pakistan Limited, besides acquiring 111,698 additional shares by way of public offer made by it to all the shareholders 
of the Company in pursuance of the provisions of the Listed Companies (Substantial Acquisition of Voting Shares & Take-overs), 
Ordinance, 2002 and the Listed Companies (Substantial Acquisition of Voting Shares & Take-overs) Regulations, 2008. Thus, 
Lucky Holdings Limited became the holding company, and Lucky Cement Limited became the ultimate holding company of 
ICI Pakistan Limited with effect from December 28, 2012. Along with Lucky Holdings Limited, two other companies of the 
Yunus Brothers Group namely, Gadoon Textile Mills Limited and  Lucky Textile Mills Limited also participated in the public offer 
thereby acquiring 5,980,917 shares and 5,077,180 shares respectively. As at the balance sheet date, Lucky Cement Limited 
together with the group companies held 87.33% (June 30, 2013: 87.79%) shareholding. 

 
 
16. Capital reserves 
 
 Share premium - note 16.1  309,057   309,057 
 Capital receipts - note 16.2  586   586 
   309,643   309,643 
 
16.1 Share premium includes the premium amounting to Rs 0.902 million received on shares issued for the Company's Polyester 

Plant installation in 1980 and share premium of Rs 464.357 million representing the difference between nominal value of Rs 
10 per share of 12,618,391 ordinary shares issued by the Company and the market value of Rs 590.541 million of these shares 
corresponding to 25% holding acquired in Lotte Pakistan PTA Limited, an ex-associate, at the date of acquisition i.e. November 
2, 2001 and the number of shares that have been issued were determined in accordance with the previous scheme in the ratio 
between market value of the shares of two companies based on the mean of the middle market quotation of the Karachi Stock 
Exchange over the ten trading days between October 22, 2001 to November 2, 2001.

 With effect from July 1, 2011, the capital reserves were split between the Company and Akzo Nobel Pakistan Limited based 
on 66.54:33.46 ratio which was disclosed in the audited special purpose financial statements for the six months period ended 
June 30, 2011. 

 
16.2  Capital receipts represent the amount received from various ICI plc group companies overseas for the purchase of property, 

plant and equipment. The remitting companies have no claim to their repayments. 

 As at  As at As at  As at
 June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30,
  2014 2013 2014 2013
 (Numbers)

Amounts in Rs ’000
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    2014    2013 
   Funded  Unfunded  Funded   Unfunded 
  Pension Gratuity Total  Pension Gratuity Total  Restated 

18.1.1 The amounts recognised in the profit and loss account against defined benefit schemes are as follows: 
 
 Current service cost  17,153   32,702   49,855   3,291   11,998   20,760   32,758   1,368 
 Interest cost  102,896   54,286   157,182   8,118   63,871   34,764   98,635   3,904 
 Expected return on plan assets  (127,167)  (37,245)  (164,412)  -     (64,311)  (18,406)  (82,717)  -   
 Past service cost  -     10,115   10,115   (10,115)  -     -     -     -   
 Net (reversal) / charge for the year / period  (7,118)  59,858   52,740   1,294  11,558  37,118  48,676   5,272 

 Other comprehensive income: 
 Loss / (gain) on obligation  7,112   21,574   28,686   5,677   (95,577) (98,995)  (194,572)  7,517 
 (Gain) on plan assets  (75,645)  (11,632)  (87,277)  -     (95,884) (30,553) (126,437)  -   
 Net (gain) / loss  (68,533)  9,942   (58,591)  5,677  (191,461) (129,548) (321,009)  7,517 
 
18.1.2 Movement in the net assets / (liability) recognised in the balance sheet are as follows: 
 
 Opening balance  225,777   (190,112)  35,665   (79,917)  (29,126)  (302,098)  (331,224)  (72,386)
 Net reversal / (charge) - note 18.1.1  7,118   (59,858)  (52,740)  (1,294)  (11,558)  (37,118)  (48,676)  (5,272)
 Other comprehensive income  68,533   (9,942)  58,591   (5,677)  191,461   129,548   321,009   (7,517)
 Contributions / payments during the year / period  -     63,178   63,178   8,807   75,000   19,556   94,556   5,258 
 Closing balance  301,428   (196,734)  104,694   (78,081)  *  225,777   (190,112)  35,665   (79,917) *
 
18.1.3 The amounts recognised in the balance sheet are as follows: 
 
 Fair value of plan assets - note 18.1.5  1,274,962   379,571   1,654,533   -    1,293,746  362,228  1,655,974   -   
 Present value of defined benefit obligation - note 18.1.4  (973,534)  (576,305)  (1,549,839) (78,081)  (1,067,969) (552,340) (1,620,309)  (79,917)
 Surplus / (deficit)  301,428   (196,734)  104,694  (78,081)  *  225,777  (190,112)  35,665   (79,9 17) *
 
 The recognized asset / liability of funded gratuity is netted off against recognized asset / liability of funded pension and recorded accordingly. 
 
18.1.4 Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligation: 
 
 Opening balance  1,067,969   552,340   1,620,309   79,917   1,194,618   646,506   1,841,124   72,386 
 Current service cost  17,153   32,702   49,855   3,291   11,998   20,760   32,758   1,368 
 Interest cost  102,896   54,286   157,182   8,118   63,871   34,764   98,635   3,904 
 Benefits paid  (221,596)  (94,712)  (316,308)  (8,807)  (106,941)  (50,695)  (157,636)  (5,258)
 Actuarial loss / (gain)  7,112   21,574   28,686   5,677   (95,577)  (98,995)  (194,572)  7,517 
 Past service cost  -     10,115   10,115   (10,115)  -     -     -     -   
 Closing balance  973,534   576,305   1,549,839   78,081   1,067,969   552,340   1,620,309   79,917 
 
18.1.5 Movement in the fair value of plan assets: 
 
 Opening balance  1,293,746   362,228   1,655,974   -     1,165,492   344,408   1,509,900   -   
 Expected return  127,167   37,245   164,412   -     64,311   18,406   82,717   -   
 Contributions  -     63,178   63,178   -     75,000   19,556   94,556   -   
 Benefits paid  (221,596)  (94,712)  (316,308)  -     (106,941)  (50,695)  (157,636)  -   
 Actuarial gain  75,645   11,632   87,277   -     95,884   30,553   126,437   -   

 Closing balance  - note 18.1.7  1,274,962   379,571   1,654,533   -    1,293,746   362,228   1,655,974   -  

* The unfunded included in the above table includes Rs 0.239 million (June 30, 2013: Rs 0.239 million) pertaining to the Subsidiary 
 

17. Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment 
 
 Balance at the beginning of the year / period  843,037   884,867 
 Adjustment due to change in tax rate - note 20.1  21,042   -   
 Transferred to unappropriated profit in respect of incremental depreciation

  during the year / period - net of deferred tax  (79,562)  (41,830)

 Balance at the end of the year / period 784,517   843,037 

18. Provisions for non-management staff gratuity 78,081   79,917 

18.1 Staff retirement benefits   

 The amount recognized in the profit and loss account against defined benefit scheme for the year / period is as follows:

 As at  As at
 June 30, June 30,
  2014 2013
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18.1.6 Historical information **    June 30  December 31 

     2014  2013   2012   2011   2010  

 Present value of defined benefit obligation     1,627,920  1,700,226   2,264,010   2,337,261   2,483,046 
 Fair value of plan assets     (1,654,533)  (1,655,974)  (1,509,900)  (1,581,574)  (1,771,477)
 (Surplus) / deficit     (26,613)  44,252   754,110  755,687   711,569  
 
 ** Prior year figures are inclusive of staff retirement benefits of Paints business (2010). 
 
18.1.7 Major categories / composition of plan assets are as follows:   2014 2013

 Debt instruments   68.77% 69.00%
 Equity at market value   28.70% 28.00%
 Cash   2.53% 3.00%
 
 Fair value of plan asset     Pension Gratuity Pension Gratuity

    As at June 30, 2014 As at June 30, 2013 

 Investment
 National savings deposits       181,164   -     526,012   82,250 

 Government bonds       667,896   283,446   339,014   172,385 

 Corporate bonds       -     6,936   9,431   8,137 

 Shares       406,635   67,586   392,450   70,317 

 Cash       19,267   21,603   26,839   29,139 

 Total       1,274,962   379,571   1,293,746  362,228 
 
 Mortality of active employees and pensioners is represented by the LIC (96-98) table. The table has been rated down three years for mortality of female pensioners and widows. 

 Actual return on plan assets during 2014 was Rs 251.689 million (2013: Rs 209.154 million).
  2014 2013

18.1.8 The principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date were as follows: 

 Discount rate 12.75% 10.75% 
 Future salary increases - Management 10.50% 8.75%
 Future salary increases - Non-management 8.00% 6.00%
 Future pension increases 7.50% 6.00% 

 
18.1.9 Impact of changes in assumptions on defined benefit scheme is as follows: 
 
 Assumption   1% Increase   1 % Decrease  

 Discount rate  (85,297)  95,249 
 Salary increase  62,203   (56,918)
 Pension increase  35,272   (31,726)
 
18.1.10 The Group contributed Rs 62.543 million (June 30, 2013: Rs 31.347 million) and Rs 45.349 million (June 30, 2013: Rs 21.246 million) to the provident fund and the defined contribution 

superannuation fund respectively during the year.
        As at June  As at June

       30, 2014  30, 2013
        (Unaudited) (Unaudited)

18.2 Provident fund 
 
 Size of the fund        1,269,506   1,234,564 
 Cost of investments made        1,127,747   1,062,906 
 Percentage of investments made       89% 86%
 Fair value of investments         1,192,093   1,196,650 
 
18.2.1 Break-up of investments of provident fund 
 
 Break-up of investments in terms of amount and percentage of the size of the provident fund are as follows: 

    As at June 30, 2014 As at June 30, 2013 
     (Unaudited) (Unaudited)

        Investments % of  Investments % of 
       investment   investment 
       as size of   as size of 
       the fund   the fund  

 On fair value
 Pakistan Investment Bonds      854,999  72%  518,722  44%
 Treasury Bill      49,604  4%  170,814  14%
 Regular Income Certificates      -    0%  222,300  19%
 Mutual Funds       81,682  7%  76,867  6%
 Shares      196,142  16%  195,654  16%
 Term Finance Certificates      9,666  1%  12,293  1%

       1,192,093  100%  1,196,650  100%
 
 Investments out of provident fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of section 227 of the Companies Ordinance, 1984 and the rules formulated for this purpose. 

Amounts in Rs ’000
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19 Long-term loans  2,314,805   1,887,026 
 
19.1 From banking companies / financial institutions: 
   - Faysal Bank Limited   343,591   343,591 
   - Habib Bank Limited   543,435   543,435 
   887,026  887,026 
 
 The Group has obtained long-term finance facility (LTFF) for imported and locally manufactured plant and machinery from Faysal 

Bank Limited of Rs 343.591 million (limit: Rs 500 million) and Habib Bank Limited of Rs 543.435 million (limit: Rs 1,000 million) 
for a period of 7 years (including 2 years grace period), with the principal payable on semi annual basis. The mark-up is chargeable 
at fixed rate ranging from 9.65% to 9.85% payable on quarterly basis. These facilities are secured against first pari passu 
hypothecation charge on the property, plant and equipment (PPE) of the Group's Soda Ash Business, located at Khewra. The 
loans have been refinanced by the State Bank of Pakistan under long term finance facility (LTFF) for export oriented projects. 

19.2 Islamic term finance 

 From banking companies / financial institutions: 
   -Standard Chartered Bank (Pakistan) Limited  800,000   1,000,000 
   -Less: Current portion of long-term finance  400,000   -   
   400,000   1,000,000 
 
 The Group has obtained long-term finance for Rs 1,000 million in June 2013 from Standard Chartered Bank (Pakistan) 

Limited under Islamic Diminishing Musharakah  upto a limit of Rs 1,000 million for a period of 3 years (including 6 months 
grace period).  Repayments of Rs 200 million were made during the current year. The rental payment is charged at relevant 
KIBOR plus 0.25% p.a. payable on semi annual basis. This facility is initially secured by a ranking charge to be subsequently 
replaced by a first pari passu hypothecation charge on the present and future fixed assets of the Group's Polyester 
Business located at Sheikhupura. 

 
   -Meezan Bank Limited  500,000   -   
   -Less: Current portion of Long-Term Finance  222,222   -   
   277,778   -   
 
 During the year the Group has obtained long-term finance for Rs 500 million from Meezan Bank Limited under Islamic Diminishing 

Musharakah upto a limit of Rs 500 million for a period of 3 years (including 9 months grace period). The rental payment is 
charged at relevant KIBOR plus 0.25% p.a. payable on a quarterly basis. This facility is initially secured by a ranking charge to 
be subsequently replaced by a first pari passu hypothecation charge on the present and future plant, machinery and equipment 
of the Group's Soda Ash Business located at Khewra. 

 
   -Allied Bank Limited  1,000,000   -   
   -Less: Current portion of long-term loan  249,999   -   
   750,001   -   
 
 During the year the Group has obtained long-term loan for Rs 1,000 million from Allied Bank Limited under long-term loan upto 

a limit of Rs 1,000 million for a period of 4 years (including 1 year grace period). The rental payment is charged at relevant 
KIBOR plus 0.25% p.a. payable on a quarterly basis. This facility is secured by a first pari passu hypothecation charge on the 
present and future plant, machinery and equipment of the Group's Soda Ash Business located at Khewra.

 As at  As at
 June 30, June 30,
  2014 2013

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2014
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   As at June 30, 2014   As at June 30, 2013 
  Opening Reversal /  Closing Opening Reversal   Closing

  (Charge) 

20 Deferred tax (liability) / asset - net      
   
 Deductible temporary differences     
 Provisions for retirement benefits,     
   doubtful debts and others  (301,666)  42,298   (259,368)  (330,076)  28,410   (301,666)

 Retirement funds provision routed through 
    other comprehensive income  (93,508)  28,276   (65,232)  (211,393)  117,885   (93,508)

 Taxable temporary differences     
 Property, plant and equipment - note 20.1  1,496,285   (77,967)  1,418,318   1,421,819   74,466   1,496,285 

   1,101,111   (7,393)  1,093,718   880,350   220,761   1,101,111 
      
20.1 Reversal during the year includes Rs 21.042 million (June 30, 2013: Rs Nil) adjusted in surplus on revaluation of property, plant 

and equipment on account of change in tax rate.

   
 
 
21 Trade and other payables

 Trade creditors - note 21.1    1,387,666   651,021 
 Bills payable    2,338,350   2,113,808 
 Excise and custom duties  4,486   4,811 
 Mark-up accrued  58,454   28,465 
 Accrued interest on expansion project - note 21.2  3,152   38,733 
 Accrued expenses   975,458   836,188 
 Technical service fee / royalty - note 21.3  23,686   680 
 Workers' profit participation fund - note 21.4  114,557   72,447 
 Workers' welfare fund  51,539   54,110 
 Distributors' security deposits - payable on termination of distributorship - note 21.5  106,142   118,888 
 Contractors' earnest / retention money  9,809   9,550 
 Running account with customers - note 21.6  223,874   118,086 
 Unclaimed dividends   48,692   45,982 
 Payable for capital expenditure  329,509   253,710 
 Provision for compensated absences - note 21.7  31,249   31,249 
 Others  147,655   211,692 
   5,854,278   4,589,420 
  
21.1 This amount includes Rs Nil (June 30, 2013: Rs 1.17 million) on account of exchange loss on forward exchange contracts.

21.2 This liability pertains to financing obtained for coal fired boiler project. Interest charged on the finance facilities is capitalised as 
part of plant and machinery.   
  

21.3 This amount includes Rs 23.008 million (June 30, 2013: Rs Nil) on account of royalty payable to Lucky Holdings Limited.

  As at  As at
  June 30, June 30,
   2014 2013
    Restated 

Amounts in Rs ’000
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21.4 Workers' profit participation fund   
  

 Balance at the beginning of the year / period  72,447   81,887 
 Allocation for the year / period - note 29  111,435   57,966 
   183,882   139,853 
 Interest on funds utilised in the Group's businesses at 41.25 % 

  (June 30, 2013: 41.25%) per annum - note 30  3,400   2,594 

 Less: 
   - Payment to the Fund  72,725   70,000 
 Balance at the end of the year / period  114,557   72,447 
   
21.5 Interest on security deposits from certain distributors is payable at 8.8 % (June 30, 2013: 11.2 %) per annum as specified in 

the respective agreements.   
  

21.6 Included herein are amounts due to the following associated undertakings (related party):

   Gadoon Textile Mills 27,910   2,891 
   Fazal Textile Mills 764   249 
   Yunus Textile Mills 197   -    
  28,871   3,140 

21.7 This figure is based on actuarial valuation and estimation.

22 Short-term borrowings and running finance - note 22.1, 22.2, 22.3 & 22.4  437,368   2,654,549 
 
 Short-term borrowings and running finance facility from various banks aggregated to Rs 4,946 million (June 30, 2013:  Rs 

4,740 million) and carry mark-up during the year of KIBOR + 0.20% to 1.00%  per annum with an average mark-up rate of 
relevant KIBOR + 0.20% as at June 30, 2014 on utilized limits (June 30, 2013: relevant KIBOR + 0.40% to 0.75%  per annum 
with an average mark-up rate of relevant KIBOR + 0.20% on utilized limits). The facilities are secured by hypothecation charge 
over the present and future stock-in-trade and book debts of the Group. 

 
22.1 Short-term borrowings - secured  -     2,126,000 
 
 There are no short term borrowings utilized as at balance sheet date (June 30, 2013: Rs. 2,126 million, relevant KIBOR
 + 0.20% + 0.50%)
 
22.2 Foreign currency loan against import finance  267,368   -   
 
 The above foreign currency loan carry mark-up at relevant LIBOR + bank's spread which is decided at the time of disbursement 

(June 30, 2013: NIL). 
 
22.3 Export refinance  170,000   130,000 
 
 The Group has export refinance facility of upto Rs. 200 million (June 30, 2013: Rs. 200 million) available from Faysal Bank 

Limited as at June 30, 2014 out of which Rs 170 million was utilized (June 30, 2013:  Rs 130 million). The above export refinance 
facility is  secured by  first pari passu hypothecation charge. The export refinance facility carries mark-up at State Bank of 
Pakistan rate (currently 8.40%) + 0.25% per annum (June 30, 2013: SBP rate 8.4% + 0.25% per annum). 

 
22.4 Short-term running finance - secured  -     398,549  

 As at  As at
 June 30, June 30,
  2014 2013

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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 As at  As at
 June 30, June 30,
  2014 2013

23 Contingencies and Commitments 
 
23.1 Claims against the Group not acknowledged as debts are as follows: 
 
 Local bodies - note 23.1.1  36,616   30,446 
 Others  49,972   28,288 
  86,588   58,734 
 
23.1.1 The Group was served notice by Punjab Employees Social Security Institution’s local office Shahdara, dated November 24, 

1997 on Polyester plant for payment Rs 11.96 million on account of Social Security Contribution on basis of assessment made 
by the PESSI for the period 1996 and 1997, on behalf of contractors’ workers (M/s Descon Engineering Limited) engaged for 
expansion project. The Group challenged the notice and filed an appeal with Vice Commissioner Social Security Institution and 
also filed petition in High Court Lahore on July 20, 2012, along with stay application, the court granted stay order on July 25, 
2012. The outcome of the case cannot be determined yet.

 
23.1.2 A demand for additional electricity duty amounting to Rs 17.711 million (June 30, 2013: Rs 17.711 million) has been raised by 

the electric inspector to the Subsidiary for the period from March 2004 to June 2007. The matter along with other legal options 
are currently being explored by the Group. No provision has been made for the demand as the Group considers that this 
additional duty is not payable.

 
23.2 Also refer note 43 to these financial statements for income tax contingencies. 
 
23.3 Guarantee issued by the Group of Rs Nil (June 30, 2013: Rs 133 million) to a bank on behalf of its subsidiary ICI Pakistan 

PowerGen Limited for availing funded facility. 
 
23.4 Commitments in respect of capital expenditure (including coal fired boiler project of the Soda Ash business and coal fired steam 

turbine project of the Polyester business) amounted to Rs 1,172.736 million (June 30, 2013: Rs 567.309 million). 
 
23.5 During the year the Group committed an equity investment of Rs. 960 million in the Morinaga Business, to be jointly operated 

by ICI Pakistan and Unibrands (Pvt.) Ltd under a newly formed company namely NutriCo Pakistan (Pvt.) Limited through signing 
of shareholders and share subscription agreements with Unibrands. This joint venture entails a total equity investment of Rs. 
960 million by the Group to acquire 40% equity in NutriCo in up to three tranches. Subsequent to the balance sheet date, the 
Group has paid Rs. 360 million in this respect. 

 
23.6 Commitments for rentals under operating lease / Ijarah contracts in respect of vehicles amounting to Rs 155.610 million (June 

30, 2013: Rs 135.266 million) are as follows: 
 
 Year 
 
 2014  -     55,030 
 2015  62,223   43,872 
 2016  49,215   26,783 
 2017  34,969   9,581 
 2018  9,203   -   
   155,610   135,266 
 
 Payable not later than one year  62,223   55,030 
 Payable later than one year but not later than five years  93,387   80,236 
   155,610   135,266 
 
23.7 Outstanding foreign exchange contracts as at June 30, 2014 entered into by the Group amounted to Rs Nil (June 30, 2013: 

Rs 1,166.117 million). 
 

Amounts in Rs ’000
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24. Operating segment results
 
  Polyester Soda Ash Life Sciences Chemicals  Others - PowerGen Group

  For the  For the six  For the  For the six For the  For the six For the  For the six For the  For the six For the  For the six
 year months  year months year months year months year months year months
 ended period ended ended period ended ended period ended ended period ended ended period ended ended period ended

  June 30,  June 30, June 30,  June 30, June 30,  June 30, June 30,  June 30, June 30,  June 30, June 30,  June 30,
 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013

 Sales 

   Afghanistan  -     -     7,750   4,664   -     699   2,358   1,928   -     -     10,108   7,291 

   India  -     -     497,500   181,003   -     -     -     -     -     -     497,500   181,003 

   United Arab Emirates  -     -     -     -     -     -     50,410   7,861   -     -     50,410   7,861 

   Others  -     8,233   -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -     8,233 

    -     8,233  505,250  185,667   -     699  52,768   9,789   -     -    558,018    204,388 

    Inter-segment  -     -     -     -     -     -     5,857   9,785   1,068,140   543,181   1,073,997   552,966 

    Local  19,667,433   9,701,479   10,427,943   4,683,715   7,504,584   3,383,635   4,479,076   2,125,869   -     -     42,079,036   19,894,698 

   19,667,433  9,709,712  10,933,193  4,869,382  7,504,584   3,384,334   4,537,701   2,145,443   1,068,140  543,181  43,711,051    20,652,052 

 Commission / 

  Toll income   -     -     -     -     -     -     61,605   34,891   -     -     61,605   34,891 

 Turnover  19,667,433  9,709,712  10,933,193  4,869,382  7,504,584   3,384,334   4,599,306  2,180,334  1,068,140  543,181   43,772,656   20,686,943 

 Sales tax  385,692   126,708   1,518,523   645,513   40,978   9,189   479,680   215,631   155,200   75,641   2,580,073   1,072,682 

 Commission and 
  discounts to 

   distributors and 
  customers  439,358   126,914   425,196   137,643   859,787   424,271   315,968   132,430   -     -     2,040,309   821,258 

   825,050  253,622  1,943,719  783,156   900,765  433,460  795,648  348,061   155,200  75,641  4,620,382    1,893,940 

 Net sales,  commission 
  & toll income  18,842,383   9,456,090   8,989,474   4,086,226   6,603,819   2,950,874   3,803,658   1,832,273   912,940   467,540   39,152,274   18,793,003 

 Cost of sales - note 26  19,066,559   9,442,026   6,622,359   3,204,255   4,792,331   2,146,431   3,106,244   1,475,570   768,714   390,634   34,354,467   16,658,046 

 Gross profit  (224,176) 14,064   2,367,115  881,971  1,811,488   804,443  697,414   356,703  144,226  76,906  4,797,807    2,134,957 
 Selling and distribution 

expenses - note 27  258,230   46,019   236,780   51,357   824,909   329,996   210,335   96,019   -     -     1,530,254   523,391 

 Administration and 
general expenses 
- note 28  309,150   124,976   264,293   102,888   201,989   76,632   120,221   56,638   994   621   896,407   361,635 

 Operating result   (791,556) (156,931) 1,866,042  727,726  784,590   397,815  366,858   204,046  143,232  76,285  2,371,146    1,249,931 

24.1 Segment assets 
- note 24.5  7,643,268   7,215,283   14,827,493   12,608,937   6,335,403   4,853,688   2,809,583   2,398,548   356,972   489,064   20,922,632   19,354,727 

 
24.2 Unallocated assets            1,871,284   1,578,566 

             22,793,916   20,933,293 
 
24.3 Segment liabilities 

-  note 24.5  11,336,335   8,569,049   4,389,791   3,177,567   2,555,658   1,680,842   1,024,907   809,607   63,330   58,010   7,846,454   6,084,283 
 
24.4 Unallocated liabilities            2,804,017   4,227,741 
 
             10,650,471   10,312,024 

24.5 Inter unit current account balances of respective businesses have been eliminated from the total  
 
24.6 Depreciation & 

  amortisation charge
 - note 3.5 & 4.2  528,092   230,363   751,803   294,575   23,750   11,100   35,095   21,653   42,479   22,748   1,381,219   580,439 

 
24.7 Capital expenditure  1,627,533   407,574   803,035   550,903   43,008   16,997   35,232   19,671   21,695   11,573   2,530,503   1,006,718 
 
24.8 Inter-segment pricing 
 
 Transactions among the business segments are recorded at arm's length prices using admissible valuation methods. 
 
24.9 There were no major customer of the Group which formed part of 10 % or more of the Group's revenue. 
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 As at  As at
 June 30, June 30,
  2014 2013

25. Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues, cost of sales, assets and liabilities 

25.1 Turnover 
 
 Total turnover for reportable segments - note 24  43,772,656   20,686,943 
 Elimination of inter-segment turnover - note 24  (5,857)  (9,785)
 Elimination of inter-segment turnover from the subsidiary   (1,068,140)  (543,181)
 Total turnover  42,698,659   20,133,977 
 
25.2 Cost of sales 
 
 Total cost of sales for reportable segments - note 26  34,354,467   16,658,046 
 Elimination of inter-segment purchases - note 26  (5,857)  (9,785)
 Elimination of inter-segment purchases from the subsidiary  (1,068,140)  (543,181)
 Total cost of sales  33,280,470   16,105,080 
 

 

25.3 Assets 
 
 Total assets for reportable segments  20,922,632   19,354,727 
 Taxation recoverable  1,765,784   1,474,066 
 Bank deposits - note 14  103,000   102,000 
 Long-term investments - note 5  2,500   2,500 
 Total assets  22,793,916   20,933,293 
 
25.4 Liabilities 
 
 Total liabilities for reportable segments  7,846,454   6,084,283 
 Short-term loan - note 22.1, 22.2 & 22.3  437,368   2,256,000 
 Long-term loan - note 19  2,314,805   1,887,026 
 Accrued interest on expansion project - note 21  3,152   38,733 
 Unclaimed dividends - note 21  48,692   45,982 
 Total Liabilities  10,650,471   10,312,024 
 

Amounts in Rs ’000

  For the For the 
   year six months 
  ended period ended
  June 30, 2014 June 30, 2013

F 89ICI Pakistan Limited Annual Report 2013-14



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2014

Amounts in Rs ’000

26. Cost of Sales
 
  Polyester Soda Ash Life Sciences Chemicals  Others - PowerGen Group

  For the  For the six  For the  For the six For the  For the six For the  For the six For the  For the six For the  For the six
 year months  year months year months year months year months year months
 ended period ended ended period ended ended period ended ended period ended ended period ended ended period ended

  June 30,  June 30, June 30,  June 30, June 30,  June 30, June 30,  June 30, June 30,  June 30, June 30,  June 30,
 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013

 Raw and packing 
  materials consumed 

 Opening stock  897,238   1,394,859   510,102   359,582   453,994   588,355   207,993   115,497   21,602   30,271   2,090,929   2,488,564 
Purchases 

       Inter-segment  5,857   9,785   -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -     5,857   9,785 

       Others  15,157,139   7,501,920   2,198,446   1,028,100   2,058,518   456,369   1,802,668   1,009,243   638,386   320,926   21,855,157   10,316,558 

   15,162,996   7,511,705   2,198,446   1,028,100   2,058,518   456,369   1,802,668   1,009,243   638,386   320,926   21,861,014   10,326,343 

   16,060,234   8,906,564   2,708,548   1,387,682   2,512,512   1,044,724   2,010,661   1,124,740   659,988   351,197   23,951,943   12,814,907 

 Closing stock - note 9  (878,010)  (897,238)  (552,167)  (510,102)  (636,348)  (453,994)  (272,821)  (207,993)  (24,582)  (21,602)  (2,363,928)  (2,090,929)

 Raw & packaging 
  material consumed  15,182,224   8,009,326   2,156,381   877,580   1,876,164   590,730   1,737,840   916,747   635,406   329,595   21,588,015   10,723,978 

 Salaries, wages and 
  benefits - note 26.1  347,903   133,692   645,747   220,182   2,832   900   44,669   17,326   18,725   9,911   1,059,876   382,011 

 Stores and spares 
  consumed  183,251   69,819   104,415   47,339   -     -     7,697   2,293   17,615   7,621   312,978   127,072 

 Conversion fee paid to 
  contract manufacturers  -     -     -     -     396,884   136,435   10,056   4,871   -     -     406,940   141,306 

 Oil, gas and electricity  1,890,218   1,002,818   2,713,782   1,210,796   -     -     12,481   4,690   41,948   13,950   4,658,429   2,232,254 

 Rent, rates and taxes  936   490   1,098   864   -     -     14,321   6,948   420   210   16,775   8,512 

 Insurance  24,031   12,923   27,989   16,970   -     -     1,110   563   1,395   875   54,525   31,331 

 Repairs and maintenance  4,596   1,657   891   5   608   -     4,678   2,174   120   61   10,893   3,897 

 Depreciation and 
  amortisation charge 
  - note 3.5 & 4.2  500,637   217,025   728,703   282,967   262   207   13,830   11,408   42,479   22,748   1,285,911   534,355 

 Write-offs 
  - note 3.2.2 & 4.1  1,708   -    20,706   -     -     -    751   -     82   -     23,247   -   

 Excise duty  -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -     9,321   4,736   9,321   4,736 

 Technical fees  -     -     -     -     1,020   -     2,807   1,354   -     -     3,827   1,354 

 Royalty   -     -     -     -     1,629   -     -     -     -     -     1,629   -   

 General expenses 
  - note 26.2  168,479   68,347   168,183   67,482   2,887   1,167   17,027   6,940   1,203   464   356,039   143,530 

 Opening stock of 
   work-in-process  170,516   74,987   -     -     59,475   71,700   2,850   1,276   -     -     232,841   147,963 

 Closing stock of 
  work-in-process 
  -  note 9  (143,343)  (170,516)  -     -     (16,447)  (59,475)  (5,551)  (2,850)  -     -     (165,341)  (232,841)

 Cost of goods 
  manufactured  18,331,156   9,420,568   6,567,895   2,724,185   2,325,314   741,664   1,864,566   973,740   768,714   390,171   29,855,905   14,249,458 

 Opening stock of 
   finished goods  994,304   1,009,796   78,767   383,510   793,560   1,102,849   404,476   278,929   -     -     2,271,107   2,775,084 

 Finished goods 
  purchased  136,304   6,979   -     175,327   2,977,682   1,098,109   1,203,805   631,964   -     463   4,317,791   1,912,842 

   19,461,764   10,437,343   6,646,662   3,283,022   6,096,556   2,942,622   3,472,847   1,884,633   768,714   390,634   36,444,803   18,937,384 

 Closing stock of 
  finished goods 
  - note 9  (395,205)  (994,304)  (24,303)  (78,767)  (1,291,836)  (793,560)  (366,603)  (404,476)  -     -     (2,077,947)  (2,271,107)

 Provision for slow 
  moving & obsolete
  stock-in-trade
   - note 28  -     (1,013)  -     -     (12,389)  (2,631)  -    (4,587)  -     -     (12,389)  (8,231)

   19,066,559   9,442,026   6,622,359   3,204,255   4,792,331   2,146,431   3,106,244   1,475,570   768,714   390,634   34,354,467   16,658,046 

26.1 Staff retirement benefits 

 Salaries, wages and benefits include Rs 31.585 million (June 30, 2013: Rs 23.685 million) in respect of staff retirement benefits. 
 
26.2 Service charges from the subsidiary 
 
 This includes amount Rs 1.740 million (June 30, 2013: Rs 0.870 million) charged by the Company for certain administrative service charges in accordance with the service level agreement 

which have been eliminated from the total. 
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Amounts in Rs ’000

27. Selling and distribution expenses
 
  Polyester Soda Ash Life Sciences Chemicals  Others - PowerGen Group

  For the  For the six  For the  For the six For the  For the six For the  For the six For the  For the six For the  For the six
 year months  year months year months year months year months year months
 ended period ended ended period ended ended period ended ended period ended ended period ended ended period ended

  June 30,  June 30, June 30,  June 30, June 30,  June 30, June 30,  June 30, June 30,  June 30, June 30,  June 30,
 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013

 

 Salaries and benefits 
  - note 27.1  42,010   16,373   24,624   7,690   331,964  104,418   68,240  23,610   -     -    466,838   152,091 

 Repairs and maintenance  155   101   1,810   1,092   2,828   1,378   2,491   856   -     -     7,284   3,427 

 Advertising and 
  publicity expenses  1,103   193   15,409   42   118,980   62,127   5,347   3,926   -     -     140,839   66,288 

 Rent, rates and taxes  400   192   3,015   1,529   7,936   4,179   1,225   613   -     -     12,576   6,513 

 Insurance  -     -     370   597   7,238   5,069   2,264   1,594   -     -     9,872   7,260 

 Lighting, heating and cooling  107   59   1,862   680   3,336   1,357   6,292   1,453   -     -     11,597   3,549 

 Depreciation and amortisation 
  charge - note 3.5 & 4.2  -     -     97   65   10,416   4,506   5,256   2,751   -     -     15,769   7,322 

 Write-offs - note 3.2.2 & 4.1  -     -     -     -     862   -     -     -     -     -     862   -   

 Outward freight 
  and handling  2,751   5,014   81,359   30,530   61,650   30,299   66,133   28,307   -     -     211,893   94,150 

 Travelling expenses  7,415   3,350   3,138   1,336   116,545   43,833   16,408   7,761   -     -     143,506   56,280 

 Postage, telegram, 
  telephone and telex  1,155   779   1,191   343   17,982   8,856   3,425   2,477   -     -     23,753   12,455 

 Royalty  188,424   -    89,895   -    - -     -     -     -     -    278,319   -   

 General expenses  14,710   19,958   14,010   7,453   145,172   63,974   33,254   22,671   -     -     207,146   114,056 

   258,230   46,019   236,780   51,357   824,909   329,996   210,335   96,019   -     -     1,530,254   523,391 
 

27.1 Staff retirement benefits 
 
 Salaries and benefits include Rs 13.776 million (June 30, 2013: Rs 14.038 million) in respect of staff retirement benefits.
 
 

28. Administration and general expenses 
 

 Salaries and benefits 
  - note 28.1  186,182   61,181   168,080   54,173   111,969   38,779   78,635   28,249   -     -     544,866   182,382  

 Repairs and maintenance  4,235   2,797   3,470   1,582   4,732   1,686   1,185   481   -     -     13,622   6,546  

 Advertising and publicity 
  expenses  5,057   1,018   5,778   1,159   1,915   388   1,249   251   -     -     13,999   2,816  

 Rent, rates and taxes  5,645   2,838   2,986   1,441   965   466   645   312   -     -     10,241   5,057  

 Insurance  1,310   493   1,567   589   2,793   2,390   426   160   -     -     6,096   3,632  

 Lighting, heating 
  and cooling  6,241   2,987   4,905   2,874   9,118   2,909   1,060   621   -     -     21,324   9,391  

 Depreciation and 
  amortisation charge 
  - note 3.5 & 4.2  27,455   13,338   23,003   11,543   13,072   6,387   16,009   7,494   -     -     79,539   38,762  

 Write-offs
  - note 3.2.2 & 4.1  993   -    1,188   -    667   -    448   -     -     -    3,296   -    

 Provision for doubtful 
  debts - trade - note 40.6  -     -     -     -     1,556   -     -     774   -     -     1,556   774  

 Provision for slow moving 
  and obsolete  stock-in-trade 
  - note 9.1  -     1,013   -     -     12,389   2,631   -     4,587   -     -     12,389   8,231  

 Provision for slow moving 
spares - note 8.2  -     -     52   -     102   -     -     -     -     -     154   -    

 Travelling expenses  7,872   3,203   4,753   1,941   7,113   2,402   4,109   2,292   -     -     23,847   9,838  

 Postage, telegram, 
telephone and telex  3,276   1,633   3,154   1,420   2,935   1,167   1,707   827   -     -     11,072   5,047  

 General expenses 
-  note 28.2  60,884   34,475   45,357   26,166   32,663   17,427   14,748   10,590   994   621   154,406   89,159     

   309,150   124,976   264,293   102,888   201,989   76,632   120,221   56,638   994   621   896,407   361,635  

 
28.1 Staff retirement benefits 
 
 Salaries and benefits include Rs 12.274 million  (June 30, 2013:  Rs 15.360 million) in respect of staff retirement benefits. 
 
28.2 Service Charges from subsidiary
 
  This includes Rs 0.240 million (June 30, 2013: Rs 0.120 million) charged by the Company for certain administrative service charges in accordance with the service 

level agreement which have been eliminated from the total. 
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29. Other charges 
 
 Auditors' remuneration - note 29.1  3,937   2,739 
 Donations - note 29.2  17,452   7,450 
 Workers' profit participation fund - note 21.4  111,435   57,966 
 Workers' welfare fund  43,140   22,395 
 Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment  15,069   -   
   191,033  90,550 
 
29.1 Auditors' remuneration 
 
 Statutory audit fee   2,300  2,250 
 Half yearly review and other certifications  950   -   
 Out of pocket expenses  687   489 
   3,937   2,739 
 
29.2 Represent provision in respect of donation to ICI Pakistan Foundation (Head office, Karachi). Mr. Asif Jooma, Director of the 

Group, Mr. Suhail Aslam Khan, Mr. Asif Malik, Ms. Saima Kamila Khan and Ms. Fathema Zuberi, Executives of the Company 
are amongst the Trustees of the Foundation. No amount has been paid during the current year and corresponding period. 

 
 
30. Finance costs 
 
 Mark-up   327,724   137,370 
 Interest on workers' profit participation fund - note 21.4  3,400   2,594 
 Discounting charges on receivables  46,292   20,917 
 Exchange losses  4,775   24,914 
 Guarantee fee and others  5,833   1,998 
   388,024   187,793 
 
31. Other income 
 
 Income from financial assets 

 Profit on short-term and call deposits   368   -   

 Income from non-financial assets 

 Scrap sales  67,994   22,563 
 Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment  988   363 
 Provisions and accruals no longer required written back  138,552   92,214 
 Exchange gain  104,774   -   
 Sundries  9,100   10,460 
   321,776   125,600 

32. Taxation 
 
 Current  311,133   271,336 
 Prior   (102,548)  (35,887)
 Deferred  70,163   102,872 
   note 32.1  278,748   338,321 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2014

Amounts in Rs ’000

  For the For the 
   year six months 
  ended period ended
  June 30, 2014 June 30, 2013
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32.1 Tax reconciliation 
 
 Profit before tax  2,113,865   1,097,188 
 
 Tax @ 34% (2013: 35%)  718,714   384,016 
 Tax impact on profit of the subsidiary - note 32.2  (45,186)  (24,885)
 Effect of prior year charge  (102,548)  (35,887)
 Tax impact due to change of FTR ratio  89,034   8,230 
 Effect of credit under section 65B  (316,690)  -   
 Effect of change in tax rate on beginning deferred tax balance  (62,510)  -   
 Tax effect of items not deductible for tax purposes  7,278   2,608 
 Others  (9,344)  4,239 
   278,748   338,321 

 Average effective tax rate 13% 31%

32.2 The minimum turnover tax on subsidiary has been waived under Clause 11A of Part IV of second schedule of the Income Tax 
Ordinance 2001 and accordingly, the income of the Subsidiary is exempt under the provision of Income Tax Ordinance 2001.

 
33. Basic and diluted earning per share (EPS) 
 
 Profit after taxation for the year / period  1,835,117 758,867 
 
  Number of shares 
 Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue  
   during the year / period  92,359,050   92,359,050 
 
  Rupees
 
 Basic and diluted earning per share (EPS)  19.87   8.22 

Amounts in Rs ’000

34. Remuneration of chairman, chief executive, directors and executives

 The amounts charged in the financial statements for the remuneration, including all benefits, to the chairman, chief executive, 
directors and executives of the Group were as follows: 

  Chairman Chief Executive Directors Executives Total 
  For the  For the   For the  For the For the  For the For the  For the For the  For the

 year six months   year six months year six months year six months year six months
 ended period ended ended period ended ended period ended ended period ended ended period ended

  June 30,  June 30, June 30,  June 30, June 30,  June 30, June 30,  June 30, June 30,  June 30, 
 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013

 Managerial remuneration  -     365   46,447   15,633   41,251   16,125   608,524   174,047   696,222   206,170 

 Retirement benefits  -     -     7,601   2,558   6,058   3,137   132,789   45,188   146,448   50,883 

 Group insurance  -     -     34   9   68   19   4,401   552   4,503   580 

 Rent and house 

  maintenance  -     -     894   1,862   -     -     176,263   53,514   177,157   55,376 

 Utilities  -     -     783   256   -     -     43,780   13,118   44,563   13,374 

 Medical expenses  -     -     71   42   178   66   31,090   15,098   31,339   15,206 

   -     365   55,830   20,360   47,555   19,347   996,847   301,517   1,100,232   341,589 

 Number of persons  1   1   1   1   1   2   448   370   451   378 

  For the For the 
   year six months 
  ended period ended
  June 30, 2014 June 30, 2013
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34.1 In addition to above, an amount of Rs 207.7 million (June 30, 2013: Rs 99.5 million) on account of variable pay to employees 
has been recognised in the current year / period. This amount is payable in the following year after verification of achievements 
against targets. 

 
 Variable and special bonus paid during the year / period includes the following: 

  Paid in 2014  Paid in 2013
  relating  relating 
  to 2013 to 2012
 Chief Executive  7,125   -   
 Directors  10,857   3,855 
 Executives  90,577   48,007 
 Other employees  13,947   39,376 
   122,506   91,238 
 
34.2 The directors and certain executives are provided with free use of Company cars in accordance with their entitlement. The chief 

executive is provided with free use of the Company car, certain household equipment and maintenance when needed. 
 
34.3 Aggregate amount charged in the financial statements for remuneration to six non-executive directors was Rs Nil (June 30, 

2013: Rs 1.975 million). During the year fee paid to directors amount to Rs 1.863 million (June 30, 2013: Rs 0.525 million) for 
attending board and other meetings, which is not part of remuneration. 

 
34.3.1 The remuneration and fee paid to directors during last period includes Rs 0.442 million and Rs 0.08 million respectively against 

two non-executive directors who were appointed as executive directors. 

34.4 The above amounts include an amount of Rs 189.01 million (June 30, 2013: Rs 75.35 million) on account of remuneration of key 
management personnel out of which Rs 29.31 million (June 30, 2013: Rs 11.881 million) relates to post employment benefits.

 
 

34.5 Total number of employees as of the balance sheet date 1153 1066

 Average number of employees during the year / period 1100 1069
 
35. Transactions with related parties  
 
 The related parties comprise the holding company (Lucky Holdings Limited), the ultimate holding company (Lucky Cement Limited) 

and related group companies, local  associated company, directors of the Group, companies where directors also hold directorship, 
key employees (note 34) and staff retirement funds (note 18). Details of transactions with related parties,  other than those which have 
been specifically disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements are as follows:

 
 

 Associated companies 
 
 Purchase of goods, materials and services  17,167   62 
 Sale of goods and materials  1,646,191   716,830 
 Dividends  322,629   162,379 
 Royalty  278,319   -   

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2014

Amounts in Rs ’000

  As at and for As at and for 
   the year the  six months 
  ended period ended
  June 30, 2014 June 30, 2013

  For the For the 
   year six months 
  ended period ended
  June 30, 2014 June 30, 2013

F 94 ICI Pakistan Limited Annual Report 2013-14



36. Plant capacity and annual production 
 - in metric tonnes except PowerGen which is in thousands of Megawatt hours: 

  For the year  For the six months
  ended period ended
  June 30, 2014  June 30, 2013  

  Annual Production Annual Production
  Name Plate  Name Plate 
  Capacity  Capacity 
 
 Polyester  122,000   109,810   122,000   54,428 
 Soda Ash - note 36.1  350,000   287,445   350,000   118,864 
 Chemicals - note 36.2  -     15,643   -     9,291 
 Sodium Bicarbonate  26,000   27,000   20,000   13,070 
 PowerGen - note 36.3 122,640  42,873 122,640 22,567 
 
36.1 Production of Soda Ash was greater as compared to previous period since coal fired boilers became operational during current 

year. Further last period production was low due to gas curtailment. 
 
36.2  The capacity of Chemicals is indeterminable because these are multi-product plants.

36.3  Electricity by PowerGen is produced as per demand. 
 

37. Fair value of financial assets and liabilities 
 
 The carrying amounts of the financial assets and financial liabilities approximate their fair values and is determined on the basis 

of non-observable market data.
 
 
38. Financial risk management 
 
 The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, interest rate risk and other 

price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's overall risk management policy focuses on the unpredictability of financial 
markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on the Group's financial performance. 

 
38.1  Risk management framework 
 
 The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for establishment and oversight of the Group's risk management framework. 

The executive management team is responsible for developing and monitoring the Group’s risk management policies. The team 
regularly meets and any changes and compliance issues are reported to the Board of Directors through the audit committee. 

 
 Risk management systems are reviewed regularly by the executive management team to reflect changes in market conditions 

and the Group’s activities. The Group, through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to develop a 
disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations. 

 
 The audit committee oversees compliance by management with the Group’s risk management policies and procedures, and 

reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Group.  
 
 
39. Market risk 
 
 Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market 

prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk. 
 

Amounts in Rs ’000
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39.1  Interest rate risk 
 
 Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair values of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market 

interest rates. At the balance sheet date the interest rate profile of Group's interest-bearing financial instruments were: 
 
  Carrying Amount 

  As at June As at June
  30, 2014   30, 2013

 Fixed rate instruments 
 Financial assets - note 14  103,000   102,000 
 Financial liabilities - note 19.1 & 21  (993,168)  (1,005,914)
   (890,168) (903,914)

 Variable rate instruments 
 Financial liabilities - note 19.2  & 22  (2,737,368)  (3,654,549)
  (2,737,368) (3,654,549)

 Sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments 
 
 The Group does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, therefore a 

change in interest rates at the  balance sheet date would not affect profit or loss. 
 
 Sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments 
 
 If KIBOR had been 1% higher / lower with all other variables held constant, the impact on the profit before tax for the year would 

have been Rs 27.37 million (June 30, 2013: Rs 36.54 million).

39.2  Foreign currency risk 
 
 Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in 

foreign exchange rates. Foreign currency risk arises mainly where receivables and payables exist due to transactions entered into are 
denominated in foreign currencies. The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk on sales and purchases which are entered in a 
currency other than Pak Rupees. When the management expects future depreciation of Pak Rupees, the Group enters into forward 
foreign exchange contracts in accordance with State Bank of Pakistan instructions and the Group's treasury policy. The policy allows 
the Group to take currency exposure within predefined limits while open exposures are rigorously monitored. 

 Following is the gross balance sheet exposure classified into separate foreign currencies:
 
  EURO USD GBP JPY
   As at June 30, 2014 
 Trade debts  -     -     -     -   
 Other receivables  4,092   11,280   -     -   
 Cash and bank balances  -     6,897   -     -   
   4,092   18,177   -     -   
 Trade and other payables  (63,171)  (1,276,899)  (1,050,235) (104) 
 Gross balance sheet exposure  (59,079)  (1,258,722)  (1,050,235) (104) 
 
   As at June 30, 2013 
 Trade debts  -     7,861   -     -   
 Other receivables  1,156   722,914   -     -   
 Cash and bank balances  -     53,265   -     -   
   1,156   784,040   -     -   
 Trade and other payables  (143,565)  (1,416,383)  (545,421)  (1,321)
 Gross balance sheet exposure  (142,409)  (632,343)  (545,421)  (1,321)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2014

Amounts in Rs ’000
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 Significant exchange rates applied during the year / period were as follows: 
   Average rate    Spot rate   
  For the For the six As at As at

  year ended   months period June 30, June 30,
 June  30,   ended June   2014  2013
 2014 30, 2013  

 Rupees per  Rupees   Rupees  

 EURO  134.97   128.92   134.94   130.18 
 USD  98.90   98.22   98.80   99.66 
 GBP  168.43   151.53   168.15   151.80 
 JPY  0.98   1.03   0.97   1.01

 Sensitivity analysis  

 Every 1% increase or decrease in exchange rate with all other variables held constant will decrease or increase profit before tax 
for the year by Rs 23.68 million (June 30, 2013: Rs 13.21 million). The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to the change 
in exchange rates. As at June 30, 2014, if Pak Rupee had weakened / strengthened by 1% against other currencies, with all other 
variables held constant, the effect on the Group's profit before tax at June 30, 2014 and June 30, 2013 would be as follows: 

  Increase /  Effect on Effect on Effect on Effect on
  decrease in  Profit  Profit Profit  Profit
  exchange  before tax  before tax before tax  before tax
  rates (EURO)      (USD)   (GBP)    (JPY)  
 2014 
 Pak Rupee +1%  591   12,587   10,502  1   
 Pak Rupee -1%  (591)  (12,587)  (10,502) (1)  

 2013 
 Pak Rupee +1%  1,424   6,323   5,454   13 
 Pak Rupee -1%  (1,424)  (6,323)  (5,454)  (13)
 

40. Credit risk 
 
 Credit risk represents the accounting loss that would be recognised at the reporting date if counter-parties failed completely to 

perform as contracted. The Group does not have significant exposure to any individual counter-party. To reduce exposure to 
credit risk the Group has developed a formal approval process whereby credit limits are applied to its customers. The management 
also continuously monitors the credit exposure towards the customers and makes provision against those balances considered 
doubtful of recovery. To mitigate the risk, the Group has a system of assigning credit limits to its customers based on an extensive 
evaluation based on customer profile and payment history. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored. Some 
customers are also secured, where possible, by way of inland letters of credit, cash security deposit, bank guarantees and 
insurance guarantees.

 The Group's gross maximum exposure to credit risk at the balance sheet date is as follows:

 

40.1 Financial assets 

 Long-term investments - note 5  2,500   2,500 
 Long-term loans - note 6  256,525   202,071 
 Long-term deposits - note 7  25,679   24,632 
 Trade debts - note 10  883,710   891,186 
 Loans and advances - note 11  193,000   160,640 
 Trade deposits  - note 12  26,008   17,165 
 Other receivables - note 13  1,201,665   796,111 
 Bank balances - note 14  850,210   828,467 

   3,439,297   2,922,772 

40.2  The Group has placed its funds with banks which are rated A-1 by Standard & Poor's and P-1 by Moody's. 

Amounts in Rs ’000

 As at  As at
 June 30, June 30,
  2014 2013
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40.3  Financial assets 
 
   - Secured  483,507   568,817 
   - Unsecured  2,955,790   2,353,955 
   3,439,297   2,922,772 
 
40.4 The ageing of trade debts and loans and advances at the reporting date is as follows: 
 
 Not past due  922,537   984,116 
 Past due but not impaired: 
   Not more than three months  106,392   63,946 
 Past due and impaired: 
   More than three months and not more than six months  3,726   2,000 
   More than six months and not more than nine months  4,448   -   
   More than nine months and not more than one year  2,321   -   
   More than one year  138,242   103,858 
   255,129   169,804 
 Less: Provision for: 
   - Doubtful debts - note 10  93,664   94,802 
   - Doubtful loans and advances - note 11  7,292   7,292 
   100,956   102,094 
   1,076,710   1,051,826 

40.4.1 There were no past due or impaired receivables from related parties. 
 
40.5 The maximum exposure to credit risk for past due and impaired at the reporting date by type of counter-party was: 
 
 Wholesale customers 98,054   1,181 
 Retail customers  26,008   16,650 
 End-user customers  131,067   151,974 
   255,129   169,805 
 Less: Provision for: 
 - Doubtful debts - note 10  93,664   94,802 
 - Doubtful loans and advances - note 11  7,292   7,292 
   100,956   102,094 
   154,173   67,711 
 

 As at  As at
 June 30, June 30,
  2014 2013

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2014

Amounts in Rs ’000

40.6 Movement of provision for trade debts and loans and advances 

  Trade debts Loans and Total Total
  advances

 
 Balance at the beginning of the year / period 94,802  7,292 102,094   102,676 
 Additional provision - note 28 1,556  -     1,556   774 
 Written off during the year / period  (194)  -     (194)  (302)
 Provision no longer required  (2,500)  -     (2,500)  (1,054)
 Balance at the end of the year / period  93,664   7,292   100,956   102,094 
 
40.6.1 The recommended approach for provision is to assess the top layer (covering 50%) of trade receivables on an individual basis 

and apply a dynamic approach to the remainder of receivables. The procedure introduces a group-standard for dynamic 
provisioning:

   • Provide an impairment loss for 50% of the outstanding receivable when overdue more than 90 days, and 
   • Provide an impairment loss for 100% when overdue more than 120 days.
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40.7 Concentration risk 
 
 The sector wise analysis of receivables, comprising trade debts, loans and advances and bank balances are given below:  

 

 Textile and Chemicals  456,956   557,561 
 Glass  132,285   64,651 
 Paper and Board  12,057   2,015 
 Pharmaceuticals  77,862   150,600 
 Paints  16,893   10,369 
 Banks  850,210   828,467 
 Loans & Advances & Others   481,613   368,724 
  2,027,876   1,982,387 
 Less: Provision for:
   - Doubtful debts - note 10  93,664   94,802 
   - Doubtful loans and advances - note 11  7,292   7,292 

   100,956   102,094 
   1,926,920   1,880,293 
 
40.8 Other price risk is the risk that the value of future cash flows of the financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in 

market prices such as equity price risk. Equity price risk is the risk arising from uncertainties about future values of investment 
securities. As at the balance sheet date, the Group is not materially exposed to other price risk.

  

41. Liquidity risk 
 
 Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities. Prudent 

liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availability of funding through 
an adequate amount of committed credit facilities. The Group treasury aims at maintaining flexibility in funding by keeping 
committed credit lines available.   
   
 The table below analyse the Group's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the 
balance sheet to the maturity date.  

  Carrying Contractual Less than
  amount cash flows one year 

   As at June 30, 2014 

 Financial liabilities 
 Trade creditors - note 21  1,387,666   (1,387,666)  (1,387,666)
 Bills payable - note 21  2,338,350   (2,338,350)  (2,338,350)
 Mark-up accrued - note 21  58,454   (58,454)  (58,454)
 Accrued interest on secured / unsecured loans - note 21  3,152   (3,152)  (3,152)
 Accrued expenses - note 21  975,458   (975,458)  (975,458)
 Technical service fee / Royalty - note 21  23,686   (23,686)  (23,686)
 Distributors' security deposits - payable on

   termination of distributorship - note 21 & 21.5  106,142   (115,482)  (115,482)
 Contractors' earnest / retention money - note 21  9,809   (9,809)  (9,809)
 Unclaimed dividends - note 21  48,692   (48,692)  (48,692)
 Payable for capital expenditure - note 21  329,509   (329,509)  (329,509)
 Others - note 21  147,655   (147,655)  (147,655)
 Long-term loan - note 19  2,314,805   (3,832,069)  (1,188,661)
 Short-term borrowings -  note 22.1,22.2 & 22.3  437,368   (453,556)  (453,556)

   8,180,746   (9,723,538)  (7,080,130)

 It is not expected that the cash flows included in the maturity analysis could occur significantly earlier, or at significantly different 
amount.

Amounts in Rs ’000

 As at  As at
 June 30, June 30,
  2014 2013
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  Carrying Contractual Less than
  amount cash flows one year  

   As at June 30, 2013 

 Financial liabilities 
 Trade creditors - note 21  651,021   (651,021)  (651,021)
 Bills payable - note 21  2,113,808   (2,113,808)  (2,113,808)
 Mark-up accrued - note 21  28,465   (28,465)  (28,465)
 Accrued interest on secured / unsecured loans - note 21  38,733   (38,733)  (38,733)
 Accrued expenses - note 21  836,188   (836,188)  (836,188)
 Technical service fee / royalty - note 21  680   (680)  (680)
 Distributors' security deposits - payable on
     termination of distributorship - note 21 & 21.5  118,888   (133,036)  (133,036)
 Contractors' earnest / retention money - note 21  9,550   (9,550)  (9,550)
 Unclaimed dividends - note 21  45,982   (45,982)  (45,982)
 Payable for capital expenditure - note 21  253,710   (253,710)  (253,710)
 Others - note 21  211,692   (211,692)  (211,692)
 Long-term loan - note 19  1,887,026   (2,446,543)  (377,836)
 Short-term borrowings -  note 22.1 & 22.3  2,256,000   (2,290,387)  (2,290,387)
 Short-term running finance - note 22.4  398,549   (398,549)  (398,549)

   8,850,292   (9,458,344)  (7,389,637)
 
42. Capital risk management
 
 The Group's objective when managing capital is to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern so that it can 

continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders; and to maintain a strong capital base to support 
the sustained development of its businesses. 

 
 The Group manages its capital structure by monitoring return on net assets  and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes 

in economic conditions. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid 
to shareholders or issue new shares. The Group also monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt, interest bearing 
loans and borrowings including finance cost thereon, trade and other payables, less cash and bank balances. Capital signifies 
equity as shown in the balance sheet plus net debt. The gearing ratio as at June 30, 2014 and June 30, 2013 is as follows: 

 
 Long-term loans  2,314,805   1,887,026 
 Trade and other payables  5,854,278   4,589,420 
 Short-term borrowings and running finance  437,368   2,654,549 
 Total debt  8,606,451   9,130,995 
 Cash and bank balances  (858,204)  (836,143)
 Net debt  7,748,247   8,294,852 
 Share capital  923,591   923,591 
 Capital reserves  309,643   309,643 
 Unappropriated profit  10,125,694   8,544,999 
 Equity  11,358,928   9,778,234 
 Capital  19,107,175   18,073,086 
 
 Gearing ratio 40.55% 45.90%

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2014

Amounts in Rs ’000

 As at  As at
 June 30, June 30,
  2014 2013
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43. Accounting estimates and judgements 
 
 Income taxes 
 
 The Group takes into account the current income tax law and decisions taken by appellate authorities. Instances where the 

Group's view differs from the view taken by the income tax department at the assessment stage and where the Group considers 
that its view on items of material nature is in accordance with law, the amounts are shown as contingent liabilities (unless there 
is remote possibility of transfer of benefits). The details of the tax matters are as follows:   

 The Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (The Tribunal) had earlier set aside the assessment for the assessment year 1998-99 on 
the issues of date of commissioning of PTA plant & depreciation thereon, restriction of cost of capitalisation of PTA plant and 
addition to income in respect of trial production stocks. The re-assessment was finalised by the department on June 29, 2010 
giving rise to an additional tax demand. The Group had filed an appeal against the said order before the CIR (Appeals), the 
hearing of which has been completed and the order is awaited.   

 The tax department reopened the income tax assessment for the assessment year 2001-2002 on the ground that demerger 
of PTA business from ICI Pakistan Ltd. was effective from the completion date i.e. August 6, 2001. This was challenged by the 
Group in the High Court which upheld the Group’s contention that the department did not have the right to reopen this finalised 
assessment. The department filed an appeal in the Supreme Court against the High Court’s order. The appeal was dismissed 
by the Supreme Court under the principle of well known case of Eli Lilly. After the Supreme Court’s decision on retrospectivity 
as mentioned above, a notice has been issued u/s 66A of the repealed Ordinance by tax department on June 20, 2011, which 
was challenged by the Group in the High Court on the basis of Supreme Court’s decision as above. However, despite the stay 
granted by High Court, the tax department issued an order on May 7, 2012 and raised the demand of the additional tax liability 
of Rs 19 million. The Group filed an appeal before The Tribunal which decided the case in Group's favour on the basis that order 
issued on May 7, 2012 was time barred. The tax department has also issued an order through which Tribunal's order has been 
given effect and Group's position has been accepted.    

 For the assessment year 2002-2003 on receipt of notice under section 62 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 1979, the Group had 
filed a writ petition in the Supreme Court after it being dismissed by the Sindh High Court on maintainability, challenging the tax 
department’s notice that the effective date of PTA’s demerger was August 6, 2001 rather than the effective date given in the 
Scheme of Arrangement as October 1, 2000. That notice had raised certain issues relating to vesting of PTA assets by the 
Group. It is the Group’s contention that such an action is unwarranted and which has illegally changed the settled position.   

 Whilst amending the assessment for the Tax Year 2003, 2004, 2005, 2007, 2008 and 2010 the department has taken certain 
action in the order, considered by the department as “protective assessment” on the matter of unabsorbed depreciation carried 
forward. It is the Group’s contention that such an action is unwarranted. The CIR (Appeals) has also passed the orders for these 
tax years during the year ended June 30, 2014 thereby accepting the Group's contention on the issue of carrying forward of 
unabsorbed depreciation. The department has filed an appeal against the orders of the CIR (Appeals) in the Tribunal which are 
pending for hearing.   

 In April 2012, a notice had been issued by the tax department for recovery of tax demand of Rs 271 million for Tax year 2003 
and Rs 310 million for Tax year 2004 on account of unabsorbed tax depreciation relating to the demerger of PPTA business. 
This notice has been issued by the tax department on the basis that revenue cases cannot be stayed by the High Court of 
Sindh for a period of more than six months as mentioned in Article 199(4A) of the Constitution of Pakistan. The Group through 
its counsel has filed a reply to the department stating that since our assessments are protective assessments and as stated in 
the order the demand can only arise after the matter is finally decided by the Supreme Court for assessment year 2002-03. No 
action has been taken by the tax department after the reply of the Group.    

 Notice under section 221 of the Income Tax Ordinance 2001 for rectification of deemed assessment order for the Tax Year 2005 
has been issued to disallow unabsorbed depreciation carried forward. A writ petition against the said notice has been filed with 
the High Court of Sindh which is pending for hearing.    

 For Tax Year 2006, the case had been selected for audit / scrutiny and whilst framing the order tax department has taken certain 
action in the orders, considered by the department as “protective assessments” on the matter of unabsorbed depreciation 
carried forward. A tax demand of Rs 616 million was raised in the order. It is the Group's contention that such an action is 
unwarranted. An appeal before the CIR (Appeals) on the matter has been decided in the Group's favour and carrying forward 
of unabsorbed depreciation has been allowed. The department has filed an appeal against the order of the CIR (Appeals) in the 
Tribunal which is pending for hearing.   
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 In June 2012, whilst amending the assessment for the Tax Year 2009, the tax department had disallowed the unabsorbed 
depreciation on the ground that there was no brought forward depreciation from Tax Year 2008 and a demand of Rs 972 million 
was created. It was the Group's contention that such an action was unwarranted. This position was totally different from the 
position taken earlier by the tax department. The Group had filed an appeal before the High Court of Sindh challenging the said 
order which had decided the case with the direction that the matter will be finalised by the CIR (Appeals) within six weeks from 
the date of High Court’s Order. On August 15, 2012 CIR (Appeals) issued its order and upheld the order passed by the tax 
department earlier. The Group then filed an appeal before the Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue against the said order of CIR 
(Appeals) as well as for the stay of demand. On November 15, 2012, the Tribunal decided the case in Group's favour on the 
basis that the original assessment order for assessment year 2001-02 passed on May 29, 2002 is now crystallized and therefore 
unabsorbed depreciation is available to the Group. The tax department has also issued an order giving effect to the Tribunal's 
decision through which the unabsorbed depreciation has been allowed to be carried forward for adjustment in Tax Year 2009. 
Subsequently in July 2013 the tax department had also passed an order for Tax Year 2010 whereby allowed the benefit of 
carried forward depreciation from Tax Year 2009. 

 
 Pension and Gratuity 
 
 Certain actuarial assumptions have been adopted as disclosed in note 18 to the consolidated financial statements for valuation 

of present value of defined benefit obligations and fair value of plan assets. Any changes in these assumptions in future years 
might affect gains and losses in those years. 

 
 Property, plant and equipment 
 
 The estimates for revalued amounts, if any, of different classes of property, plant and equipment, are based on valuation 

performed by external professional valuer and recommendation of technical teams of the Group. The said recommendations 
also include estimates with respect to residual values and depreciable lives. Further, the Group reviews the value of the assets 
for possible impairment on an annual basis. The future cash flows used in the impairment testing of assets is based on 
management's best estimates which may change in future periods. Any change in the estimates in future years might affect 
the carrying amounts of the respective items of property, plant and equipment with a corresponding affect on the depreciation 
charge and impairment. 

 

44. Standards or Interpretations not yet effective
 
 The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are consistent with those of the 

previous financial year except as follows: 
 
44.1 New, Amended and Revised Standards and Interpretations of IFRSs 
 
 The Group has adopted the following revised standard, amendments and interpretation of IFRSs which became effective for 

the current year: 

 IFRS 7 – Financial Instruments: Disclosures – (Amendments) - Amendments enhancing disclosures about offsetting of financial 
assets and financial liabilities

 IFRIC 20 – Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine

 IFAS 3 – Profit and Loss Sharing on Deposits 

 Improvements to accounting standards issued by the IASB

 IAS 1 – Presentation of Financial Statements – Clarification of the requirements for comparative information
 IAS 16 – Property, Plant and Equipment – Clarification of servicing equipment
 IAS 32 – Financial Instruments: Presentation – Tax effects of distribution to holders of equity instruments
 IAS 34 – Interim Financial Reporting – Interim Financial Reporting and segment information for total assets and liabilities

 The adoption of the above revision, amendments interpretation of the standards did not have any effect on the consolidated  
financial statements.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2014
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 Standards, Interpretations and Amendments to Approved Accounting Standards that are not yet effective 
 
 The following are the standards and interpretations, which have been issued but are not yet effective for the current financial year: 

 Standard or Interpretation Effective date (annual periods
 beginning on or after) 

 
 IFRS 10 – Consolidated Financial Statements January 01, 2015
 IFRS 11 – Joint Arrangements January 01, 2015 
 IFRS 12 – Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities January 01, 2015
 IFRS 13 – Fair Value Measurement January 01, 2015 
 IAS 16 & 38 – Clarification of Acceptable Method of Depreciation and Amortization January 01, 2016 
 IAS 16 & 41 – Agriculture: Bearer Plants January 01, 2016 
 IAS 19 - Employee Benefits July 01, 2014
 IAS 32 – Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial liabilities – (Amendment)  January 01, 2014 
 IAS 36 – Recoverable Amount for Non-Financial Assets – (Amendment)  January 01, 2014 
 IAS 39 – Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting – (Amendment)  January 01, 2014 
 IFRIC 21 – Levies January 01, 2014 

 The Group expects that the adoption of the above amendments and interpretation of the standards will not affect the Group's 
financial statements in the period of initial application.  

 
 In addition to the above standards and interpretations, amendments to various accounting standards have also been issued 

by the IASB. Such improvements are generally effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 01 July 2014. The Group 
expects that such improvements to the standards will not have any impact on the Group's financial statements in the period 
of initial application.

 
 Further, following new standards have been issued by IASB which are yet to be notified by the SECP for the purpose of 

applicability in Pakistan.
 
 IFRS 9 – Financial Instruments: Classification and Measurement January 01, 2018
 IFRS 14 – Regulatory Deferral Accounts January 01, 2016
 IFRS 15 – Revenue from Contracts with Customers January 01, 2017 

 
45. Post balance sheet events - dividends 
 
 The directors in their meeting held on August 29, 2014 have recommended a final dividend of Rs 4 per share (2013: Rs Nil per 

share)  in respect of the year ended June 30, 2014. This dividend is in addition to Interim dividend paid of Rs. 4 per share paid 
during the current year. The consolidated financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2014 do not include the effect of 
the final dividend which will be accounted for in the year in which it is approved.

 
 
46. Date of authorisation 
 
 These consolidated financial statements were authorised for issue in the Board of Directors meeting held on August 29, 2014.

47. General 
 
47.1  Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand rupees except as stated otherwise. 

47.2  During the six months ended June 30, 2013 the Group changed its financial year from December 31 to June 30. Accordingly, 
the corresponding figures in the consolidated profit and loss account, consolidated statement of comprehensive income, 
consolidated cash flow statement and consolidated statement of changes in equity pertain to the six months ended June 30, 
2013 and, hence, are not comparable.    

47.3  Corresponding figures have also been rearranged and reclassified, wherever necessary, for better presentation. However, there 
has been no material reclassification to report except for reclassification of eligible retired employees' medical scheme from 
deferred liabilities to accrued expenses in trade and other payables amounting to Rs. 39.714 million. 

 

Amounts in Rs ’000

Muhammad Sohail Tabba    Asif Jooma  Muhammad Abid Ganatra 
Chairman / Director      Chief Executive  Chief Financial Officer  
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AGM Annual General Meeting

APCMA All Pakistan Cement Manufacturing

BBS Behavior Based Safety

BOI Board of Investment

BSL Business School Lausanne Switzerland

BYOD Bring your own device

CAA Civil Aviation Authority

CCG Code of Corporate Governance

CEO Chief Executive Officer

CFO Chief Financial Officer

CIR Commissioner Inland Revenue

COD Chemical Oxygen Demand

CP Continuous Polymerization

CPR Cardiovascular Pulmonary Resuscitation

CSR Corporate Social Responsibility

DMEP Diarrhoea Management Education Programme

EAR Expired Air Resuscitation

EBIT Earnings before interest & tax 

EBITDA Earnings before interest tax depreciation & amortization

ECC External Chest Compression

EG Ethylene Glycol

EPS Earnings per share

ERM  Enterprise Risk Management

FAO Food & Agricultural Organization

FFFP Fellowship Fund for Pakistan

FTR Final Tax Regime

GIDC Gas Infrastructure Development Cess

GRI Global Reporting Initiative

HCFCs Hydrochlorofluorocarbon

HR Human Resources

HSE Health, Safety & Environment

HSE&S Health, Safety, Environment and Security

IAS International Accounting Standards

ICAP Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan

IDC Italian Development Council

IFAC International Federation of Accountants

IFRS International Financial Reporting Standard

ISE Islamabad Stock Exchange Limited

IT Information Technology

KPI Key Performance Indicator

KSE Karachi Stock Exchange Limited

L&D Learning and Development

LIC Life Insurance Corporation

LRBT Layton Rahmatullah Benevolent Trust

LSE Lahore Stock Exchange Limited

LTFF  Long Term Finance Facility

LTI Lost Time Injury

LUMS Lahore University of Management Sciences

MAP Management Association Pakistan

MEG Mono-Ethylene Glycol

MoU  Memorandum of Understanding

NBV Net Book Value

NFWWD National Forum of Women with Disabilities

Nox Nitrogen oxide

NSI Net Sales Income

NTC National Tariff Commission

OEE Operational & Eco-Efficiency

OPV Open pollinated Variety

OR Operating Result

P&DD Performance and Development Discussion

Pak-EPA Pakistan Environmental Protection Agency

PAT Profit After Tax

PICG Pakistan Institute of Corporate Governance

PIJBC Pakistan-India Joint Business Council

PPE  Property Plant & Equipment

PSF Polyester Staple Fibre

PTA Pure Terephthalic Acid

PX Para-xylene

RCMS Responsible Care Management System

ROI Return on Investment

SECP Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan

SOX Sarbanes & Oxley Act

Sox Sulphur Oxide

SPLY  Same period last year

TCF The Citizens Foundation

TEVTA Technical Education & Vocational Training Authority

UNGC United Nations Global Compact

UNIDO United Nations Industrial Development Organization

URS United Registrar Systems

VOC Volatile organic compounds

WPPF Workers Profit Participation Fund

WWF Workers Welfare Fund

YBG Yunus Brothers Group

Glossary
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Form of Proxy
63rd Annual General Meeting

I / We

of

being member(s) of ICI Pakistan Limited holding

ordinary shares hereby appoint

of    or failing him / her

of     who is / are also member(s) of ICI Pakistan Limited as my/our  proxy 
in my / our absence to attend and vote for me / us and on my / our behalf at the Sixty Third Annual General Meeting 
of the Company to be held on October 22, 2014 and at any adjournment thereof.

Important:

1. This Proxy Form, duly completed and signed, must be received at the Registered Office of the Company, ICI House, 5 West 
Wharf, Karachi, not less than 48 hours before the time of holding the meeting.

2. No person shall act as proxy unless he himself is a member of the Company, except that a corporation may appoint a person 
who is not a member.

3. If a member appoints more than one proxy and more than one instruments of proxy are deposited by a member with the 
Company, all such instruments of proxy shall be rendered invalid.

For CDC Account Holders / Corporate Entities:

In addition to the above the following requirements have to be met:

i) The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses and CNIC / SNIC (Computer National Identity 
Card / Smart National Identity Card) numbers shall be mentioned on the form.

ii) Attested copies of CNIC / SNICor the passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be furnished with the proxy form.

iii) The proxy shall produce his original CNIC / SNIC or original passport at the time of the meeting.

iv) In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors resolution / power of attorney with specimen signature shall be submitted 
(unless it has been provided earlier) along with proxy form to the Company.

Signature

This signature should 
ag ree  w i th  the 
specimen registered 
with the Company.

Folio / CDC Account No.

As witness my / our hand / seal this    day of    2014

Signed by the said

in the presence of  1.

          
2.
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Correct
Postage

The Company Secretary
ICI Pakistan Limited
ICI House
5 West Wharf 
Karachi-74000



The Sixty-Third Annual General Meeting of ICI Pakistan Limited will be held on Wednesday, October 22, 2014, at 
9:30 a.m. at ICI House, 5 West Wharf, Karachi.

Kindly bring this slip duly signed by you for attending the Meeting.

Company Secretary

Name Holding

Shareholder No. Signature

Note:

i) The signature of the shareholder must tally with the specimen signature on the Company's record.

ii) Shareholders are requested to hand over duly completed admission slips at the counter before entering the 
Meeting premises.

CDC Account Holders / Proxies / Corporate Entities:

a) The CDC Account Holder / Proxy shall authenticate his/her identity by showing his / her Identity by showing 
his / her original 

b) Computerized National Identity Card / Smart National Identity Card (CNIC/ SNIC) or original passport at the 
time of attending the Meeting.

c) In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors' resolution / power of attorney with specimen signature 
of the nominee shall be produced at the time of the Meeting (unless it has been provided earlier).

This Admission Slip is Not Transferable

Admission Slip



Mandate Letter

Dear Shareholder,

DIVIDEND MANDATE (Optional)

We wish to inform you that according to the provisions of the Companies Ordinance 1984 and various SECP circulars, 
shareholders are also entitled to receive their dividends by way of direct credit or electronic transfer to their bank account 
instead of receiving them through dividend warrants (crossed as A/c Payee only).

In case you wish to receive your future dividends directly in your bank account, please complete the particulars as 
mentioned below and return this letter to us duly signed along with a copy of your CNIC / SNIC (Computer National 
Identity Card / Smart National Identity Card).

SUBMISSION OF COPY OF CNIC / SNIC (Mandatory)

Pursuant to the directives of the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan, CNIC / SNIC number is mandatorily 
required to be mentioned on dividend warrants, members’ register and other statutory returns. You are therefore request 
to submit a copy of your CNIC / SNIC (if not already provided) to the Shares Department of ICI Pakistan Limited, ICI 
House , 5 West Wharf , Karachi or FAMCO Associates (Pvt.) Limited, 8-F, Next to Hotel Faran, Nursery Block-6, 
P.E.C.H.S.,Shahra-e-faisal, Karachi.

CDC shareholders are requested to submit their dividend mandate and CNIC / SNIC directly to their broker (participant)/CDC.

   
 Sincerely,

October 01, 2014 Saima Kamila Khan
 Company Secretary

Note: Members who have not yet provided their dividend mandate information, and/or CNIC/SNIC and/or NTN (as the 
case may be) are requested to provide the same at the earliest.
______________________________________________________________________________________________________

SHAREHOLDER'S SECTION

I hereby wish to communicate my desire to receive my future dividends directly in my bank account as detailed below:

Name of shareholder   : ___________________________________ 

Folio number    : ___________________________________   

Contact number of shareholder  : ___________________________________

Bank Account No.    :___________________________________

Title of Account    : ___________________________________

Type of Account    : ___________________________________

Name of Bank    : ___________________________________

Bank branch & full mailing address  : ___________________________________

         ___________________________________

Contact No of bank   : ___________________________________

it is stated that the above particulars given by me are correct to the best of my knowledge and I shall keep the company 
informed in case of any changes in the said particulars in the future

__________________________            CNIC / SNIC No.__________________________
 Shareholder's signature                      (copy attached)

Date : _____________________
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